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Quebecor World Inc. (NYSEAQW, TSXCIQW) is a
world leader in providing high-value, complete market-
ing and advertising solutions to leading retailers, cata-
logers, branded-goods companies and other businesses
with marketing and advertising activities, as well as
complete, full-service print solutions for publishers. The
Company is a market leader in most of its major product
categories, which include advertising inserts and circulars,
catalogs, direct mail products, magazines, books, direc-
tories, digitl, premedia, logistics, mail list technologies
and other value-added services, Quebecor World has
approximarely 29,000 employees working in more than
120 printing and related facilities in the United States,
Canada, Argentina, Austria, Belgium, Brazil, Chile,
Colombia, Finland, France, India, Mexico, Peru, Spain,

Sweden, Swirzerland, and the United Kingdom.

Web address: www.quebecorworld.com
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“Our transtormation plan Is based on driving
the fundamentals to create the highest value
for our shareholders, customers and people.”

To Our Shareholders

In 2006 we launched the transformation plan of Quebecor
World to create the highest value for our shareholders,
our customers and our people. Our transformation plan
will drive the fundamentals of our business with a focus
on creating the highest value for all our stakeholders by
becoming a provider of integrated, high-value, complete
princ solutions—before, during, and after print.

We believe that over time this will lead to increased
margins and a better business mix of high-value serv-
ices. The transformation will build on our extensive
three-year retooling program that has equipped our
platform with state-of-the-art, next-generation press
and bindery technology that, at its foundation, will
deliver a top-quality product to our customers, on time,

every time.

Five-Point Transformation Plan
The transformation plan focuses on achieving signifi-
cant improvements in five key areas: customer value,
best people, great exccution, retooling and balance sheet.
Customer Value—First, as always, we start with the
customer. Qur focus is on creating more value for our
customers than just the printed product, by creating
and providing complerte, high-value solutions. Solutions
that deliver high-impact marketing campaigns for
retailers, brand name companies, and catalogers, inte-
grating multiple advertising channels, with catalogs,
flyers, direct marketing, and the Internet. Also solutions
that deliver highly efficient, fast, and high-qualicy
products and services for publishers of books and

magazines.

We are able to build on a strong foundation in pro-
viding solutions, since we are already a leader in supply-
ing integrated service offerings, but we aspire to do
much more and more frequenty. As an example,
Quebecor World was the first company to provide an
integrated and seamless logistics solution, and we are
expanding this capability in order to provide true end-
to-end information tracking and data management for
our customers. Among other benefits, this solution
allows our customers to know more precisely when their
printed material will reach the end user, so they can
better integrate and execute their adverrising and
multi-channel marketing campaigns.

In addition, we are expanding our solution capabil-
ity at the beginning of the process before print with
high-value services in content management, dara opti-
mization, premedia, and other front-end applications to
increase quality, decrease costs, and reduce cycle time.
Overall, our objective is to achieve a target of $300 million
in annualized revenue benefits from these initiatives, run
rate by the end of 2008.

Best People—Truly great companies are based not
on the equipment they deploy, nor on their products,
but on the people who dedicate each and every day to
creating value for their customers and cash flow for
their shareholders.

We have great people. In the spirit of continuous
improvement we want to encourage our employces to
be the very best that they can be. We are developing a
series of high-performance programs to ensure our people

have the capabilities to deliver the greatest possible

(D




Financial Highlights

{in millions of US dollars, except per shars data)

2006

Consolidated Results from Continuing Operations

Revenues
Adijusted EBITDA
Adijusted EBIT
IAROC

Goodwill impairment charge

Operating income

Net income {loss) from continuing operations
Net income {loss)

Adjusted EBITDA margin *

Adjusted EBIT margin ~

Qperating margin *

$6,086.3
579.9
241.5
111.3
130.2
30.6
28.3

9.5 %

4.0 %

2.1 %

Segmented Information from Continuing Operations

Revenves

North America

Evrope
Latin America

Adjusted EBIT

North Americo

Europe
Latin America

Adjusted EBIT margin *
North America

Europe
Latin Americo

Selected Cash Flow Information
Cash provided by operating activities

Free cash flow {outflow] **

Per Share Data
Earnings {loss] from continuing operations

Diluted

Adjusted Diluted

Financial Position
Working cepital* * ¢

* ko

Total assels

longterm debt {including convertible notes)
Shareholders” equity* *

Debtio-capitalization

Debtio-Adjusted EBITDA ralio (times) “***
Inferest coverage ratio {times)

* ok ok ok

$4,821.7
1,025.4
239.3

$ 257.8
(17.5)
10.0

5.3 %
(1.7} %
4.2 %

$ 236.0
(9.9)

$ {0.03)
$ 0.64

5 (76.0)
5,823.4
2,132.4
2,032.4

51:49
3.7
4.3

EBITDA: Operaling income before depreciation ond amartization,
IARQOC: Impairment of assets, reshuciuring and other charges.
Adjusted: Defined os before IAROC and before goodwill impairment charge.
Debtio-Adjusted EBITDA ratio: Total debi divided by Adjusted EBITDA.
Interest coverage ratio: Adjusted EBITDA divided by finonciol expenses adjusted - Last 12 months.
* Margins calculated on revenues.

** Cash provided by operating activities, less capital expenditures ond preferred share dividends,

2005

$ 6,283.3
688.7
357.5

94.2
243.0
20.3
(148.8)
(162.6)
11.0 %
57 %
0.3 %

$ 4,881.1
1,162.9
241.7

$ 3535
(3.6)
13.0

7.2 %
(0.3) %
54 %

§ 4695
119.2

$ {1.43)

$ 0.8

$ (100.4)
5,700.4
1,855.1
2,218.8

46:54
2.7
58

ael of proceeds from disposals of ossels and proceeds from business disposals.
*** Prior period amounts have been revised. See Note 1 1o Consolidated financiol statements.

* For conlinuing operotions.

2004

$ 6,339.5
822.2
471.1
115.6

355.5
139.9
1437
13.0
7.4
3.6

$ 48503
1,297.4
192.4

$ 4214
501
1.3

8.7
3.9
0.7

$ 487.8
319.4

$ 077
$ 1.45

$ (508
6,265.3
1,950.1
2,580.8

43:57
2.4
6.3

Sy
o

%

%
%
%



“Ihrough superior execution in all areas,

we aim to achieve $100 million in
annualized cost savings and productivity
improvements, run rate by the end of 2008.”

value to our customers and to our shareholders. These
programs focus on building each person’s capabilities
through development processes, tools, training, and
personal coaching.

We are doing everything we can to make Quebecor
World a great place to work. We must have the programs
and processes in place to ensure that we attract and
retain the best people who will excel in serving the cus-
tomer. In addition, critical to everything we do is ensur-
ing that our employees remain injury-free so that they
return home safely every night to their families. In 2006,
we undertook several projects to improve our safety per-
formance. As a result, in our North American platform,
we achieved a 16% reduction in lost-time accidents com-
pared to the prior year, and eighteen facilities reported no
lost-time accidents at all in 2006. Our plant in Leominster,
Massachusetts, remains the star in this category, with a
full eight years with no lost-time accidents.

Great Execution-—The third action area is focused
on developing great execution capabilities. Fundamental
to our transformation is a core execution capability in
exceeding customer quality and performance commit-
ments, on time, every time, and at the lowest cost in
the industry. Our aspiration is to achieve an execution
capability unmatched in the industry. We will build
on our current programs and expand this capability
across the Company in a fact-based, project-based

manner, focused on low-capital solutions to improve

performance. This is essential because it is likely that
our costs, such as labor, energy and materials, will con-
tinue to rise and we will continue to face challenging
market conditions.

The opportunities for productivity improvements
are significant. They include such high-yield projects as
increasing press efficiency, reducing paper waste, opti-
mizing the supply chain and decreasing cycle times.
Late in 2006 we launched the first wave of our contin-
uous improvement projects, using a suite of tools that
includes Six Sigma, 55, Lean Manufacturing, Kaizan
and others. Through our execution initiative, we are
making good progress toward our objective of achieving
$100 million in annualized cost savings and productivity
improvements, run rate by the end of 2008.

Retooling and Restructuring—2006 was the most
significant year in our three-year retooling program
involving total investments of almost one billion dollars.
In 2006, the program progressed according to plan
with the installation of eleven new presses. These new
wide-web offset and gravure presses are state-of-the-art:
larger, faster and more efficient than the ones they are
replacing. Equipped with the latest press technology
and robotics, they enable us to consistently produce a
top-quality, on-time product, faster and at a lower cost.

As a result of this new investment, we are able to
restructure and consolidate our network into fewer, but

larger, more specialized facilities. In 2006, we continued

GO



with our plans to close three U.S. facilities, two of
which were in the magazine group, the other in the book
group, plus one European facility in Strasbourg, France.
As part of the transformation plan, we are accelerating
our rerooling and have committed to completing the
retooling in the first half of 2007, so that we can go back
to our historically lower capital expenditure levels.

The amount of change that has taken place in our
organization over the past several years has been signifi-
cant but necessary for us to remain a leader in an industry
undergoing significant consolidation. As an indication
of our transformation, four years ago 40,000 Quebecor
World employees at 160 facilities generated $6 billion
in revenue. Today, our 29,000 employees generate a
similar level of revenue at 120 facilities.

Balance Sheet—Quebecor World is committed to
strengthening its balance sheet in a responsible manner.
In 2006, we initiated a number of financing activiries
with a view to improving our financial flexibility. In
particular, the Company issued $850 million of Senior
Unsecured Notes, which helped to significantly increase
liquidity. At year-end the Company had more than
$900 million undrawn capacity on its $1 billion
unsecured revolving credit facilicy.

We also suspended the quarterly dividend on
Multiple and Subordinate Voting Shares in November of
2006 to increase our financial flexibility to grow earn-

ings and to take advantage of opportunities in the

D

future. We continue to explore strategic and tactical
actions to further improve our balance sheet. Our trans-
formation plan is well under way and starting to deliver
benefits, but since it was essentially launched in the
third quarter of 2006, it did not have a significant
impact on our 2006 financial performance. Our resules
in 2006 reflect the highly competitive market conditions
and the temporary disruptions and inefficiencies asso-
ciated with the most intense phase of our retooling
program, which involved the installation of new presses,
removal of older equipment and plant shutdowns.
Although these initiatives are just now starting to
generate positive benefits, in 2006 they did not translate
into increased operating income on a full-year basis.

Consolidated revenues of $6.09 billion in 20006
were 3% lower than the prior year, and operating
income before IAROC and before goodwill impairment
charge declined by 32.4%. Excluding impairment of
assets, fcstructuring and other charges and goodwill
impairment, diluted earnings per share were $0.64 in
2006 compared with $0.98 the prior year. After these
charges, the net loss per share in continuing operations
was $0.03 for 2006.

We achieved several significant customer wins and
renewals based on leveraging the capabilities from our
Customer Value initiative. For example, several large
customers signed significant contracts which demon-

strates that we are on the right track, with such wins and




"VVe are rocused, have clear rargets,
and are already making progress
toward achieving our goals.”

renewals as Sears, Williams-Sonoma, Bass Pro Shops,
Redcats, Yellow Pages Group and Harlequin Enterprises
Ltd. In addition, we won many customer awards in 2006.
As well as our being named Wal-Mart Customer Service
Supplier of the Year, our Mempbhis facility was recognized
as Sears 2006 Plant of the Year and four facilities received
Comp USA’ 2006 Quality and Service Awards. In Latin
America, we continue to grow our overall business and we
are successfully building our book platform as a low-

cost alternative for North American publishers.

Our Commitment

Throughout Quebecor World, thousands of dedicated
people are working hard every day to turn our
Company around. Our commitment is to create the
highest value for customers, employces and sharcholders.
We are focused, have clear targets, and are already
making progress toward achieving our goals to deliver
near-term benefits in 2007 and 2008 and to create
sustainable profitability and free cash flow growth in
the long term.

We anticipate that our financial performance in the
first half of 2007 will be affected by the inefficiencies
created from accelerating our retooling program so we
are finished before our customers busy season in the
latter half of 2007. This will cause some disruptions,

but it will ensure that we are well positioned for the
second half of 2007 and 2008.

With the challenges of our retooling program
almost behind us, we now have an opportunity to insti-
tutionalize world-class processes and programs for con-
tinuous improvement. We believe that by driving the
fundamentals in all areas of our business we can deliver
sustained, improved performance for the benefit of all.

We thank our customers, shareholders and suppliers
for their continued confidence in us as we build on
Quebecor World's strength as a great printing company
and transform it into a best-in-class provider of high
value-added, integrated and complete solutions.

We also want to thank our employees for the critical
role they play in this transformation and turnaround.
We, all 29,000 strong, working together, will ensure our

Company reaches its full potential.

The Right Honourable
Brian Mulroney,
Chairman of the Board

Wes William Lucas,

President and
Chief Executive Officer
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Wes William Lucas,
President and CEQ



"VVe believe our rive-point program,
with specific focused actions,

will drive greater performance and
create significant shareholder value.”

Wes William Lucas became President and Chief
Executive Officer of Quebecor World on May 11,
2006. Since then, he has taken significant steps to
turn around the Company and implement the five-
point transformation plan. Along the way, he has met
with hundreds of Quebecor World investors, customers
and employees, talking to them about the progress
being made and where he wants to take the Company.
Here are some of the questions being asked and his
responses.

() WHAT IS YOUR LEADERSHIP STYLE?

A My leadership style is based on the fundamental belief
that the people closest to the customer and operations
should be empowered to create the most value. They
are the ones who take the actions and make the deci-
sions that drive millions of individual steps to create
value and improve our Company. Therefore all the rest
of us, especially me, are here to support the people on
the front lines so they can do a better job—imple-
menting the processes, the tools, and training to
empower them so that collectively we can deliver on
our commitments and achieve results.

We as leaders must create a compelling vision for the
future, develop the right strategies, and build the exe-
cution capabilities; but that only gets us so far. Where
we will win or lose in the marketplace is by ensuring
that we create more value for our customers so they
will choose us over the competition and we can then
sell based on value rather than on price. My job is to
enable each team to achieve their full potential, so that
we execute better on the front lines than the compeu-
tion, achieving higher quality, lower costs, faster speed,
and more value than the competition.




HOW DO YOU PLAN TO
ACHIEVE THIS?

First let’s make sure we're clear on what we're setting
out to achieve, which is to create the highest value for
our shareholders, customers and people. That is the
Quebecor World Commitment which we have
launched and communicated in every plant and with
every person. We chose the word “commitment”
because we wanted each and every one of us in the
Company to make a personal commitment to achieve
this, and to decide how each of us will play a key role
in achieving it.

“How” we are going to get there is through our five-
point transformation plan. We believe our five-point
program with specific, focused actions will drive
greater performance and sharcholder value by trans-
forming the fundamentals of the Company.

The first fundamental is customer value, as we always
start with the customer. Our goal is 1o become a
stronger partner for our customers and to create more
value by providing complete, integrated, high-value
solutions, before and after print. Second, we must
ensure that we have the best people as “people make it
happen.” We must also empower them, to enable each
and every person to achieve their full potential and
deliver the highest results. Third is great execution.
Execution is all about doing the right things right. We
are in a capital-intensive industry, which rewards great
execution by leveraged scale synergies. So great execu-
tion can be a competitive advantage in our industry.
The fourth element of the transformation plan is the
completion of our retooling program, which is expected
to be fully implemented by the third quarter of this
year. Finally, we are taking actions to strengthen our
balance sheet to give us increased financial flexibility.

HOW ARE YOU ENLISTING THE
SUPPORT OF YOUR EMPLOYEES?

“Be safe — Do great things — Have fun” was a motto
drilled into me from a great CEO and dear friend.
This resonates well with our people too. “Be safe”
because we value our people, and in a manufacturing
environment in particular, we need to ensure that all
of our employees go home safely to their families every
day. “Do great things” because each and every one of
us, no matter what the job, can be proud of achieving
great things in our area. That pride and satisfaction
transforms us as an organization. “Have fun” comes
from our belief that when you're having fun and doing
great work in a safe environment, a dynamic energy is
created that affects the whole team. This is infectious
across our Company and creates a high-performing
organization that people are thrilled to be part of.

() WHAT DO YOU SEE AS THE

FUTURE FOR YOUR INDUSTRY?

I am very optimistic about the future. However, it all
depends on how one defines the industry. My optimism
is based on the view that Quebecor World competes
in two main areas: (1) Marketing and advertising solu-
tions and (2) Publishing outsourcing solutions. Both
of these are dynamic markets with good fundamentals.
Yes, a high-quality printed product delivered on time,
every time, is at the core of both, but the key is that
our customers need complete solutions and not just
print. As an example, retailers, catalogers, and other
marketing-intensive industries need more targeted
campaigns to directly touch and communicate with
their customers. Gone are the days of one message for
all. Each customer has a distinct individual targeted
message that it wants to deliver to a specific market
segment. Print is the leading advertising medium in
North America, accounting for nearly half of the total
advertising spend. It is tactile, portable, cost-effective and
one of the best media there is for targeted, “intimate”



"VVe see an opportunity to expand our role
throughout our customers’ value chain

and provide solutions that measurably increase
our customers’ sales and reduce their costs.”

marketing. In the future, as in the past, some print
sectors will have higher potential than others; in
particular, targeted marketing vehicles.

IN THAT CONTEXT, HOW DO YOU SEE
YOUR BUSINESS EVOLVING?

We will transform ourselves into a complete solution
provider. Of course, the core of what we do is printing;
delivering the highest-quality printed product, on
time, every time, in the most efficient process in the
industry. However, we do much more than just print.
We are becoming more of a valuc-added integrated
provider of advertising and marketing solutions. The
majority of our customers are conducting highly pin-
pointed, multi-channel campaigns involving inserts,
catalogs, direct mail, the Internet, and other direct
marketing vehicles. The campaigns need to be better
integrated, more targeted, with faster and more accu-
rate turnaround times and logistics capabilities. We
are building the capability to deliver these complete
solutions for multi-channel outlets.

The same goes for magazines and directories since
these publications play a leading role in advertising,
We can provide new ways to increase advertising rev-
enues through high-impact advertising campaigns
within magazines and directories through targeted,
specialized and innovative marketing programs. There
is also the opportunity to strengthen the value-added
services we provide before and after the printing
process, including comprehensive premedia and
logistics solutions.

In publishing, we see a bright future for those who can
provide complete outsourcing capabilities for the pub-
lisher in order to reduce cycle time, increase quality,
decrease costs, and streamline the workflow.

As an example, our Book Group is a good stand-alone
business that we expect to continue to perform well,
and we also see the opportunity to become more of an
integrated solutions provider to book publishers. Our
customers now need a partner to provide a supply
chain solution capable of fast turnaround times, flex-
ible production plans and responsiveness. We are well
positioned to be very competitive in this market, having
recently invested in both presses and bindery equip-
ment in most of our U.S. book facilities. We are
equipped for both short and long production runs and
we can provide an alternative to Asia through our
Larin American operartions.

Q NOW THAT YOU'VE BEEN HERE FOR

ALMOST A YEAR, WHAT ARE YOUR
REFLECTIONS?

A I am very pleased to say that the opportunity to create

significant value is even greater than originally antici-
pated. I'm confident of that, because of the invest-
ments made and because of the transformation plan.
The turnaround is only a matter of time and there is
significant potential to partner with our customers,
empower our employees and institutionalize world-
class continuous improvement programs. Much of the
focus in the past has been on buying other companies.
Now we are at a transition point where we've made
major investments to restructure and retool our oper-
ations and the opportunity today is to build on the
good work that’s been done, and transform the
Company. The reason I came here is the same reason
investors are choosing to invest. Quebecor World is a
great company and we have tremendous opportunity.
We have a strong foundation to create cash flow and

earnings growth, and we will do this together, all
29,000 of us, at Quebecor World.






“VVe have an opporiunity 1o creare a
higher value for our customers, more
frequently and in more areas, using a
consistent and disciplined approach.”

[

CUSTOMER
VALUE

At Quebecor World, we are
committed to creating the highest
value for our customers—value above
and beyond providing excellent
printed products—by providing
complete, integrated solutions before
and after printing to enable our
customers to maximize their

marketing and advertising needs.

Before print, Quebecor World is
leading the industry in developing

superior marketing and advertising
programs that include creative
services across multi-channels and

a full array of marketing solutions,
premedia services, data optimization,
content management, photo studios,

and other value-added services.

Quebecor World is also driving more
solutions and value after the printing
process by providing comprehensive
mail list optimization, co-mailing,
real-time tracking, and a complete
array of logistics solutions to reduce
cycle time, lower postal and freight
costs and improve delivery times for

our customers to their customers.

Look to us to expand these areas of
excellence and develop new capa-
bilities to enhance our competitive
advantage and continue to create

greater customer value.



"We are focused on providing
solutions for multi-channel marketers
that combine print and online media

to create greater customer value
throughout their entire marketing
and advertising campaigns.”

Mike Bloomfield
Executive Vice President, Sales
Quebecor World

“Experience counts.
Our Sales Team has
the many years of
experience needed
to provide solutions to
marketers and advertisers
that will improve
customer acquisition,
strengthen customer
relationships and
drive profitable

revenue in each b
channel they utilize.”

John Patneau
Executive Vice President, Sales
Quebecor World



WUOITUMLER VALUL

Creating Solutions for Multi-Channel Marketers

Through Print

Through the Web

The complexity facing the mulri-
channel markerer is daunting: How
do you get your products to marker
quickly, break through the adver-
(ising CI Lreer 1o I'C'JCI] CHSTOMCrS.,
drive customers to a call center,
recail store or website to purchase,
increase sales volume and main-
tain consistent branding across
all channels while getting the
best possible return on vour
advertising and marketing

dollars?

Quebecor World is here to support

multi-channel marketing. We are

focused on the needs of this
important marker segment and
more imporanty on providing
complete solutions that will create
g!’C:l[C[' Cusromer VﬂlllC. QUChCC()l‘
World 1s uniquely posiioned to

}‘JI’O\'idC our customers \\’i[l]

Through Retail Stores

customized multi-channel marker-
ing solutions for all their needs—
catalog, retail inserts, direct mail,
T:l[‘g(‘ﬂ‘d p[‘int C:l[]‘lpﬂigns. ﬂnd
online media needs—including the
re-purposing of printed conrent to
online banner adverusing, e-flvers,
and mobile communications. We
offer scamless workflows from
creative to logistics and powerful,
new HPPI'UIICI]CS [0 connecr our
customers with their customers.
Fast, efficient and effecrive, we can
reduce cvele rimes, manage and
repurpose content across all

media, and maximize response
races and savings—all in an
inregrated, seamless solurion scaled
across the continent, ver delivering
local responses by being

almost everywhere.
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“At Hearst, we had never published
a weekly magazine before. To help us
successfully launch Quick & Simple, we

turned to the leader in weekly magazine

print solutions —Quebecor World.”

Jerry D’Elia,
Vice President/Director,
Manutacturing and Distribution,

Hearst Magazines

’

¢

Hearst Magazines is one of
the world’s largest publishers
of monthly magazines, including

Cosmopolitan, Good Housekeeping,

Country Living, Popular Mechanics, Cosmo
Girl, Teen and Veranda—all printed by
Quebecor World. However, the rigors of
producing Quick & Simple, its first weekly
magazine, introduced new challenges.
“Weeklies raise the bar for everyone

involved,” explains Jerry D’Elia.



LUOSTOUMER VALUEL

Creating Value through Partnership

Quebecor World put rogether a cross-placform, cross-

funcrional ream experienced in the weekly production

cvcle to work closely with Hearst to help them develop

and then execure a mﬂnuﬂlcmring pl;m comhining

quality, efficiency and on-time deliveriecs—rthe firse

tme and every tme.

“Withoue the experienced weekly production team
W that Quebecor World brought to the table, and

withour their enchusiastic and innovarive approach,

our launch would net have been as successful. We
consider them an important partner as we grow our

business,” savs Jerry DY'Elia.
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experience helped us adjust our marketingg}
mix for a better return on our investment!

Their ability to work with us to finetune }

our program made all the difference.”

Donna Howell,
Marketing Production Director
Pier 1 Imports
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N\cmmlzmg Marketing Campaigns
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Partnering wich Pier 1 [Imports. a
leading rewailer of home furnishings
and accessories, Quebecor World was

able to help them achieve increased

craltic in boch their stores and on their

website, increase the dollar amount of
their average sale and increase cheir

overall sales revenue.

We began our reladonship as the
printer of Pier 1s verail insert program.
However, when Pier 1 sought 10
increase their rate of revurn on their
marketing spending, our service teams
stepped up wich an innovative new
marketing solution utilizing

personalized catalogs.

By creating caralogs with personalized

coupons and “bounce back cards”,

along with printed cover wraps,

Pier T was able to take advanmge

of the vase experience, customization
capabilitics, and data produced by
Quebecor World Direer to arger
their customers more cffectively and
to communicate with them through
personalized messages. The results:
Qucbecor World Direct was able to
generate significant impact for Pier 1
triggering across-the-board increases

in rraftic, sales, and revenue.

]




"As publishers, we must provigae our woriawiae
network with technology solutions that enable all
of Forbes to communicate effectively and efficiently.
PRy By partnering with Quebecor World, we are
collaborating with a company that has a proven
ord of successfully designing, implementing and
ing these solutions.”

Ej:&ine Fry, g
Group Director of Manufacturing
and Production for Forbes
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Providing Full-Service Solutions
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Forbes Media LLC and Quebecor g l’ N/
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perhaps best characterized by the fact Lt < i
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that Quebecor World Premedia has had S A d
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the honor of providing on-site services ;0 ,
tor Forbes since 1996. —lg Do
h‘ N
<g ™~ . L.
o A By managing an on-site Technology
P - ~
by, Solutions Center tor both Forbes”
e domestic and internadonal clienes. ?
Quebecor World Premedia offers
support and access to work-In-progress Logistics. We help Forbes save on
and archived materials—gtving cliencs postal costs through an integrated
] e
the ability to view, annotate and logistics solution utilizing data
transimic Images, graphics and page oprimization and flexible workHows,
files 24 hours a day. giving them tlexible delivery oprions to

optimize when magazines are delivered

Owur value o our customer begins to their subseribers. Our sophisticared

before princing and continues after tracking and deailed reporting provide
B 24 ! s

printing with Quebecor World the data Forbes needs ar every stage.



Bindery Tech #
Quebecor World,
Clarksville




“In the spirit or continuous iImprovement,
we strive to be the best that we can be
every day and to develop our people

to achieve the highest performance.”

BE/S/
PEOPLE

Our people are our greatest asset.
This is why our “Best People”
initiative is a key part of our
transformation plan and is
supported by the fact that the

vast majority of companies that
consistently out-performed the
market in sharcholder value
creation made people development
and organizational-capability

building a top priority.

Our objective is to provide the
processess, tools and training
necessary to improve the funda-
mentals and the key capabilities

required O SCIVE OUr CUStomers.

We are purting in place a robust
program that ensures our people
become the best that they can be,
creating the most value for our
customers and shareholders through
superior results. Our program is
based on building high-performance
teams through developing core skills
and capabilities. We work on the
fundamentals and the key
capabilities required to serve our
customers, and improve the quality

of our products and services.

We also work on the fundamentals
of creating a wonderful place to
work and teams that are magnets
for terrific talent. That includes
building dynamic teams, empowering
our people, ensuring diversity and
openness in everything we do, and
creating a workplace filled with the
highest level of character, honesty

and crust. A great place to work.



“It's always a team effort ...
At Quebecor World, we are
dedicated to improvement and to  §

creating production efficiencies
to meet our customers’ needs.”

James Jackson, e -
Superintendent of Press Operations8ll
Quebecor World, Jonesboro

People make it happen.
Expert teams across our
global platform ensure
our retooling efforts
create higher value for
our customers and
shareholders.



ROTOMAN S

2-3 days to produce.

To achieve maximum operating

Improving efficiency, the new next-generation
64-page press in Quebecor World’s Jonesboro
facility occupies 1,300 sq. ft., and consists of
eight units, each weighing 70,000 pounds, It can
output in a single day what it takes other presses

Working in High-Performance Teams

performance. The team identitied

cfficiency. team leader James Jackson Many innovative improvements

led a rigorous and analvtical problem- 1o this next-generation technology

solving process to evaluare alternatives

and arrive at answers. Through his
leadership, the teany grew stronger

and solved the problems,

James and his team worked closely
with the external supplicrs to come

up with ways of Improving

that increased speed and quality

and lowered costs.

Because of the success with che

Joneshoro implemenration. fames
is now dedicated to installing the
new Rotoman presses throughour

the Quebecor World placform.



“Qur customers expect excellent high qualty
color results. At Quebecor World we strive to

exceed those expectations through continuous

process improvements. We control the color
reproduction process, from capture to

consumer, by providing proven color-managed

i selutions and our own proprietary processes.”

! Bob Hallam,
o m Director of Color Technology,
e

@_*ﬁebecor World, Schaumburg
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The Value of Technical Excellence

Qucbecor World is committed

to ensuring char we have the most
capable people in our ndustry. Bob
Hallam, Quebecor World's Direcror
of Color Technology, wpifies our
commirment to having the best

people on board.

Bob is widely acknowledged
as & maseer in his freld, and his
contribution to Quebecor World's
customers is significanc. His
focus is delivering product
color consistency on multiple
platforms across muldple plants
in mulaple countries—a trulv
remarkable achievement,
based on a true understanding

of the science of color.

Not only does Bob generare value
for Quebecor World's customers
and embody our commitment o
great execution, he serves on the
Steering Commiteee for the 1CC
{International Color Consortivm)—
making Quebecor World che only
printer with a representative ac that
level. The 1CC Steering Commiteee
focuses on setting the direction for
color standards and works closely
with suppliers within the industry
to rescarch, test and develop current

and new technologies.

ALL THE PERFECT
GADGETS FOR DAD,
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Sam Willet

Combination Sheetfed Operator
Quebecor World, Dubuque
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~Our commitment Is fo builld a confinuous
mprovement capability across our Company
that delivers superior results in quality,

productivity, and speed.”

GREA
EXECUTIO

Our commitment is to build a
continuous improvement capability
across our Company that is results-
driven, fact-based, and focused

on low-capital projects to increase
productivity, drive speed, reduce
waste, improve quality and

maximize cashflow and earnings.

Quebecor World has set an initial
target of at least $100 million in
annualized cost savings and
productivity improvements, run rate
by the end of 2008. These savings
and improvements will come from

i3 . »
our “Great Execution” programs.

This is essential to offset cost
increases in labor, energy and

materials,

Our first wave of continuous
improvement projects began

in 20006, and we are adding
additional waves cach quarter to
build a sustainable, continuous
improvement capability across

the Company.

Qur projects first start in our plants
and then are broadened to include
all aspects of our business. As an
example, at the St. Cloud plant,

we have identified opportunities

to reduce make-ready and running
waste, improve color consistency
and increase press speeds. We

are making good progress towards
our objective of achieving the

$100 million target.
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GREAT EXECUTION

Our Continuous Improvement Program

Quebecor World's Continuous
Improvement Program is tailored
to meet our needs, urilizing
tools such as Six Sigma, Lean
Manufacturing, Kaizan. 58 and
other productivity programs.
Ir iS g(.‘n(‘r;lting new IC\'CIS
of rigor, opportuniry and
enthustasm from the top
of the organization
down to the plant
floor. We arc
improving
('V(‘[‘}"[hing W (!0,
from production,
maintenance,
puchasing, sales,
hiring, through
ro administracve

funcrions such as

planning,

Our Continuous Improvement
Program combines Six Sigma and
other tools 1o creare an approach thac
utilizes data and stadistical analyses

to measure and improve operational
performance, processes and systems
10 build rebust operations, reduce

defects, and increase qualiry.

“One of the keys to the success

OF OLur PI'Ugl‘ﬂ[n iS C[]]Pk)yef
empowerment,” says Steve Miller,
Senior VP of Continuous
Improvement, who leads Quebecor
World's Continuous Improvement
Program. “Teams sct goals, review
statistical data, investigate problems

and solve them.”

Black Belt Jeff Booth, trained as

a full-time Six Sigma leader, and
Vice President and General Manager
George Wilkes, oversee a project in
our St. Cloud plant in the first wave
of the *Class of 2007." Along with
Green Beles Gary Heinen and Scott
Gray, they are responsible for projects
chat will reduce waste and improve
throughpurt in the press room and

the bindery.

From left to right:
Scott Gray, Gary Heinen,
Jeff Booth and George Wilkes



“It is the obsession of
our team to exceed

our customers’

expectations every day.”

Ricardo Galvez Velasquez,
General Manager

Bogoté Colombia Facility
Quebecor World, Latin America
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Our Latin American Book Module
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Quebecor World Latin America offers
a highly competitive alrernarive for

North American publishers fooking to

take work oftshore o lower-cost reglons

such as Asia by offering a significant
ume and service advantage. This is
especially artractive for specialey and

fine book publishers.

Quebecor World Bogotd provides

the same high quality produer as all
Quebecor World tacilities. Working
with English speaking Customer Service

Representatives and sales staff and the

transmission of files via Quebecor

When the first container of 30,000 books arrived nearly World's sccure Internet syscem means
a month early at the warehouse of a major North American thae there is a scamless transition from
book publisher, the Quebecor World Latin America team in the customer’s peine of view,

Bogotd, Colombia, was justifiably proud. The team once again
executed flawlessly and exceeded our customer’s expectations. Quebecor Worlds important
investmene in several Latin American
facilities demonstrares our commirment
to creating value for our customers and

our sharcholders.

G



“The Memphis plant is very proud to be
recognized as the Sears’ 2006 Plant of the Year.

We are committed to making sure we meet
and exceed Sears’ expectations and strive fo
continuous improvement in all aspects of thenr

markefing and advertising programs

Todd Randolph,
Vice President and General Munagér
Quebecor World, Memphis




Award-Winning Results

Quebecor World Memphis exemplifies
Cirear Execution i its consistent abilicy
to deliver superior products quickly
and cfficientlv—a fact thar was
recognized recendy when Sears awarded

this faciliey a "Plant of the Year™ award.

The award recognizes exceptional
performance and excellence in all
factors related 1o quality such as paper
consumption, load planning, on-time
delivery, make-ready turnaround., and

accurare and cimely billing.

Quebecor World is proud of its
]ung—tcrm pzn'mcrships with

indusery leaders like Sears. '{'hrc)ugh
Crreat Bxecunion, we can ereate greater
customer value by maintaining the
highest quality standards, reducing
evele times, increasing efficiencies,
conkuning costs. leveraging new

rechnologies and enhancing workflows.

Unique to the industry, this 11-foot

tall robot is a central component
of a robotic work platform in
Quebecor World’s Memphis facility.
It automatically and “perfectly”
stacks and palletizes books from
three presses. Stacking patterns
are selected from memory,

which enables optimizing and
streamlining the delivery of Sears’

retail inserts.
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= “Our three-year retooling program
is being optimized to be completed
before the 2007 busy season.”

We will complete our major three-year
retooling program earlier than planned
and should finish before the busy
season in 2007. Our retooling program
involves deploying state-of-the-art tech-
nology in fewer, but larger facilities, by
running faster, more efficient next-
generation technology. This program
is preparing us to meer the rigors of a

competitive marketplace going forward.

In 2006, nine new presses were
installed in the U.S. platform and two
presses in Europe. The presses in the
U.S. are in the book, magazine and
catalog platforms. These start-ups, the
resulting press closures and transfers
of volume during this process created
significant temporary inefficiencies

in 2006. However, we are rapidly
shortening our learning curve—making
significant improvements with each
new installation and the resulting
closure. For example, the second wave
of presses reached run rates 30% faster

than the first.

Owerall, we are on target to meet our
performance objectives and cost savings
and we will realize these improvements

faster than originally planned.
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State-of-the-Art Platform to
Create Greater Customer

and Shareholder Value

Quebecor World's three-year
retooling program should

create greater customer and
shareholder value by producing
a consistent top-quality product
at greater speed and lower
cost. Qur new presses not only
use next-generation technology,
but are also equipped with
state-of-the-art color-control

P ddsary B
2401 1
LT i

systems and robotics.

Delivering product faster,

with higher quality, less waste,
and more efficient throughput,
our new press and bindery
equipment firmly positions

our platform as a leader.

G






~Qur goal 1s to strengthen our
balance sheet and maintain
maximum financial flexibility.”

Our goal is to strengthen our

balance sheer in a responsible
manner and maintain maximum
financial flexibility for operating
and investing activities. Last year,
we raised $850M through two
Senior Note offerings, which
contributed to a greatly improved
liquidicy position. At year-end,
we had more than $900M available
under our committed revolving
credit facility, which matures in

January 2009.

The Company is also evaluating
strategic and tactical actions to
further strengthen the balance
sheet in order to return to a strong
free cash flow position and gain
additional financial flexibility.

A stronger balance sheet will
facilitate the execution of the
other elements of the five-point

eransformation plan.

Quebecor World is sctring goals
and objectives, both financial and
qualitative, that must be met as

we move forward to demonstrate

to all our stakeholders that we are
making our numbers and delivering
measurable results that demonstrate
our improving petformance. The
Company is communicating these
objectives both internally and
externally so that our people know
what is expected of them, and our
shareholders know how we are
progressing. We will be making
regular reports and updates on

the progress of our transformation
plan and setting additional targets

as we move forward.
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CATALOGERS
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OUR RETAIL INSERT SOLUTION

* Number one market position, producing
more than 40 billion copies annually,
distributed via newspapers, direct mail
and in stores

Coast-to-coast Norch American capacity
in both gravure and web offset press
technology

Continent-wide scale—and local

tesponsiveness

Only retail insert printer to offer a
“process neutral” solution

Process diversification and flexibility

OQUR STRENGTHS

Unique and powerful ways to design, produce
and deliver retail promotions that get attention,
increase store traffic, and drive sales

Strategic plant locations in North Ametica
complement our newspaper distribution matrix

to ensure the most timely and cost-effective delivery
of retail insert premotions

Electronically linked network, integrated
for seamless, fast and efficient multi-planc
manufacturing and distribution

Complete menu of value-added solutions
to help multi-channel retailers maximize

markering ROI

. [* !
Revenue in millions

Total revenue: $1,730.4

OUR DIRECT SOLUTION

Industry leader in direct mail

Leader with inline technology and variable
personalization

Two of the largest direct mail “mega
facilities” in the USA in Effingham, IL,
and Adlanta, GA

* One of the largest business partners of the
USPS, giving us the opportunity to leverage
our postal spend and help our customers
reduce their postage costs

OUR STRENGTHS
Personalized direct mail
Tradizional direct mail
Personalized catalog coverwraps

Magazine inserts, scented inserts

Promeotional games/sweepstakes—scrarch-off games,

mystery discounts, web traffic drivers, instant
winfenter to win

Abilicy to print, image and mail all in one facility

Focus on financial markets, DM agencies,
telecommunications and rerail industries

Ability to create unique “outside-the-box” formats

. . |
Revenue in millions ]

Total revenue: $222.4

OUR CATALOG SOLUTION

* Leading market position, preducing more
than 6 billion caralogs annually

* Quality printing, superior customer service
and extensive distribution services

* Optimal press efficiencies and
throughput in addition to the latest
in bindery sophistication

» Continuous improvement culture
and ongoing investment in our platform
to ensure flawless execution and

highest quality

* Parmer with catalogers on three continents

OUR STRENGTHS

Multi-plant, muldi-process manufacruring
pladform and unmatched production resources

Highest level of formar flexibility

Variable web widths and cut-offs combined with
additional cutting and folding options to create
atrention-getting catalogs in all shapes and sizes

Demographic binding capabilities to allow
marketers the flexibilicy to wilor their catalog,
personalize their message and zero in on key
target markets

Inline co-mail capabilities to help reduce
postage costs

Complementary multi-channel marketing solutions
10 help catalogers grow marketing ROI

Revenue in millions 1 ]

9

Total revenue: $1,012.9




Qur Products ana oervices

MAGAZINE PUBLISHING
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OUR MAGAZINE SOLUTION

Leading market position in every magazine
market segment in North America

Serving consumer, special interest magazines,
B2B, association publications, city and
regional magazines, cuseom publications

and specialty catalogs
Print for publishets on three continents

New wide-web press technology brings
quality and efficiency, enabling publishers
1o reduce cycle times

Demonstrated history of serving large and
small publishers with dedicated account-
management teams who understand their
customers’ businesses

OUR STRENGTHS

* An integrated, coast-to-coast North American

print network geared for fast, focused and
flexible print production and distribution

* Technology products providing front-to-back

solutions include premedia, facilities
management and co-mail

*» Customer portal offers on-line, 24/7 access
to critical information

* Experienced plant and sales personnel who
understand the magazine market

» Express co-mail program enables publishers
to reduced postage costs

! . aqpr b 1
Revenue in mI"AlOI;IS:

Total revenue: $1,581.2

OUR BOOK SOLUTION

Provides book manufacturing services
to the world’s leading publishers

Meets the needs of clients in all book
publishing segments

More services to more publishers in more
locations than anyone else

Global nerwork of integrated book

manufacturing services

Provides Larin America as an alternarive
to Asian sourcing, as it is lower cost vs.
North America and faster vs. Asia

OUR STRENGTHS

* Wide range of special setvices and
formats for trade, mass marker
and educational publishers

* [ntegrated operations in North America,
Latin America, Europe and Asia for
domestic and export markets

*» Focus on customer needs—dedicated
plants, targeted capital investment

* Full range of services to meet the
lifecydle requirements of books from
Content creation (o Consumers

* Flexibility and capacity to adapt to
specific customer requirements

Revenue in milli

Total revenve: $628.3

OUR DIRECTORY SOLUTION

Leading printer of directories in
North Ametica and Latin America

Supplies value-added services
to all major directory publishing

companies

Centralized and interconnected
operations result in one-point of
conreact for clients

Plants on four continents meet the
needs of directory publishers locally,
regionally and internationally

OUR STRENGTHS

* Global network, making it
an easy and seamless operation
to print and distribute in multiple
locations worldwide

¢ Product diversification and format
flexibility

* Multi-plant network means
reduced distribution costs

* Wide range of value-added services
and product enhancements designed
to generate additional revenue
streams for our clients

Revenve in millions: ]

o
“‘

Total revenuve: $390.8




JUI Froducts and oervices

HB

EFORE PRINT”

TeZE i

\%\g\_ . - [ . . ;;
i};"-‘\{ - T
S ——-”—_J—‘ e =
THE VALUE OF OUR GLOBAL PLATFORM T T !
- . . . R ETT e~

With over 120 planis located in North America, Earope Y -
and Latin America. Quebecor World has a aemendous - - ”
global reach and the ability o ofter customers the %*

advantages of manufaciuring in, or closer ta, foreign ‘
& 8 &

markets and suppore in expanding into new markees.




OUR PREMEDIA SERVICE

Offers custom solutions that help customers
achieve visually impressive results using che mast
efficient workflows and cost-effective means

Creative Group offers expertise in creative
concepts, design, copywriting and page
production

Prepress Group offers full color-management and

traditional prepress services

Premedia Technology Group develops,
customizes and supports software solutions

for content management, automated publishing
and workflow solutions

OUR STRENGTHS

Creative Group’s unique strength is its abiliry
to design and produce large, multi-version
caralogs

Prepress Group's color expertise is considered
the best in the industry

Premedia Technology Group uses consulting
approach to evaluate customer needs and
develop customized solutions

Premedia service is so valued and trusted
that we manage on-site premedia facilities
for a number of prestigious publishing
enterprises

Revenue in millionfsl

Total revenue: $257.1

-

OUR LOGISTICS SERVICE

Processes over 1.2 billion pounds of
caralogs, 770 million pounds of periodical
mail, 1.2 billion newsstand copies and

30 billion newspaper inserts annually

Provides on-time delivery to
320 postal destinations

Customer Service Group provides planning
support and real-time reporting

Unique inregrated mail-list services,
manufacturing and logistics placform
provides the most efficient, error-free
and fully trackable marketing solution

OUR STRENGTHS

Logistics network supply chain enables us
to be close to the end-marker user

Unparalleled mail list scheduling flexibility
and speed

Most flexible and efficient off-line co-mail
capabilities for magazine and caralog
customets, providing significant guaranteed
postal savings, with no loss of in-home
delivery performance

Customer-centric newsstand distribution
system accommodates a variery of sale date
needs while maintaining an efficient
distribution model

Revenue in millions| |

Totol revenue: $263.0




Corporate (Governance

At Quebecor World, we are committed 1o being a good corporate cit-
izen and to ensuring the highest possible standards in all aspects of our
activities. As a reflection of this commitment, every leader at Quebecor
World has personally committed to our Code of Business Conduct,
available on the Corporation’s Website at www.quebecorworld.com
(under the “Investors” tab).

We believe that sound corporate governance practices are essential
to the health of the Corporation and to enhance the Board’s abiliry to
govern and counsel management in generating long-term shareholder
value. Over the years, the Corporation has acted proactively, progressively
adopting forward-looking governance principles, creating corresponding
structures and implementing procedures to enable the Board to carry
out its duties in a highly effective manner and in accordance with best
governance principles and to permit the Board to evaluate and
improve its own performance. The Corporation believes that sound
corporate governance is an essential component of its operations and
that it is in the best interests of its shareholders, customers, people, and
partners to have policies and practices in place to ensure best-in-class
cOrporate governance practices.

The strengrhs of our governance start at the top, with a Chairman
leading a Board composed of a majority of independent directors, with
an independent Lead Director and with well-informed directors, who
ensure that standards exist to promote ethical behavior throughout the
organization, and seek continuous improvement in governance prac-
tices. These strengths are fostered throughour the organization by a
proactive governance culture that has consistently adopted industry-
leading standards. This culture permeates the Corporation, from the
office of the Chairman and that of the President and Chief Executive
Officer (the “CEQ"), on through the business divisions and subsidiaries
of the Corporation’s global network.

We are committed to adopting and adhering to corporate gover-
nance practices that either meet or exceed applicable Canadian and
U.S. corporate governance standards and are in line with best prac-
tices. As a Canadian reporting issuer with securities listed on che
Toronte Stock Exchange (the “TSX”) and the New York Stock
Exchange (the “NYSE"), the Corpotation complies with applicable
rules adopted by the Canadian Securitics Administrators and the rules
of the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission giving effect to the
provisions of the U.S. Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. ("S0X”)

Because we consider good corporate governance pracrices to bean
important factor in the overall success of the Corporation, we are
proud of our Corporate Governance Guidelines, which are also available
on our Website.

We abide by the spirit and the letter of the law and ensure that we
have strong controls and programs in place throughout the organiza-
tion. We have implemented the following best practices and believe
that this demonstrates that we are in the forefront of companies
improving and strengthening their corporate governance practices:

(i) we have a majority of independent directors serving on the
Board, a non-management Chairman and an independent Lead
Director, and our Board continuously renews itself with high-caliber
candidates with diverse skills and experience; {ii} our independent
directors and all the Board's standing Committees hold in-camera ses-
sions on a quarterly basis; (iii) all the members of the Board’s standing
committees are independent; (iv) our Board is responsible for serting
the tone for a culwure of integrity and compliance throughout the
Corporation and it has adopted a Code of Business Conduct thar
applies to all the directors and afficers throughout the organization; (v)

we continuously fine-tune the structure of our management team; (vi}
we ensurc that all of our employees understand and abide by our
Business Practice Guidelines; {vii) we have implemented an anti-trust
training program to ensure that everybody throughout the organiza-
tion follows good practices; (viii) we have implemented the procedures
pertaining to SOX requirements; (ix} we have an anti-discrimination
policy and we follow good employment practices; (x) we foster the
highest of ethical behavior and ensure that everyone is treated fairly,
including our customers, suppliers, and shareholders; (xi) we have a
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee that assists the
Board in developing, monitoring and overseeing the Corporation’s
corporate governance standards and procedures and we review our cor-
porate governance practices on a regular basis; (xii) we have an Anti-
Fraud Program and we have implemented a chird party Ethical Line
and secured Website for the reporting of possible breaches related to
accounting, internal control and auditing matters; and (xiii} we have
a policy prohibiting loans to our directors and officers.

As a “foreign private issuer” in the U.S., many of the NYSE cor-
porate governance rules (the “NYSE Rules”) are inapplicable to the
Corporation. However, we nevertheless voluntarily comply with maost
of the NYSE Rules. In fact, our corporate governance practices differ
significantly in only two ways from those required of U.S. domestic
issuers under the NYSE Rules.

The first difference is that under the NYSE Rules, a Compensation
Commirtee, composed solely of independent directors, should evaluare
the performance of the CEQ and based on this evaluation, either the
Committee or the Committee together with other independent directors
should determine the CEQ's compensation level. Instead, at the
Corporation, the Human Resources and Compensation Committee,
which is composed solely of independent directors, evaluates the CEQO in
light of certain objectives and recommends to the Board the CEO’s com-
pensation. The Board comprises 11 directors, of whom 7 are independent.

The second significant difference is that the NYSE Rules require
sharcholder approval of all equity compensation plans and any mate-
rial revisions to such plans, regardless of whether the securities to be
delivered under such plans are newly issued or purchased an the open
market, subject to a few limited exceptions. The TSX Company
Manual {the “TSX Rules”), on the other hand, does not require share-
holder approval in all those circumstances. Hence, only the creation of,
ot certain amendments to equity compensation plans which provide
for new issuance of securities are generally subject to shareholder
approval. The Corporation has set up certain plans and arrangements
that did not require shareholder approval under the TSX Rules and
whose material amendment does not require such approval. However,
if the Corporation was a U.S. domestic issuer, shareholder approval
might be required under the NYSE Rules.

Other than those two differences, we believe that our corporate
governance practices are substantially on par with those followed by
11.5. domestic companies listed on the NYSE.

We believe that we have an excellent corporate governance pro-
gram in place. We also believe that our corporate governance practices
anchor us in achieving our principal objective—the enhancement of
shareholder value. Because good corporate governance practices are
critical and a foundation for a great company, we are commitred to
improving our corporate governance practices on an ongoing basis in
order to respond to the evolution of best practices.
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Management's Discussion and Analysis

INTRODUCTION

The following is 2 discussion of the
consolidated financial condition and
results of operations of Quebecor World
Inc. (the “Company” or “Quebecor
World”) for the years ended December
31, 2006 and 2005, and it should be
read together with the Company’s
Consolidated Financial Statcements. The
Consolidated ~ Financial
Statements and ~ Management’s
Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”)
have been reviewed by the Company’s

annual

Audit Committee and approved by its
Board of Directors. This discussion
contains forward-looking information
that is qualified by reference to, and
should be read together with, the
discussion regarding forward-looking
statements that is part of this document.
Management determines whether or
not information is “material” based on
whether it believes a reasonable investor’s
decision to buy, sell or hold securities in
the Company would likely be influenced
or changed if the information were

omirtced or misstated.

PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL
INFORMATION

Financial data have been prepared in
conformity with Canadian generally

accepted  accounting  principles

(“Canadian GAADP”).

The Company reports on certain non-
GAAP measures that are used by
management to evaluate performance of
business segments. These measures used

in this discussion and analysis do not

have any standardized meaning under
Canadian GAAP. When used, these
measures are defined in such terms as to
allow the reconciliation to the closest
Canadian GAAP measure. Numerical
reconciliations are provided in figures 7
and 8. It is unlikely that these measures
could be compared to similar measures

presented by other companies.

The Company’s reporting currency is
the U.S. dollar, and its functional
currency is the Canadian dollar.

FORWARD-LOOKING
STATEMENTS
This MD&A includes

looking statements” that involve risks

“forward-

and uncertainties. All statements other
than statements of historical facts
included in this MD&A, including
statements regarding the prospects of
the industry, and prospects, plans,
financial position and business strategy
of the Company, may constitute
forward-looking statements within the
meaning of the U.S. Private Securities
Licigation Reform Act of 1995 and
Canadian securities legislation and
regulations. Forward-looking statements
generally can be identified by the use
of forward-looking terminology such
as “may”, “will”, “expect”, “intend”,
“estimate”,  “anticipate’,  “plan’,
“foresee”, “believe” or “continue” or
the negatives of these terms or
variations of them or similar
terminology. Although the Company
believes that the expectations reflected

in these forward-looking statements

are reasonable, it can give no assurance
that these expectations will prove to
have been correct. Forward-looking
statements do not take into account
the effect that transactions or non-
recurring or other special items
announced or occurring after the
statements are made have on the
Company’s business. For example,
they do not include the effect of
dispositions,  acquisitions,  other
business transactions, asset write-
downs or other charges announced or
occurring  after  forward-looking
statements are made. Investors and
others are cautioned that undue
reliance should not be placed on any

forward-looking statements.

For more informarion on the risks,
uncertainties and assumptions that
would cause the Company’s actual

differ

expectations, please also refer to the

results to from current

Company’s public filings available ar

WWW.SCC. GOV and

www.quebecorworld.com. In particular,
further details and descriptions of these

and other factors are disclosed in this
MD&A under the “Risks and

uncertainties related to the Company’s

www.sedar.com,

business” section and in the “Risk
Factors” section of the Company’s
current Annual Information Form.

The forward-looking statements in
this MD&A reflect the Company’s
expectations as of March 20, 2007
and are subject to change after this

date. The Company expressly



disclaims any obligation or intention
to update or revise any forward-
looking statements, whether as a
result of new informarion, furure
events or otherwise, unless required

by the applicable securities laws.

1. OVERVIEW

Quebecor World is a leading
provider of high-value, complete
print solutions to leading rerailers,
branded goods companies, catalogers
and other businesses with marketing
and advertising activities, and also to
leading publishers of magazines,
books, and other printed media. The
Company is a market leader in
almost all of the product categories
and in the principal geographic
markets of North America, Europe
and Latin America.

This market-leading position has
been built through a combination of
integrating acquisitions, investing in
key strategic rtechnologies, and
through a commitment to building
long-term partnerships with the
worlds  leading customers  of
marketing and advertising solutions

and print media.

1.1 INDUSTRY PROFILE

The Company operates in the
commercial printing industry, a
largely fragmented and capital-
North

American, European, and Latin

intensive

industry. The

American printing industries are
highly competitive in most product

categories and geographic regions.
Commercial printers tend to compete
within each product category based
on quality, range of services offered,
distribution capabilities, customer
service, price, availability of printing
time on appropriate equipment and
state-of-the-art rechnology.

Customers

Quebecor World’s customers are
notably retailers, catalogers, branded
goods companies, publishers, ad
agenctes, and companies implementing
significant marketing and advertising
campaigns. The activity of the
Company’s customers is seasonal with
a greater part of volume being realized
in the second half of the year,
primarily due to holiday marketing
and promotions, new product
launches,  back-to-school  ads,
marketing by retailers, increased
catalog activity, and the higher
number of magazine pages associated
with increased marketing in the

second half of the year.

The primary drivers affecting the
demand for the Company’s services
and solutions are consumer trends
and purchasing activity, marketing
and advertising dynamics, and
general economic growth rates. These
are the key drivers of the demand for
integrated print solutions because
they affect the level and type of multi-
channel markering, advertising and

merchandising acrivity.

Technology and electronic data
distribution

Technological changes continue to
increase the accessibility and quality
of electronic alternatives to traditional
delivery of printed documents
through the increased use of the
Internet and  the electronic

distribution of media content,
documents and data. While the
accelerarion of consumer acceptance
of such electronic media will probably
continue to increase, the value and
role of printed media should continue
to play a strong role in marketing,
advertising, and publishing. The
reason, the Company believes, is that
print media is an efficient and
effective vehicle to market and
advertise products. The Company
believes that in a multi-channel
marketing strategy, print should
continue to play a key and important
role. The Company believes that a
of the

purchases over the Internet are based

significant  percentage
upon a buying decision based upon a
catalog or retail insert, and that print
plays synergistic role with many of the

new technologies.

Consolidation

Consolidation of the printing
industry is ongoing because of global
overcapacity, which has led to
While

capacity uttlization in the printing

negarive price pressures.

industry has shown some positive

signs in recent months, the Company
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believes that overcapacity will remain
an issue and will likely continue to
impact prices in most print segments.
The overall decrease in number of
smaller companies and smaller plants
creates the opportunity for larger
companies and larger plants to
leverage their scale and scope, and
also to deploy more efficient
equipment. In addition, as customers
consolidate and require very large scale
marketing campaigns, the largest
players can provide an integrated,
continent-wide advertising campaign

delivered with local responsiveness.

1.2 BUSINESS PROFILE

Quebecor World has operations in the
United States, Canada, Argentina,
Chile,

Colombia, Finland, France, India,

Austria, Brazil,

Belgium,

Mexico, Peru, Sweden,

Spain,
Switzerland and the United Kingdom.

The Company offers its customers a
complete and integrated, high value-
added solution, of a broad range of
print and print related services. These
services consist of printing retail
inserts, magazines, catalogs, books,
directories, direct mail, and offering
other value-added services, such as
logistics, premedia, content and data
management, business outsourcing

and print marketing optimization.

The Company’s broad geographic
coverage and comprehensive offering

of print solutions coupled with its

flexible
platform

global

manufacturing

are  key competitive
strengths of Quebecor World that
enable the Company to remain a
market leader while maintaining a

low-cost position.

1.3 STRATEGY

Quebecor World’s commitment is to
create the highest value for its
customers, people and shareholders, a
higher
alternative. To achieve this objective,

value than any other
Quebecor World is focusing on being
its customers’ complete print solution
partner, by providing sophisticated,
turn-key solutions fully integrated
operations,

with its customers

marketing and advertising campaigns.

Quebecor World initiated a five-point
transformation plan to guide the
Company’s actions and improve its
performance. This five-point plan was
first introduced at the end of the
of 2006. The
plan

second quarter
Company’s transformation

focuses on five key areas:

(1)Customer Value: Build the
capability to create the highest
value for Quebecor World’s
customers by  providing

differentiated, superior-value

products and services to be the

customers’ complete print
solution partner;
(2)Best People: Develop the

Company’s people to be the best
that they can be, through a

comprehensive people development
program consisting of training, new
processes, and tools to build high-
performance teams;

(3) Great Execution: Implement a
continuous improvement program
to build
capabilities producing the most

superior  execution
efficient, most dependable, and
highest quality results. Institute
low-capital, high-return projects
to begin a new cycle of high cash
flow generation;

(4) Retooling Program: Complete
the Company’s retooling program,
which involves deploying state-of-
the-art technology in fewer but
larger facilities by running wider,
faster, more energy-efficient next-
generation technology, with a
focus on maximizing return on
capital;

(5)Strengthen the Balance Sheet:
Take the appropriate financing
actions to improve Quebecor
World’s financial flexibility by
strengthening the balance sheet.

This strategy focuses on positioning
Quebecor World to provide best-in-
class integrated print solutions with a
view of creating the highest value for
customers, people and shareholders,
an objective that is integral to the

future success of the Company.




Revenue by Print Service - Worldwide ($ millions)

For the quarter and year ended December 31 (Continuing Operations)
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Figure 1
2. OVERALL extent of this transformation plan will
PERFORMANCE AND be realized over time, actions have

OUTLOOK 2007

2.1 2006 AT A GLANCE

Quebecor World completed the most
extensive phase of its retooling plans
in 2006. Execution of the retooling
will be accelerated in the first half of
2007 as the Company’s objective is to
finalize the retooling in the first half
of 2007, before the traditional busy
season in the third and fourth
This is

previously planned, as the Company

quarters. faster than
will finalize the retooling in the first
half of 2007, instead of 2008. 2006
was also a year during which
Quebecor World embarked upon a

five-point transformation plan to

create ngRtCl’ customer and

shareholder value. Although the full

already been taken in 2006 to begin

the transformation process.

Customer Value

Quebecor World is commitred to
creating the highest value for its
customers by providing innovative and
complete marketing solutions through
targeted advertising campaigns, and
also for publishers by providing high
quality,

solutions. The Company is committed

efficient, on-time print
to creating high value solutions by
integrating a high quality print product
with before and after print services.
Before print, the Company offers
services such as premedia, data
optimization, content management,
and marketing campaign consulting.

After print, the Company offers
services such as complete logistics, co-
mailing, postage reduction, and real
time tracking and tracing. The
objective is to create significant value
for the Company’s customer through
these solutions, so that it can sell based
on value, and not based on price. The
Company believes that this will
contribute to improve margins. As an
example, the Company recently
renewed a multi-year contract with
Williams-Sonoma, Inc. The integrated
strategic  solutions proposed by
Quebecor World such as: press
efficiencies, quality and service, a
compelling  logistics ~ program,
personalization and mail-list services,
along with its understanding of the
multi-channel marketplace will create
additional value for Williams-Sonoma,
Inc. which in turn allows the Company
to build on a successful 25-year

relationship.

The

significant

Company also signed a
long-term  directory
printing agreement in October 2006
with Yellow Pages Group valued ar
more than CA$1 billion through the
year 2020. The agreement extends
existing directory printing contracts
in Eastern, Western and Central
Canada and increases the volumes
printed by Quebecor World. This
contract includes expanded value-
added before and after print services
including the use of Quebecor World
proprietary AdMagic software and
after press services including value-

added fulfillment.
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Best People
The Company has introduced a new
people and organization capability-
The

emphasizes creating high performance

building  program. plan
teams, building capabilities, helping
people to become the best that they
can be, providing feedback and
coaching, developing people, and
providing training programs and tools.
In 2006, Quebecor World kicked offa
comprehensive people development
program with reviews of key leaders
and has performed talent assessments
at various levels throughout the
World is

implementing a leadership talent

Company. Quebecor

development tool to help assess and
develop employees to ensure they
possess the capabilities to deliver the
greatest value to the Company’s
Each

person then creates a development

customers and shareholders.

plan and program designed to help
them to become the best that they

can be.

Great Execution
The

fundamental improvements in the

execution initiative drives
Company's operating capability at the
front line, with the objective that
Quebecor World delivers on the
benefits of its recent and significant
retooling investment. As part of this
initiative, the Company is creating a
Continuous Improvement Program
that will be deployed across the entire
platform. The program is tailored for
Quebecor  World’s

needs, and

combines the best in class continuous
improvement tools from Six Sigma,
Lean Manufacturing, Kaizan, 5 §,
and other leading processes. The
program is ‘designed to deliver real
results based on increasing efficiency,
reducing waste, improving quality,
reducing errors, enhancing speed, and
eliminating  structural  costs.
Quebecor World has identified the
facilities, projects, and leaders to drive
these and

programs began

implementing these continuous
improvement projects across the
Company. The Company is currently
implementing more than 40 projects,
and is making good progress on
its $100 million

objective.

improvement

Retooling Program

Quebecor World is deploying the latest
technology across its nerwork while
The
this

standardization, simplification, and

remaining  capacity-neutral.

Company  believes  that
focus on state-of-the-art technology
across its placform will deliver higher
value to its customers and higher
returns to its shareholders. This new

the

introduction of the Company’s new

equipment, combined with
continuous improvement program,
results in more productive operations
with lower operating costs, higher
quality, less waste, fewer people, and
fewer facilities that in the long run,
should generate a higher return on
invested capital.

In 2006, the Company continued to
implement its retooling program for
North America and Europe.
Quebecor World has accelerated the
pace however, with an objective of
completing the program ahead of
schedule in 2007, compared to the
previous plan's 2008 date. The
Company has invested approximately
$260 million with respect to the
North
approximately $164 million for the

American  plan  and

European  plan  for  capital
expenditures toraling $424 million
since the program began. The
deployment of such an extensive
program cannot be accomplished
without experiencing certain plant
closure and start-up  related
disruptions, which the Company

experienced in 2006.

To date, the Company has placed 19
firm orders for new presses as part of
its U.S. strategic retooling plan
announced in 2004. Four of these
presses were sold as part of a lease
financing which is further discussed
in the “Liquidity and Capital
Resources” section hereafter. The total
commitment for the remaining 15
presses amounts to approximately
$184 million, of which $148 million
has already been invested. Of these
presses, five were operational at the
end of 2005, nine began operations
in 2006 and one started up in the first
quarter of 2007.



As part of the European strategic plan
announced in 2005, the Company
has placed a total of five firm orders
The

these

for new presses. total

commitment for presses
amounts to approximately
$75 millton, of which $60 million has
Of these

presses, two became operational in

already been invested.

2006 and three were started early in
the first quarter of 2007.

In combination with the retooling
program, ongeing  restructuring
cfforts continue to optimize the
Company’s overall platform as it
concentrates on fewer but more
efficient facilities with lower fixed
costs. In 2006, Quebecor World
announced the closure of one facility
and the sale of another in France, the
reorganization of its U.S. Book
platform that resulted in the closing
of one facility and the reorganization
of its U.S. Magazine platform
resulting in the closure of two
in 2006 and
projected to be closed by the end of

the second quarter of 2007. These

facilities another

measures are further discussed in the
“Segment Results” and “Impairment
of Assets and
Initiatives” sections.

Restructuring

Strengthening the Balance Sheet

Quebecor World’s financial position was
strengthened in 2006, notably with the
issuance of approximately $850 million of
long-term  Notes, extending and
improving the Companys maturity
profile. Quebecor World also undertook a

lease financing of equipment currendy
being installed in North America, renewed
and extended two of its securitization
programs, complered a low cost
equipment financing and repurchased its
high-cost Series 4 Redeemable First
Preferred Shares. In November 2006,
Quebecor World suspended the dividend
on Multple and Subordinate Voting
Shares with a view to strengthening the
Company’s balance sheet. As at December
31, 2006, the Company had a liquidity
position of more than $900.0 million with
only $23.6 miltion drawn on is $ 1 billion
credit facility. All of these elements are
discussed in the “Liquidity and Capital
Resources” section. The Company is also
currently evaluating additional strategic
and tactical actions to improve the

balance sheer,

In summary, the year 2006 has been
difficult as the Company continues to
face highly competitive market
conditions coupled with temporary
disruptions and volume losses caused
by the installation of new presses,
removal of older presses and plant
shutdowns. As such, although the
retooling and restructuring  plans
mentioned above are starting to
generate some positive effects, they
have not yet translated into increased
operating income. As a resulr,
Quebecor World’s operating income
before  impairment of  assets,
restructuring and other charges and
goodwill  impairment  charge
(“Adjusted EBI'T”, Figures 7 and 8) is
lower than the corresponding period
in 2005. Management believes that the

transformation plan discussed above
will better position the Company to
face these conditions and drive greater
long-term performance.

2.2 OUTLOOK FOR 2007

The Company anticipates that 2007
will be a challenging year as it will
continue to face highly competitive
market conditions. In response, the
Company 1s successfully implementing
its five-point transformation plan in
order to create the highest value for
its customers,
shareholders.
described previously in Sections 1.3

people,  and
The program is

and 2.1. The Company is making
progress on all five points within the
transformation plan, in order to
deliver on its targeted benefits. These
benefits  are  expected to  be
$100 million in reduced costs and
higher efficiencies from the Execution
initiative, and $300 million in new
high value revenues from the
Customer Value initiative, both run

rates by the end of 2008.

The Company announced thar as
part of its retooling program, it has
committed to finalize the retooling in
the first half of 2007, significantly
carlier than previously planned by
2008. This acceleration is part of the
strategy to complete the retooling
quickly, and to finish it before its
customers’ busy season in the third
and fourth quarters. This will have
positive benefits and results for the
second half of 2007 bur will result in
increased

inefficiencies,  plant
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disruptions, waste, reduction in press

speeds, and overall higher costs in the
first half of the year.

The Company’s operations in the
European segment are expected to
continue to be affected by the difficult
marker conditions throughout the year
2007, mainly in France and the
United Kingdom. Quebecor World
will continue o implement its
retooling plan in this platform that will
deliver improved execution in the
long term.

3. FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Company assesses performance
based on operating income before
impairment of assets, restructuring and
other charges and goodwill impairment

charge (“Adjusted EBIT”, (Figures 7
and 8)). The following operating
analyses are before impairment of
assets, restructuring and other charges
and goodwill impairment charge,
except where otherwise indicated. The
review focuses only on continuing

operations.

3.1 ANNUAL REVIEW

The following selected rthree-year
consolidated financial information
has been derived from and should be
the
Consolidated financial statements of

read in conjunction with

Quebecor World for the three—year
period ended December 31, 2006.
Certain comparative information has
been reclassified on a basis consistent
with the 2006 presentation.

Selected Annual Information {Continuing Operations) ($ milliens, eifxcepl per share data]

Year 2006

The Company’s consolidated revenues
for 2006 were $6.09 billion, down
3.1% from $6.28 biilion in 2005.
Excluding the impact of currency
translation (Figure 3), revenues were
$6.02 billion for 2006, down 4.2%
compared to 2005. The situation is
due mainly to decrease in volumes and
continued price pressures as further
discussed in the “Segment results”
section. In 2006, Adjusted EBIT was
$241.5 million, down 32.4% from
$357.5 million in 2005. Adjusted
EBIT margin was 4.0% for 2000,
down from 5.7% in 2005.

Paper sales, excluding the effect of
currency translation, decreased by 2.1%
in 2006, compared to 2005. Although

Years ended December 31 1%

2006 2005 2004

Consolidated Results
Revenues S 6,086.3 $ 6,283.3 $6,339.5
Adijusted EBITDA 579.9 688.7 8222
Adijusted EBIT 241.5 357.5 471.1
IAROCC 111.3 4.2 115.6
Goodwill impairment charge - 243.0 -
Operating income 130.2 203 3555
Net income {loss} from continuing operations 30.6 (148.8) 139.9
Net income {loss) 28.3 (162.4) 143.7
Financial Position
Total assets @ 5,823.4 5,700.4 6,265.3
Total long-term debt and convertibles notes 2,132.4 1,855.1 1,950.1
Per Share Data
Earnings (loss)

Basic and diluted {0.03) (1.43} 0.77

Adjusted diluted 0.64 0.98 1.45
Dividends on preferred shares 1.46 1.33 1.26
Dividends on equity shares 0.30 0.56 0.52
IARQC: Impairment of assets, restructuring and other charges Figure 2

Adjusted: Defined os before IAROC and before goodwill impairment charge

1 Annual information for 2004 consisted of 53 weeks whereas information for 2005 and 2006 consisted of 52 weeks.

14 2005 and 2004 amounts have been revised. See Note 1 ko Consolidated financial statements.




Impact of Foreign Currency ($ millions)

Periods ended December 31, 2006

Three months Twelve months

Foreign currency favorable impact an revenues $ 300 $ 6546
Foreign currency unfovorable impact on operating income __$__ {0.8) $  (3.2)
Figure 3

the variance in paper sales has an impact
on revenues, it has litle impact on
operating income because the cost is
generally passed on to the customer.
Most of the Companys long-term
contracts with its customers include
price-adjustment clauses based on the
cost of materials in order to minimize the
effects of fluctuation in the price of paper.

Cost  of sales for 2006 was
$5.11 billion, a 1.7% decrease
compared to $5.20 billion in 2005. The
decrease is explained mostly by a
decrease in fixed plant costs, a decrease
in labor costs and a decline in
consumables that were partly offset by
higher energy costs. Gross profit margin
was 16.0% for 2006 compared to
17.2% in 2005. Currency translation
did not have a significant impact on
gross profit margin for the year 2006.

Selling, general and administrative
expenses for 2006 were $393.8 million,
essentially constant compared to
$396.8 million in 2005. Excluding the
unfavorable impact of currency
translation of $8.2 million, selling,
general and administrative expenses
decreased by 2.8% compared to last
year. The decrease in salaries and

benefits resulting from the Company’s

restructuring initiatives was partly
offset by an increase in consulting fees
for compliance procedures related to
the U.S. Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
(the “Sarbanes-Oxley Act”).

Depreciation and amortization expenses
were $308.6 million in 2006 compared
with $304.2 millien in 2005. Excluding
the impact of currency translation,
depreciation and amortization remained
essentially constant in 2006 compared
to last year due to increased depreciation
charges on assets to be decommissioned
which were offset by decreases due to
impairment charges on long-lived assets

taken in previous years.

Securitization fees increased
$7.2 million, for a total of $31.0 million
for 2006 compared to $23.8 million in
2005. The increase was mainly due to
higher interest rates underlying the
program fees. Servicing revenues and
expenses did not have a significant
impact on the Company’s results.

For the year 2006, the Company

recorded  impairment  of  assets,
restructuring and other charges of
$111.3  million, compared to
$94.2 million in 2005. The charges for

the year were mainly related to the

closure and consolidation of facilities in
North America and Europe and also
included impairment charges on long-
lived assets mainly in North America as
well as initiatives from previous years.
These measures are described in the
“Impairment of assets and restrucruring

Initiatives” section.

The Company did not record a
goodwill impairment charge in 2006
($243.0 million for the European
segment in 2005).

Financial expenses were $134.2 million
in 2006 compared to $119.0 million
in 2005. The variance of $15.2 million
was mainly explained by higher interest
rates and a higher level of debt offset by
an increase of inrerest capitalized to the
cost of equipment and net gains on

foreign exchange.

Income tax recovery was $35.4 million
in 2006, compared to an income tax
expense of $50.4 million in 2005.
Income tax recovery  before
impairment of assets, restructuring and
other charges was $11.4 million
compared to an income tax expense of
$69.6 million in 2005 on the same
basis. The income tax recovery for
2006 was mainly due to losses incurred
in jurisdictions in which profits were

generated in 2005.

Loss per share was $0.03 for 2006
compared to $1.43 in 2005. These
results incorporated impairment of
assets, restructuring and other charges
and goodwill impairment charge, net
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of income taxes, of $87.3 million, or
$0.67 per share compared with
$318.1 million, or $2.41 per share in
2005. Excluding the effect of
impairment of assets, restructuring
and other charges and goodwill
impairment charge, diluted earnings
per $0.64 in 2006
compared with $0.98 in 2005.

share was

Year 2005
The Companys consolidated
revenues  for 2005  were

$6.28 billion, a 0.9% decrease when
compared to $6.34 billion in 2004.
Excluding the favorable impact of
currency translation, revenues were
down 2.1% due to a decrease in
volume and continued pressure on
prices in North America and Europe.
In 2005, Adjusted EBIT decreased
by 24.1% to $357.5 million
compared to $471.1 million in
2004. Operating margin, on the
same basis, decreased to 5.7% from
7.4% in 2004. The significant
decreases in both operating income
and margin were due mainly to the
decrease in volume and price
pressures that were parrially offset by
cost containment initiatives and

headcount reduction.

Paper sales, excluding the effect of
currency translation, increased by
4.7% in 2005 when compared to the
same period in 2004. The increase was
mainly due to the increase in paper
sales to customers and the increase in

paper prices compared to 2004.

Cost of sales in 2005 increased by
2.1% compared to 2004, mostly
explained by an increase in paper
sales, as described above and an
increase in utilities costs during the
year that were partly offset by a
reduction in labor costs as a result of
cost containment initiatives. Gross
profit margin was 17.2% in 2005
19.6% in 2004,

Currency translation did not have a

compared 1o

significant impact on gross profit

margin in 2005.

Selling, general and administrative
expenscs $396.8  million
compared to $431.5 million in 2004,
of $34.7 million.
Excluding the unfavorable impact of

were
a decrease

currency translation of $7.4 million,
selling, general and administrative
expenses favorable by
$42.1 million in 2005, compared to

the previous year. The savings were

Wwere

explained by workforce reductions,
which contributed to the decrease in
salaries and benefits. A reduction in
bonuses, stock options, as well as
travel and entertainment expenses

also contributed to the variance.

Securitization fees totaled $23.8 million
compared to $14.5 million in 2004.
The increase was mainly due to higher
market interest rates underlying the
program fees. Servicing revenues and
expenses did not have a significant
impact on the Company’s resuits.

amortization

Depreciation  and

expenses were $304.2 million in 2005
and $324.9 million in 2004.
Excluding the impact of currency
translation,  depreciation  and
amortization decreased by 7.0% in
2005 as compared to 2004, as a result
of impairment charges on long-lived

assets booked in 2005 and 2004.

The

restructuring initiatives in 2005 and

Company continued its

recorded impairment of assets,
restructuring and other charges of
$94.2 million, which reflected closure
of facilities in North America and
Europe, further workforce reductions,
and additional impairment of assets

in Europe.

The Company also concluded that
goodwill in the European segment was

impaired and recorded a $243.0
million impairment charge in 2005.

Financial expenses were $119.0 million
in 2005, compared to $133.1 million
in 2004. Two elements lowered the
2005 financial expenses: a lower
average debt combined with the
increase in interest capitalized to the

cost of equipment.

Income taxes were $50.4 million in the
year 2005 compared to $77.0 million
in  2004.

impairment of assets, restructuring and

Income taxes before

other charges and  goodwill

impairment charge were $69.6 million
in 2005 compared to $101.9 million
in 2004. The decrease was mostly




explained by a decrease in profits
before tax in jurisdictions with higher
overall tax rates,

For the year ended December 31, 2005,
the Company reported a loss per
share of $1.43 compared to diluted
earnings per share of $0.77 in 2004.
These results included impairment of
assets, restructuring and other charges
and a goodwill impairment charge of
$318.1 million, net of income taxes,
or $2.41 per share compared with
$90.8 million, net of income taxes,
or $0.68 per share in 2004.
Excluding the effect of impairment
of assets, restructuring and other

charges, and goodwill impairment

charge, 2005 diluted earnings per
share were $0.98 compared with
$1.45 in 2004.

3.2 FOURTH QUARTER
REVIEW

The Company’s consolidated revenues
for the fourth quarter of 2006 were
$1.62 billion, a 2.6% decrease when
compared to $1.66 billion for the
same period in 2005. Excluding the
impact of currency translation (Figure
3}, revenues were $1.59 billion for the
quarter, down 4.4% compared to
2005 as a result of temporary
restructuring dislocations and plant
and

closures affecting  volumes

continued price pressures as further

discussed in the “Segment results”
section. In the fourth quarter of 2006,
Adjusted EBIT decreased by 15.0% w0
$74.2 million compared to
$87.3 million in 2005. Adjusted
EBIT margin was 4.6% for the fourth
quarter, down from 5.3% for the same
period in 2005.

Paper sales, excluding the effect of
currency translation, increased by
3.4% for the fourth quarter of 2006,

compared to the same period in 2005.

Cost of sales for the fourth quarter of
2006 decreased by 2.9% to $1.35 billion
compared to $1.39 billion for the
corresponding period in 2005. The

Segmented Results of Continving Operations ($ millions)

Selected Performance Indicators

nter-sagment

North America Europe Lafin America and Others Total
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
Three months anded
Dacember 31

Revenues $ 1,284.1 $1.3217 $ 2473 3 2767 § 68.8 $ 645 5§ 02 $ 1 $1,6204 | 31,6640
Adjusted EBITDA 157.0 153.4 7.2 103 4.1 6.5 0.1) (2.5) 174.2 167.9
Adjusted EBIT 80.0 89.2 {8.9) (2.8) 3.2 37 (0.1 (2.8} 74.2 87.3
IAROC 35.6 2¢ 10.6 9.0 - - - - 44,2 1.9
Goodwill impairment charge - - - 243.0 - - - - - 243.0
Operating income [lass) 44.4 84.3 (19.5) {254.8} 3.2 37 (0.1) 2.8) 28.0 (167.6)
Adijusted EBITDA margin 122 % 11.6% 2.7 % 37 % 8.9 % 10.0% 10.5 % 101 %
Adjusted EBIT margin 62% 6.8% (3.3)% .0 % 4.7 % 57 % 4.6% 53%
Operating margin 5% 65% 7.31%  P2.1% 4.7 % 57% 7% (100 %
Capital expenditures 1 $ 73.4 $ 1115 § 171 $ 4638 s 2.7 $ 1.8 5 1.6 5 - § 948 [§ 1770
Change in nencash balances

related fo operations, cash

flow {outflow)! (75.5) 212.7 {7.2) 0.9) @.1 1.0 {23.5) [16.4] (115.3) 196.4
Years enced Decamber 31
Revaruas 5 4,821.7 $4,881.1 $1,025.4 $1,162.9 $239.3 $ 2417 s {(0.1) $(2.4) [s5s,086.3 |$4,283.3
Adjusted EBITDA 529.9 415.7 37.0 535 21.4 239 (8.4) (4.4) 579.9 4887
Adjusted EBIT 257.8 353.5 (12.5) (3.6) 10.0 13.0 (8.8) (5.4} mm.s 357.5
IAROC 63.0 224 45.1 709 1.2 0.7 - - ma 94,2
Goodwill impairmant charge - - - 243.0 . - - - - 243.0
Operating income [ioss) 1928 330.9 (62.6) (317.5) 8.8 12.3 (8.8) (5.4) 130.2 20.3
Adjusted EBITDA margin 11.0% 126 % 3.6 % 4.6 % 9.0 % 9.9 % 5% 11.0%
Adjusted EBIT margin 5.3% 72% % [0.3) % a2% 54% 2.0 % 57%
Qrerating margin A0 % 48 % (6.1} o 27.31% 3.7% 51 % 2.1 % 03%
Capital expanditures 1 5 2079 § 2854 $ 755 $ 1033 $ 2941 $ 4 § 13 $ 02 5 3138 $ 39490
Change in noncash balances

related to operations, cash

flow (outflow)ii (182.4) 88.9 2.1} (29.1) (6.8} {18.0) 1.8 [27.5] (179.5) 143
Adjusted: Defined os betere IARCC and before goodwill impairment charge Figure 4

IARQC: Impairment of assets, restructuring and other charges
1 including beth continuing and discontinued operations
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decrease compared to 2005 is explained
mostly by decreases in sales volume and
labor costs. Gross profit margin was
16.6% in the fourth quarter of 2006
compared to 16.3% in 2005. Currency
translation did not have a significant
impact on gross profit margin in the

fourth quarter of 2006.

Selling, general and administrative
expenses for the fourth quarter of
2006 were $100.4 million compared
with $102.9 million in 2005.
Excluding the unfavorable impact of
currency translation of $2.0 million,
selling, general and administrative
expenses decreased by 4.4% compared
to the same period last year. The
decrease in salaries and benefits
the

restructuring initiatives was partly

resulting from Company’s
offset by an increase in consulting fees

for compliance procedures related to
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act.

Depreciation  and  amortization
expenses were $85.2 million in the
fourth quarter of 2006 compared with
$73.2 million in 2005. Excluding the
unfavorable impact of currency

$1.6

amortization

translation  of million,

depreciation  and
increased by 14.2%. The increase
compared to the same quarter last year
was due to accelerated depreciation
charges taken for equipment that will

be decommissioned.

Securitization fees totaled $8.4 million
for the fourth quarter of 2006 up

from $7.7 million for the fourth
quarter of 2005. The increase for the
quarter was mainly due to higher
interest rates underlying the program
fees. Servicing revenues and expenses
did not have a significant impact on

the Company’s results.

During the fourth quarter of 2000, the
Company recorded impairment of
assets, restructuring and other charges
of $46.2 million, compared to $11.9
million last year. The amount for the
quarter was mainly related to the
closure and consolidation of facilities
in North America and Europe as well
as the impairment of long-lived assets
in North America. These measures are
described in the “Impairment of assets

and restructuring initiatives” section.

The Company did not record a
goodwill impairment charge in 2006
whereas a $243.0 million goodwill
impairment charge was recorded for

the European segment in 2005.

Financial expenses were $39.4 million
in the fourth quarter of 2006,
compared to $27.8 million in 2005.
The variance of $11.6 million was
mainly explained by higher interest
rates and a higher level of debr offset

by net gains on foreign exchange.

Income tax recovery was $23.4 million
in the fourth quarter of 2006
compared to an income tax expense of
$9.6 million in 2005. Income tax
recovery before impairment of assets,

restructuring and other charges and
goodwill impairment charge was
$10.3 million in the fourth quarter of
2006 compared to an income tax
expense of $21.5 million for the same
period last year. The decrease in
income tax expense in the fourth
quarter of 2006 was mainly due to
losses incurred in jurisdictions in

which profits were generated in 2005.

For the fourth quarter ended December
31, 2006, the Company reported
earnings per share of $0.03 compared to
a loss per share of $1.64 in 2005. These
results incorporated impairment of
assets, restructuring and other charges
and goodwill impairment charge, net of
income taxes, of $33.1 million or $0.25
per share compared with $243.0 million
or $1.85 per share in 2005. Excluding
the effect of impairment of assets,
restructuring and other charges and
goodwill impairment charge, the
fourth quarter of 2006 resulted in
diluted earnings per share of $0.28
compared with $0.21 in the same
period of 2005.

3.3 QUARTERLY TRENDS

Adjusted EBITDA trend

For all four quarters of 2006, the
positive effects of restructuring
initiatives did not translate into an
increase of operating income.
However, Adjusted EBITDA increased
in the fourth quarter of 2006
compared to the same period in 2005

the

benefits of

as a result of




Selected Quarterly Financial Data [Continuing Operations} (in millions of dollars, except per share data]

2006 2005
Q4 Q3 Q2 (] ] Q4 Q3 Q2 (&)

Consolidated Results
Revenues $1,620.4 $1,546.2 $1,4522 51,4875 $1.6640 $15772 § 1,491.1 $1,551.0
Adijusted EBITDA 170.2 150.6 130.6 128.5 167.9 178.7 167 .4 174.7
Adijusted EBIT 74.2 67.3 50.4 49.6 87.3 97.2 84.4 88.6
IAROC 456.2 1.6 314 2211 11.9 17.2 31.8 33.3
Goodwill impairment charge - - - - 243.0 - - -
Operating income (loss} 28.0 55.7 19.0 27.5 [167.6) 80.0 526 55.3
Net income {loss) from

continuing operations 11.6 19.2 (6.5) 6.3 {205.0) 30.9 9.5 15.8
Net income {loss) 11.4 18.9 (7.2) 5.2 {210.6) 29.7 2.0 16.3
Per Share Data
Earnings {foss}

Diluted s 003 $§ 009 S (011) S (0.09) $ (164 $ 016 % $ 005

Adijusted diluted $ 028 $ 047 $ 010 S 0.09 § 021 §$ 028 % 022 $§ 027
Adjusted: Defined os before IARCC and before goodwill impairment charge Figure 5

IAROC: Impairment of assets, restructuring and other charges

improvement n operations,

and
reductions, which were partly offset by

restructuring  benefits, cost
pricing and volume decline. Fourth
quarter results were also less impacted
by restructuring activities as they were
reduced in the fourth quarter to ensure
that the operations delivered on
customer needs during the busiest
of the Overall
performance for the last quarter of
2005 and the four quarters of 2006
was also affected by operational

period year.

inefficiencies mainly in plants involved
in the installation of new equipment
or press closures. In all four quarters of
2006, the Company continued to face
difficult market conditions, resulting
in price erosion worldwide, decreased
volume in certain business groups and
it continued to be affected by
temporary inefficiencies related to the

retooling and restructuring efforts.

Seasonal impact

Revenues generated by the Company
are seasonal with a greater part of
volume being realized in the second half
of the fiscal year, primarily due to the
higher number of magazine pages, new
producr launches, back-to-school ads,
marketing by retailers, increased catalog
activity, and holiday promotions.
‘Therefore, an analysis of the consecutive
quarters is not a true measurement of
the revenue trend (Figure 5).

TIAROC impact

Impairment of assets, restructuring and
other charges have been a major focus
of the Company’s cost reduction
initiatives undertaken during the
previous years that involved a reduction
in workforce, closure or downsizing of
facilities, decommissioning of under-
performing asscts, lowering of overhead
expenses, consolidating  corporate

functions and relocating sales and

administrative offices into plants. This
determined focus on cost containment
has reduced the Company’s long-term
cost structure and will improve

efficiency across the platform.

Goodwill impairment charge
impact

On January 18, 2006, the Company
announced the completion of its
annual goodwill impairment test. The
European reporting unit suffered
from poor marker conditions
throughout 2005, namely continued
price erosion and decreased volumes,
as well as several production
inefficiencies and the loss of an
important client. As a result, the

the
carrying amount of goodwill for the

Company concluded that
European reporting unit was not fully
recoverable and a pre-tax impairment
charge of $243.0 million was taken at

December 31, 2005.
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fourth quarter was a result of increased
paper and material sales partially offsec
by decreased volume and negarive price
pressures. The higher full year 2006
revenues were mainly attriburable to
volume growth due to the addition of
new customers, such as Bass Pro Shops
and Brookstone. Sales volume with
several current key customers also
increased in the Catalog group in 2006.

In line with the strategy to accelerate
and to finalize the retooling in 2007,
the

November

Company announced in
2006  the
consolidarion of the acrual platform
highly

efficient facilities that will provide

further

into automated, more
customers with a coast-to-coast,
state-of-the-art catalog platform.
The the

closure of its facility in Elk Grove

Company completed
Village, Illinois in the first quarter of
2007, and is concentrating the
restructuring and retooling into the
first half of 2007, which will benefit
the second half of 2007 and the
future quarters. This accelerated
closure should positively impact the
later part of 2007, but should
negatively impact the first and
second quarters. This initiative is
further discussed in the “Impairment
restructuring

of assets and

initiatives” section.

In February 2007, the Company
renewed a significant multi-year

contract with Williams-Sonoma, Inc.,,

to continue to print a majority of their
catalog circulation. The renewal is a
direct result of the Company’s
investment in new technologies and its
commitment to creating higher value
for its customers through a complete

offering of marketing solutions.

Book & Directory

Book & Directory revenues for the
fourth quarter of 2006 were
$159.2 million, down 12.0% from
$180.9 million in 2005. For the year,
revenues were $675.2 million in 2006,
down 6.2% from $719.6 million in
2005. The decrease in quarterly
revenues was duc primarily to
reduced book manufacturing capacity
related to temporary inefficiencies
resulting from the retooling plan, a
plant closure, and the transfer of
certain book production to Latin
America, all resulting in lower
volumes in the Book group. As part
of this plan, the Company has
proceeded with the closure of its plant
in Kingsport, Tennessee, which was
completed at the end of the third
quarter of 2006. Directory revenues
were essentially constant year-over-
year, and down 3.7% for the fourth
quarter due to a change in the paper

contract pass through.

In April 2006, the

announced its plan to reorganize and

Company

retool its Book platform in order to
reduce fixed costs, reduce staff,

improve customer service, maximize

and
efficiency. The plan provides for

asset  utilization, increase
investments in new state-of-the-art
equipment and the decommissioning
or relocation of certain existing assets.
As part of the reorganization, the
Book group has continued to
implement its retooling plan with the
addition of two G4-page presses that
are now fully operational. These
presses, along with the two similar
presses installed in the fourth quarter
of 2005, will better serve clients,
particularly where runs are shorr, rime
to market is the priority and quality
performance is critical. Also, as an
alternative to outsourcing in Asia, the
Company offers a seamless and cost
effective service for more labor-
intensive products from its Latin
American platform. In addition,
Quebecor World intends to install
two new presses for the mass-market
segment of the Book industry in the
first half of 2007 with an expected
starc-up in July 2007.

While the Company received only a
fraction of the expected benefits
2006,

permanent staffing levels across the

from these efforts in
Book Group are significantly lower
than they were a year ago. These
cost reductions and capital
improvements have resulted in a
more efficient platform that is
positioned to deliver improved

resules in 2007.




In March 2007, the Company
announced the signing of an
exclusive multi-year agreement for
the printing of mass market
paperback books with Harlequin
Enterprises Litd. Quebecor World’s
full-service solution for Harlequin
Enterprises Ltd. ensures they receive
a consistent and top-quality preduct,
on-time to meet their precise onsale
and subscriber distribution schedule.
This volume will be printed on new
presses that the

are part of

Company's retooling program.

Direct

Direct revenues for the fourth
quarter of 2006 were $98.9 million,
up 8.9% from $90.9 million in
2005. On a full year basis, revenues
were $367.9 million in 2006, up
4.8% from $351.0 million in 2005.
Revenue increased in the fourth
quarter due to attractive growth in
the market and new volumes. On a
full year basis, revenues increased
due to a favorable change in product
mix and higher paper sales, which
were partly offset by decreased
volumes from an important
customer. Based on a leadership
position in direct marketing, the
Company increased its sales with key
customers, such as Capiral One,

Pier 1 and American Express.

Canada
The Canadian business group
operates mainly in the Rerail,

Magazine, Catalog and Directory
markets. Canadian revenues for the
fourth quarter of 2006 were
$243.7 million, down 6.7% from
$261.1 million in 2005. On a full
year revenues  were
$893.3 million in 2006, down by
2.1% from $912.2 million in 2005.

The decrease in revenues for the

basis,

quarter and the year are largely
attributed to the impact of foreign
exchange on the Canadian print
market. Excluding the impact of
currency translation and the effect of
paper sales, revenues decreased by
5.2% for the last quarter of and by
5.0% for the full year 2006 compared
to the same periods in 2005 due to
reductions in market prices and
volumes as a result of the impact of a
negative move in exchange rates
between the U.S. and Canada, and
the general market conditions. The
decrease in prices is mainly
attributable to less favorable foreign
exchange contracts on sales to U.S.
customers as well as ongoing pricing
pressures from major contractual
customers. Volume was down in the
fourth quarter, mostly due to
decreased volume in Caralog and the
sale of a facility in Quebec earlier this
vear. For the full year, the volume
decrease is mainly due to lower Retail
and Catalog volume combined with

the sale of a facility in Quebec.

In October 2006, the Company

signed a  significant long-term

directory printing agreement with
Yellow Pages Group valued at more
than CAS$1 billion through the year
2020, which extends existing printing
contracts in Eastern, Central and
Western Canada and increases the
volumes printed by Quebecor World.

Other Revenues
Other sources of revenues in North
include and

America logistics

premedia.

Logistics revenues for the fourth
quarter of 2006 were $90.0 million,
down 3.0% from $92.8 million in
2005. On a full year basis, revenues
were $335.0 million in 2006, up
4.3% from $321.2 million in 2005.
The revenue decrease for the fourth
quarter was attributable to a shift in
product mix compared to the same
period in the prior year. On a full
year basis, the revenue increase is due
to increased value based on the
Company’s integrated end-to-end
solution in providing value-added
services, such as the services offered
at the new Co-Mailing facility in
Bolingbrook, IMinois. This new
produce

facility continued to

increased revenues, volume and
margin over prior year, supporting
the strong growth. Overall, product
mix compared to prior year
improved with a shift towards higher
margin services. These favorable
impaces were coupled with cost
containment and strategic cost

savings initiatives, including more
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As at December 31, 2006, the balance
of the restructuring reserve was $46.9
million. The total cash disbursement

related to this reserve is expected to be
$42.3 million for the year 2007.

In January 2007, the Company
announced its intention to close its
facility in Lincoln, Nebraska in
connection with its U.S. Magazine
transformation  plan.  Customer
volume will be transferred to other
facilities in the Companys U.S.
magazine platform. The Company
expects to complete the closure of the
facility in the second quarter of 2007,
affecting approximately 550 employees
at the Lincoln, Nebraska facility. The
Company expects to record a severance
charge of approximately $4.2 million
in connection with this closure in the

first quarter of 2007.

The Company also announced in
March 2007 that it had completed
the sale of its facilicy in Lille, France.
The had
announced, in 20006, its intention to

the
comprised of four 2.10 meter gravure

Company initially

close facility, which was
presses. Under the terms of the sale
agreement, the facility will continue
to operate two gravure presses and
retain approximately 100 of the 230
employee positions. The facility will
operate in markets that are non-core
to the Company. The sale agreement,
and the severance for the employees
who are leaving the Company, have
established the

co-operation  and

been with

participation,

approval of the appropriate labor and
government representatives. The
Company expects to record a
restructuring charge of approximately
$4.4 million in the first quarrer of

2007 in connection with this sale.

4. LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL
RESOURCES

4.1 OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash provided by operating
activities {3 millions)

Years ended December 31
2006 2005
$ 236.0 $ 4695

Cash flow from operating activities was
$236.0 million in 2006, compared to
$469.5 million in 2005. The decrease
was mainly attributable to lower
Adjusted EBITDA in 2006, a reduction
in net income tax payable balances and
a decrease in pension liabilities.

The deficiency in working capital was
$76.0 million at December 31, 2006,
compared to $100.4 million ar
December 31, 2005. The change is
due mainly to an increase in trade
receivables net of securitization and in
income tax receivables that were partly
offset by an increase in trade payables
and accrued liabilities. The Company
manages its trade payables in order to
take advantage of prompt payment
Also, the

maximizes the use of its accounts

discounts. Company
receivable securitization program, since
the cost of these programs is lower

than that of irs credit facility. The

amount of trade receivables under
securitization varies from month to
month, based on the previous month’s
volume (for example, December

securitization is based on receivables at

the end of November).

4.2 FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Cash provided by (used in)

financing activities ($ millions)

Yaars ended December 31
2006 2005
$ 07 $ {250.9)

On December 29, 2006, Quebecor
World purchased at par $54.5 million
of Senior Private Notes, pursuant to
a tender offer announced on
November 30, 2006. In total, the
Company repurchased $36.0 million
in aggregate principal amount of the
Senior Notes 8.54% and 8.69%, and
$18.5 million of the Senior Notes
8.42% and 8.52%.

On 18, 2006, the
Company issued at par $400.0 million

December

aggregate principal amount of 9.75%
Senior Notes due January 15, 2015.
The net proceeds from the issuance of
the 9.75%
$392.4 million and were used to early
discharge in full the $150.0 million
Senior Debentures (7.25%), maturing

Senior Notes were

in January 2007, plus accrued interest
and for general corporate purposes,
including the reduction of other
indebtedness and the completion of
the $54.5 million tender offer in

December 2006 mentioned above.




On July 28, 2006 Quebecor World
entered into an agreement to arrange
a lease financing of printing presscs
and related equipment currendy being
installed in various facilities in North
America. On December 19, 2006, the
Company received $69.7 million in
funding under the lease agreement, of
which $20.1 million is included in
long-term debt. The Company
expects to receive an additional
amount of $15.9 million under this
program in 2007.

The 7.20% Senior Notes for a principal
amount of $250.0 million matured on
March 28, 2006, On March 6, 2006,
the Company issued at par $450.0
million aggregate principal amount of
8.75% Senior Notes due March 15,
2016. Ner proceeds from the issuance
of the 8.75% Senior Notes were $442.7
million and were used to repay in full
the 7.20% Senior Notes and for general
corporate  purposes, including the
reduction of other indebtedness.

On January 16, 2006, the Company
announced it had concluded an
agreement for the Canadian dollar
equivalent of a EUR 136.2 million
long-term committed credit facility
relating to purchases of MAN Roland
presses as part of the North American
retooling program. The unsecured
facility will be drawn over two years
and will be repaid over the next ten
years. At December 31, 2006, the
drawings under this facility amounted
to CA$118.0 million ($101.3 million),
bearing interest at 4.60%.

The Company’s Series 4 Redeemable
Preferred  Shares

redeemable at the option of the

First were
Company on and after March 15,
2006. On April 18, 2006, in
accordance with provisions applicable
to these shares, the 8,000,000 shares
were redeemed at CA $25.2185 per
share. This price represents
CA$25.00 per share (for a total
amount of CA$200.0 million
($175.9 million)) plus accrued
dividends of CA$0.2185, accruing as
of and from March 1, 2006. These
shares were redeemed using the

Company’s revolving bank facility.

The Company’s normal course issuer
bid expired on May 12, 2006. A total
of 2,438,500 Subordinate Voting
Shares were repurchased under this
program and the Company did not
repurchase any Subordinate Voting
Shares after August 12, 2005.

On November 7, 2006, the
Company suspended the dividend on
Multiple and Subordinate Voting
Shares. This action was taken in light
of the Company’s current investment
program in North America and
Europe, and with a view 1o
strengthening the Company’s balance
sheet. Previously, on January 18,
2006, the Board of Directors had
approved a reduction of the quarterly
dividend on the Multple and
Subordinate Voting Shares to $0.10

per share from $0.14 per share.

4.3 INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Cash used in investing
activtties {$ milliens) ‘
[l
Years ended December 31
2006 2005
$ (217.9) $ (274.6)

Additions to property, plant and
equipment

In 2006, the Company invested
$313.8 million in capital projects,
compared to $394.0 million in 2005.
Of that amount, approximately 81%
(89% excluding building purchases)
was for organic growth, including
expenditures for new capacity
requirements and  productivity
improvement. The remaining portion
was spent on the maintenance of the
Company’s structure. In 2005, the
organic growth spending amounted

to 80%.

Key expenditures in 2006 included
approximately $88.4 million in North
America and $67.4 million in Europe
as part of the strategic retooling plans
and a customer related project. The
Company also invested $28.5 million
for building and land purchases in
Recife, Brazil; Mexico DE Mexico and
in Olive Branch, Tennessee. Other
notable projects relate to bindery
equipment upgrades to improve North
American efficiency and equipment
redeployment in Latin America to

increase capacity.
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Reconciliation of non GAAP measures

{In millions of US dollars, except per share dala)

| 2006 2005 2004
Oeerufing Income from Continuing Operations - Adjusted
Operating income ("EBIT") $ 1302 $ 203 $ 3555
Impairment of assets, restructuring and other charges ("IAROCT) 111.3 94.2 115.6
Goodwill impairment charge - 243.0 -
Adjusted EBIT $ 2415 $ 357.5 $ 471
EBIT $ 130.2 $ 203 $ 3555
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment I 308.4 308.1 334.5
Amortization of other assets IV 30.0 27.3 27.0
Less depreciation and amortization from discontinued operations 2 - i4.2) (10.4)
Operating income before depreciation and amortization {"EBITDA") S 4548.6 $ 351 $ 7066
IAROC 111.3 94.2 i15.6
Goodwill impairment charge - 243.0 -
Adjusted EBITDA $ 5799 $ 6887 $ 8222
Earnings (loss) per share from Continuing Operations - Adjusted
Net income (loss) from Conlinuing Operations $ 306 $ (148.8) $ 1399
IAROC # 87.3 86.0 20.8
Goodwill impairment charge {net of income taxes of $10.9 million in 2005} - 232.1 -
Adjusted net income from continuing operations 5 179 $ 1693 ¥ 2307
Net income allocated to holders of preferred shares 34.0 39.6 37.5
Adjusted net income from continving operations available
to holders of equity shares $ 83.9 $ 1297 $ 193.2
Diluted average number of equity shares outstanding {in millions) 131.4 131.8 132,46
Earnings (loss) per share from continuing operations
Diluted 5 {0.03) $ (1.43) $ 077
Adjusted diluted $ 0.64 $ 098 $ 145
Free Cash Flow
Cash provided by operating activities $ 2360 $ 4695 $ 4878
Dividends on preferred shares (43.1) (39.6) (38.8)
Additions to preperty, plant and equipment (313.8) (394.0) (132.9)
Net proceeds from disposal of assets 82.5 16.4 30
Net proceeds from business disposals 28.5 6.9 -
Free cash flow (outflow) $ (9.9) $ 119.2 $ 3194
Adjusted: Defined os before IAROC and bafore goadwill impairment charge Figure 7

IV As reported in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
R As reported in Note 5 "Discontinued Operations and Cther Disposals”
PI Net of income taxes of $24.0 millicn in 2006, $8.2 millicn in 2005 and $24.8 millicn in 2004




Reconciliation of non GAAP measures

(In millions of US dollers, except per share data)
L

2006 2005 2004
Debt-to-capitalization
Current portion of long-term debt $ 307 $ 77 $ Nz
Longterm debt 1,984.0 1,731.9 1,825.8
Convertible notes 117.7 115.5 112.6
Total deb? $ 2,132.4 $1,855.1 $1,950.
Minority interest 1.3 0.6 8.3
Shareholders' equity 1"l 2,032.4 2,218.8 2,580.8
Capitalization 5 4,166, $4,074.5 $4,539.2
Deht-to-capitalization 51:49 46:54 43:57
Total Debt and Accounts Receivable Securitization
Current portion of long-term debt $ 307 $ 77 $ Nz
Long-term delst 1,984.0 1,731.9 1,825.8
Convertible notes 117.7 115.5 112.6
Total debt $ 21324 $1,855.1 $1,950.1
Accounts receivable securifization 579.5 692.8 785.5
Total debt and accounts receivable securitization $ 2,711.9 $2,547 9 $2,735.6
Minority interest 1.3 0.6 8.3
Shareholders' equity " 2,032.4 2,218.8 2,580.8
Capitalization, including securitization $ 4,745.6 $4,767.3 $5,324.7
Debi-to-capitalization, including securitization 57:43 53:47 51:49
Coverage Ratios from Continulng Operations
Adjusted EBITDA $ 5799 $ 6887 $ 8222
Financial expenses $ 1342 $ 1190 $ 1331
Loss on extinguishment of long-term debt - - (2.0}
Financial expenses adjusted - Last 12 months $ 134.2 $ 119.0 $ 1D
Interest coverage ratio (times) 4.3 58 6.3
Total debs $ 2,132.4 $1,855.1 $1,950.1
Debt-to-Adjusted-EBITDA ratio (times) 3.7 2.7 2.4
Figure 7

[ Prior periods amounts have been revised. See Note 1 o Consolidated financial statements,
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Reconciliation of non GAAP measures |
{In millions of US dollars, except per share data)

Three months ended December 3)

2006 2005
Ogeruting income from Coniinuing Operations- Adjusted
Operating income ["EBIT") 5 28.0 $ (167.9)
Impairment of assets, restructuring and other charges {"IAROC") 46.2 1.9
Goodwill impairment charge - 243.0
Adjusted EBIT $ 74.2 $ 873
EBIT $ 28.0 $ (167.6)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ! 85.2 73.2
Amortization of other assels Il 10.8 7.4
Operating income before depreciation ond amortization {"EBITDA"} $ 124.0 $ (87.0
IAROC 46.2 1.9
Goodwill impairment charge - 243.0
Adjusted EBITDA § 170.2 $ 1679
Earnings (loss) per share from Continving Operations- Adjusted
Net income {loss) from Continuing Operations $ 1.6 $ (2050
IAROC ™ 33.0 10.9
Goodwill impairment charge [net of income taxes of $10.9 million in 2005) - 232.1
Adjusted net income from continuing operations S 4446 $ 380
Net income allocated to holders of preferred shares 7.6 10.2
Adjusted net income from continuing operations available
to holders of equity shares $ 370 $ 278
Diluted averoge number of equity shares outstanding {in millions) 131.6 131.0
Earnings (loss) per share from continuing operations
Diluted $ 0.03 £ (1.64)
Adjusted diluted $ 028 $ o021
Figure 8

Adjusted: Defined as before IAROC and before goodwill impairment charge
M As reported in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
2 Net of income taxes of $13.2 million in 2006 and $1.0 million in 2005




Proceeds from business disposals
and disposal of assets
In January 2006, the Company

$17.4
consideration for the sale of its

received million  in
interest in a subsidiary of its non-core
commercial printing group in Canada
in December 2005.

In March 2006, the Company
received $8.5 million for its
promissory note receivable (net of a
$1.2 million closing working capital
adjustment) in connection with the
sale in November 2005, of the
operating assets of some units of its
non-core commercial printing group

in the United States.

In 2006, proceeds on disposal of
assets amounted to $82.5 million
compared to $16.4 million in 2005.
Of this amount, $49.6 million
related to the equipment lease
financing  discussed in  the
“Financing Activities” section. Assets
sold in connection with this
transaction included four presses and
auxiliary equipment, acquired in
connection with the U.S. strategic
retooling plan, and other bindery
equipment.  Furthermore, this

disposal  included  equipment
acquired in 2006 amounting to
approximately $16.5 million, of
which $4.7 million

equipment included in the U.S.

related o

strategic retooling plan.

5. FINANCIAL POSITION
5.1 FREE CASH FLOW

Free cash flow (cutflow) ($ millions)

Years ended December 31
2006 2005
$ {9.9) | $ 1192

The Company reports free cash flow
because it is a key measure used by
management to evaluate its liquidity
(Figure 7). Free cash flow reflects cash
flow available for business acquisitions,
dividends on equity shares, repayments
of long-term debt and repurchases of
equity securities. Free cash flow is not a
calculation based on Canadian or U.S.
GAAP and should not be considered
an alternative to the Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows. Free cash
flow is a measure that can be used to
gauge the Company's performance over
time. Investors should be cautioned
that free cash flow as reported by
Quebecor World may not be
comparable in all instances to free cash
flow as reported by other companies.

The decrease in free cash flow was due
mainly to a significant decrease in
operating cash flows and a decrease in
proceeds from business disposals. The
decrease was partly offset by a reduction
in capital expenditures, which remained
signiﬁcant in 2006, but to a lesser
extent, reflecting the advancement of
the retooling initiative of the
Company’s five-point transformation
plan. This trend is expected to continue
through 2007 as the Company
completes its retooling plan.

5.2 FINANCIAL RATIOS,
FINANCIAL COVENANTS AND
CREDIT RATINGS

Financial ratios

The key financial ratios used by
management to evaluate the Company’s
financial position are the interest
coverage ratio, the debt-to-Adjusted-
EBITDA ratio, and the debt-to-
capitalization ratio. Calculations of
key financial ratios are presented in
Figure 7. For the year ended
December 31, 2006, the debt-to-
capitalization ratio was 51:49,
compared to 46:54 in 2005. As at
December 31, 2006, total debr plus
accounts receivable securitization was
$2,711.9 million, $164.0 million
higher than last year.

Financial covenants

The Company is subject to certain
financial covenants in some of its
major  financing  agreements.
Concurrent with the offering of
$400.0 million aggregate principal
amount of 9.75% Senior Notes (as
discussed in the “Financing activities”
section), the Company obrained
temporary accommodation of certain
covenants under its bank credit
facilities in order to provide itself with
greater financial flexibility. There
can be no assurance that, in the event
the Company requires similar
accommodarions in the future, as a
result of weaker than expected
financial performance or otherwise,

Quebecor World will obtain such
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be able to
renegotiate the terms and conditions
of the

agreements

accommodations or

Companys  financing
and  securitization
programs, which would in wrn
require the Company to redeem,
repay or repurchase its obligattons

prior to their scheduled maturiry.

As at December 31, 2006, the
Company was in compliance with all

significant debt covenants.

Credit ratings

As at March 3, 2007, the following
credit ratings applied to the senior
unsecured debt of the Company:

mn_g Agency m
Moody’s Investors Service B2
Standard and Poor’s B+
Dominion Bond Rating Service Limited BB

On August 9, 2006, Dominion Bond
Rating Service Limited lowered the
credit rating from BB (high) to BB. On
September 28, 2006, Standard & Poor’s
lowered the credit rating from BB- to
B+. On October 18, 2006, Moody's

corporate rating to Quebecor World
Inc. from Quebecor World (USA) Inc.
and lowered the credi rating from Ba3
to B1. On December 7, 2006, Moody's
Investors Service lowered the credit
rating from B1 to B2. The Company’s
future borrowing costs may increase as

a result of these rating changes.

5.3 CONTRACTUAL CASH
OBLIGATIONS

The Company has major operating
leases where it will pay to purchase the
underlying equipment (presses and
binders) at the end of the term, and it
has historically acquired most of the
equipment when it is used for
production. Some of these major
operating leases are expiring in 2007
with a terminal value of $74.8 million,
of which $44.4 million is guaranteed.
The total terminal value of these leases
expiring between 2009 and 2013, is
approximately $48.1 million.

The Company monitors the funded

status of its pension plans very closely.

2006, the Company made
contributions of $82.5 million
($50.4 million in 2005), which were
in accordance with the minimum
required contributions as determined
by the
Minimum required contributions are
estimated at $59.8 million for 2007.

Company’s  actuaries.

The Company believes that its liquidiry,
capital resources and cash flows from
operations are sufficient to fund planned
capital expenditures, working capital
requirements, pension contributions,
interest and  principal  payment
obligations for the foreseeable future.

6. OFF-BALANCE SHEET
ARRANGEMENTS AND
OTHER DISCLOSURES

6.1 OFF-BALANCE SHEET
ARRANGEMENTS

Guarantees
In the normal course of business, the
Company enters into numerous

agreements that contingently require it

Investors  Service reinstated the  During the year ended December 31, 0 ke payments to 2 third party
Contractual Cash Obligations {$ millions) I
2012 ond
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 thereafter Total

Longerm debt and

convertible notes $ 266 $ 2147 $ 226.8 $ 183.4 $ e $ 1,444 $2,107.5
Capital leases 4.1 3.1 79 1.4 2.1 6.3 24.9
Interest payments on long-term debt,

convertible notes and capital leases ! 159.9 158.5 135.3 126.4 118.0 3808 1,078.9
Operating leases 158.3 61.7 48.4 30.1 207 78.5 397.7
Capital asset purchase

commitments 26.6 26.6

Total contractual cash obligations _$ 375.5 $ 438.0 $ 418.4 $ 3413 $152.7 $ 1,909.7 $ 3,635.6
1Y Interest payments were caleulated using the interest rate that would prevail should the debt be reimbursed Figure ¢

as planned, and the cutstanding balance as at December 31, 2006,




based on changes in an underlying item
that is related to an asset, a liability or
an equity of the guaranteed party, or
failure of another party to perform
under an obligating agreement.

The

significant guarantees to third parties

Company has provided

including the following:

Operating leases

The Company has guaranteed a
portion of the residual values of cerrain
assets under operating leases with
expiry dates between 2007 and 2009,
for the benefit of the lessor. If the fair
value of the assets, at the end of their
respective lease term is less than the
residual value guaranteed, then the
Company must, under certain
conditions, compensate the lessor for a
portion of the shortfall. The maximum
exposure in respect of these guarantees
was $60.1 million. Of this amount,
$55.0 million will expire in 2007. The
Company recorded a liability of

$7.9 million associated with these

guarantees at December 31, 2006.

Sub-lease agreements

The Company has, for some of its
assets under operating leases, entered
into sub-lease agreements with expiry
dates between 2007 and 2008. If the
sub-lessee  defaults under the
agreements, the Company must,
under certain conditions, compensate
the lessor for the defaults. The
maximum exposure under these
guarantees was $2.6 million. As at

December 31, 2006, the Company

did not record a liability associated
with these guarantees, other than that
provided for under unfavorable leases
of $1.2 million, since ir was not likely
at that time thart the sub-lessee would
default under the agreement, and that
the Company would thus be required
to honor the inital obligation.
Recourse against the sub-lessee is also
available, up to the total amount due.

Business and real estate disposals

In  connection with certain
dispositions of businesses or real
estare, the Company has provided
customary  representations and
warranties whose terms range in
duration and may not be explicitly
defined. The Company has also
retained certain liabilities for events
occurring prior to sale, relating to tax,
environmental, litigation and ocher
matters. Generally, the Company has
indemnified the purchasers in the
event that 2 third party asserts a claim
against the purchaser that relates to a

liability retained by the Company.

These rtypes of indemnification
guarantees typically extend for a
number of years. The nature of these
indemnification agreements prevents
the Company from estimating the
maximum potential liability that it
could be required to pay to
guaranteed parties. These amounts
are dependent upon the outcome of
future contingent events, the nature
and likelihood of which cannot be

determined at this time.

Historically, the Company has not
made any significant indemnification
payments under such agreements and
no amount has been accrued in the
Consolidated Balance Sheets with

respect to these indemnification
guarantees as at December 31, 2006.
The Company continues to monitor
the conditions that are subject to
guarantees and indemnifications to
identify whether it is probable that a
loss has occurred and, would recognize
any such losses under any guarantees
or indemnifications when those losses

are probable and estimable.

Debt agreements

Under the terms of cerrain debt
agrecments, the Company has
guaranteed the obligations of some of
its U.S. subsidiaries. In this context,
the Company would have to
indemnify the other parties against
changes in regulation, relative to
withholding taxes, which would
occur only if the Company was to
make the payments on behalf of some
U.s. These

indemnifications extend for the term

of its subsidiaries,
of the related financings and do not
provide a limit on the maximum
potential liabilities. The nature of the
indemnification agreements prevents
the Company from estimating the
maximum potential liability it could
be required to pay. However, the
majority of the obligations to which
such guarantees apply contain make-
whole provisions, which effectively

limic the exposure associated with
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such an occurrence. Moreover, within
the the

transactions, the Company is not

current  structure  of
exposed to such liabilities. As such,
the Company has not accrued any
amount in the Consolidated Balance
Sheers with respect to this item.

Irrevocable standby letters of credit
The Company and certain of its
subsidiaries have granted irrevocable
standby letters of credit, issued by
highly rated financial institutions, to
third parties to indemnify them in the
event the Company does not perform
its contractual obligations. As of
December 31, 2006, letters of credit
amounted to $89.2 million. The
Company has not recorded an
additional liabilicy with respect to
these letters of credit, as the Company
does not expect to make any payments
in excess of what is recorded in the
Company’s financial statements. The
letters of credit instruments mature at

various dates in 2007.

Sales of trade receivables
The a party to

securitization agreements to sell with

Company is

limited recourse, and on a revolving
basis, a portion of its Canadian, U.S.,
and European trade receivables, to
unrelated trusts. The program limits
under each of the Canadian, U.S. and
European securitization programs are
CA$135.0 million, $408.0 million
($459.0 million during peak season)
and EUR 153.0 million, respectively.
The amounts outstanding under each

program as at December 31, 2006 were
CA$89.0 million ($76.4 million),
$374.0 million and EUR 97.9 million
($129.1  million),  respectively,
(CA$100.0 million {$86.0 million),
$467.0 million and EUR 118.0 million
($139.8 million), respectively as at
December 31, 2005). Consistent with
its U.S. securitization agreement, the
Company sells all of its U.S.
receivables to a wholly-owned
subsidiary, Quebecor World Finance

Inc., through a true-sale transaction.

As at December 31, 20006, the
Company had a retained interest in
the trade receivables sold of
$223.0 million ($132.9 million at
December 31, 2005), which is
recorded in the Company’s trade
receivables. As at December 31, 2006,
an aggregate amount of $802.5
million ($825.7 million in 2005)
of accounts receivable had been
sold under the three programs,
and securitization fees totaled
$31.0 million for 2006 ($23.8 million
for 2005). Servicing revenues and
expenses did not have a material

impact on the Company’s results.

On October 20, 2006, the Company
amended and extended the availability
of its U.S. securitization program for a
3-year period through to August 28,
2009, increasing the liquidity horizon
of the program. The program has been
reduced to $408.0 million to take into
account the sale of the Company’s
North American non-core printing

facilities in the sccond half of 2005. A
seasonal peak limit of $459.0 million
was also added to the program 1o
permit greater utilization during peak
volume periods of the year.

On July 31, 2006, the Company

amended and  extended  its
European securitization program
for a three-year period through to
May 29, 2009, increasing the

liquidicy horizon of the program.

The Company is subject to certain
requirements under the securitization
programs. In conjunction with the
credit  facility amendments of
December 2006, the Company
similarly modified certain covenants

of the U.S.

securitization

and European
The

Company was in compliance with all

programs.

its covenants under the agreements
governing its securitization programs
as of December 31, 2000.

The Company is subject to other
covenants typically found in
securitization agreements, If such
other covenants fail to be maintained,
one or more of the securitization
agreements could be terminated. If a
termination event were to occur based
on failure to meet one of these other
covenants, the Company believes that
it would be able to meet its cash
obligations from other financing
sources, such as its revolving bank

facility, the issuance of debt or the

issuance of equity.




Leases
The Company rents premises and
machinery and equipment under
operating leases with third parties,
which expire at various dates up to
2018 and for which undiscounted
minimum lease payments total
$397.7 million as at December 31,
2006. The minimum lease payments
for the year 2006 were $71.4 million.
Of the

payments, approximately 50% was

total minimum lease
for machinery and equipment. The
Company has guaranteed a portion of
the

maximum exposure of $60.1 million.

total residual values for a

6.2 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Company uses a number of
financial instruments including: cash
and cash equivalents, trade receivables,
receivables from related parties, bank
indebtedness, trade payables, accrued
liabilities, payables to related partics,
long-term debt and convertible notes.
The carrying amounts of thesc financial
instruments, except for long-term debt
and convertible notes, approximate
their fair values due to their short-term
nature. The fair values of long-term
debt and convertible notes are estimated

based on discounted cash flows using

period-end market yields of similar

instruments with the same maturity.

‘The Company uses various derivative
financial instruments to manage its
exposure to fluctuations in foreign
currency exchange rates, interest rates
and commodity prices. The Company
does not hold or use any derivative
instruments for speculative purposes
risk

and adheres to a financial

management policy.

The Company manages interest rate
exposure by having a balanced
schedule of debt marurities, as well as
a combination of fixed and floating
interest rate obligations. In addition,
the Company uses interest rare swap
agreements to manage its exposure to
fluctuations in interest rates on its
long-term debt. Contracts outstanding
2006 had a
notional value of $200.0 million and

at December 31,

expire in 2008. Interest expense is
adjusted to include amounts payable
the

agreements. The total adjustment

or receivable under swap
recorded to interest expense was an
expense of $4.0 million for 2006 and

$0.9 million for 2005.

The Company enters into foreign
exchange forward contracts to hedge
foreign denominared sales and related
receivables, debt, and equipment
purchases. The contracts outstanding at
December 31, 2006 had a notional
value of $619.4 million and expire in
2007 and 2011. The foreign exchange
gains and losses are recognized as an
adjustment to the corresponding
revenues, financial expenses and cost of
equipment when the transaction is
recorded. The toral amounts recorded to
these accounts for 2006 for these
contracts were revenues of $13.2 million
for foreign-denominated sales, and a loss
of $1.3 million for other foreign-
denominated transactions (revenues of
$29.5 million,
$1.4 million, respectively, for 2005). For

and a loss of
Canada and Europe, the foreign-
denominated revenues as a percentage
of their votal revenues  were
18%,

respectively in 2006. The forward

approximately  24%  and
contracts used to manage exposure to
currency fluctuations with respect to
these foreign-denominated sales and
related receivables were settled with
highly favorable results in the current
year. As the Company enters into 2007,
it expects a lower level of revenues in its

Fair Value of Derivative Financial Instruments {Continuing Operations) ($ millions)

2006 | 2005
Book Value Fair Value | Book Value Fair Value
Derivative financial instruments }

Interest rate swap agreements $ - 5 (7.5) 3 - $ 10.4)

Foreign exchange forward contracts (12.7) (15.5) j 4.7 155

Cross currency interest rate swaps - - 3.6 3.6
Commodily swaps (1.4) (13.7) | (0.1) (0.5)
Figure 10
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mitigation of exchange rate risk from
foreign exports as a result of having

fewer hedges in place and less favorable
rates compared to 2006.

The Company enters into foreign
exchange forward contracts and cross-
currency swaps to hedge foreign
denominated asset exposures. The
contracts outstanding comprised only
of forward contracts at December 31,
2006 had a notional value of
$551.7 million expiring in 2007. The
foreign exchange gains and losses on
such foreign denominated assets are
recorded to income. The changes in the
fair values of the derivative instruments
are also recorded to income to
compensate the foreign exchange gains
and losses on the translation of the
foreign denominated asscts. The total
adjustment recorded to derivative gain
or loss related to these contracts for
2006 was 2 loss of $28.4 million {(a gain
of $48.0 million for 2005).

The Company also enters into
commodities swap contracts to hedge
certain future identifiable energy price
exposures refated to the purchases of
natural gas. Contracts outstanding at
December 31, 2006 covered a notional

quantity of 1,583,000 gigajoules in
Canada and 8,005,000 MMBTU in
the United States and expire between
January 2007 and December 2009.
qualifying
designated as cash flow hedges, the

For  contracts and
total adjustment to gas cost for 2006
was a loss of $10.4 million {(gain of
$7.6 million in 2005). For contracts
which  hedge

accounting is not applied, the portion

outstanding  for
of the change in the contracts’ fair
values recorded to derivative gains or
losses was a loss of $1.3 million for

2006 (loss of nil for 2005).

While the counterparties of these
agreements expose the Company to
credic loss in the event of non-
performance, the Company believes
that the possibility of incurring such a
the

creditworthiness of the counterparties.

loss is remote due to

Realized and unrealized gains or losses
associated with derivative instruments
designated in a qualified hedge that
have been terminated or have ceased to
be effective prior to maturiry, are
deferred on the balance sheet and
recognized in income during the

period in which the underlying hedged

transaction is recognized. For 2006,
the total amount deferred as a liability
in relation to terminated derivative
instruments  was  $4.9  million
($6.7 million for 2005) and the total
amount recognized as income was

$1.7 million ($2.3 million for 2005).

The fair values of the derivative financial
instruments are estimated using period-
end market rates and reflect the amount
that the Company would receive or pay
if the instruments were closed out at

these dares (Figure 10).

6.3 RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has entered into
transactions with the parent company
and its other subsidiaries, which were
accounted for at prices and conditions
the

Intercompany revenues from the

prevailing  in market.
, . e

parent company’s media subsidiaries

involved mostly printing of magazines.

In 2006, the Company transferred the
benefit of a deduction for Part V1.I tax
to a company under common control
for a consideration of CA$6.4 million
($5.5 million), recorded in receivables
from related parties. This reduced the

' Related Party Transactions ($ millions) |

Years ended December 31

2006 2005 2004
Companies under common control:
Revenues $ 663 $ 049 $ 521
Selling, general and administrative expenses 13.6 17.6 9.1
Managemeni fees billed by Quebecor Inc. 4.8 4.5 4.2
Figure 11



Companys available future income tax
assets by CA$7.6 million ($6.5 million),
and decreased the contributed surplus
by CA$1.2 million ($1.0 million). The
transaction was recorded at the carrying

amount.

In 2000, the Company entered into a
strategic agreement with Nurun Inc.
(“Nurun”). The agreement included a
commitment from the Company to use
Nurun services (information technology
and E-Commerce services) for a
minimum of $40 million over a five-year
period. In 2004, an addendum was made
to the agreement, extending the term for
another five years from the date of the
addendum. In addition, the minimum
service revenues of $40 million
committed to Nurun were modified to
include services directly requested by the
Company and its parent company and
subsidiaries, as well as business referred,
under certain conditions, to Nurun by
the Company and its affiliates. Finally, if
the aggregate amount of the service
revenues for the term of the agreement is
lower than the minimum of $40 million,
the Company has agreed to pay an
amount to Nurun equal to 30% of the
difference  between the minimum
guaranteed revenues and the aggregate

amount of revenues. As of December 31,
2006, the cumulative services registered
by Nurun, under this agreement,

amounted to $18.3 million.

The Company is currently in discussion
with its sister company, Quebecor Media
Inc., regarding the joint use of assets, in
particular printing equipment located in
Islington, Ontario and Mirabel, Quebec.
Agreements are expected to be entered
into before the end of the second quarter.

As of December 31, 2006, the Company

had invested CA $25.6 million
($22.0 million) in these assets.
6.4 OUTSTANDING SHARE DATA

Figure 12 discloses the Company’s
outstanding share dara as at March 3,
2007.

As of March 3, 2007, a total of 7,801,465
options to purchase Subordinate Voting
Shares were in circulation, of which
3,072,461 were exercisable.

6.5 CONTROLS AND
PROCEDURES

Disclosure controls and procedures
Quebecor World’s disclosure controls
and procedures are designed to

Outstanding Share Data

{$ millions and thousands of shares)

provide reasonable assurance thar
information required to be disclosed
by the Company is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported
within the time periods specified
under Canadian and U.S. securities
laws and include controls and
procedures that are designed to ensure
that information is accumulated and
communicated to management,
including the President and Chief
Executive Officer and the Executive
Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer, to allow timely decisions

regarding required disclosure.

As of December 31, 2006, an evaluation
was carried our for the first time, under
the supervision of and with the
participation of management, including
the President and Chief Executive
Officer and the Executive Vice President
and Chief Financial Ofhicer, of the
effectiveness of Quebecor World’s
disclosute controls and procedures as
defined in Rule 13a-15{(e) under the
U.S. Securities Exchange Act of 1934
and in Multilateral Instrument 52-109
the
Administrators Rules and Policies.
Based on that evaluation, the President
and Chief Executive Officer and the

under Canadian  Securities

March 3, 2007
Issued and

outstanding shares Book Value

Multiple Voting Shares 46,987 $ 93.5
Subordinate Voting Shares 84,742 1,146.8
First Preferred Shares, Series 3 12,000 212.5
First Preferred Shares, Series 5 7,000 113.9
Figure 12




Management's Discussion and Analysis

Executive Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer concluded that as a
result of the material weakness in
Quebecor World’s internal control over
financial reporting discussed below, the
disclosure controls and procedures were
not effective as of the end of the period
covered by this annual report.

Management’s Report on Internal
control over financial reporting

As of December 31, 2006,
management assessed the effectiveness of
the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting. In making this
assessment, management used the criteria
set forth in Internal Control—Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring  Organizations of the
(COSO).
During this process, management
identified a material weakness in internal
control over financial reporting as
described below. A material weakness, as
defined under standards established by
the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board’s (‘PCAOB”} Auditing
Standard No. 2, is a control deficiency, or

Treadway ~Commission

combination of control deficiencies, that
results in more than a remote likelihood
that a material misstatement of our
annual or interim financial statements
will not be prevented or detected.

The Company did not maintain
effective processes and controls over the
determination of the impairment of
long-term assets. Specifically, it did not
identify, communicate and document

sufficiently in its analysis financial

information that could impact the
impairment of assets, restructuring and

other charges account.

This deficiency resulted in immaterial
errors that were identified and
corrected prior to issuance of the

2006 Consolidated

Financial Statements. However, this

Company’s

deficiency could have resulted in
material non-cash adjustments to the
financial statements and, as a result,
there is 2 more than remote likelihood
that a material misstatement of the
annual or interim Consolidated
Financial Statements would not be

prevented or detected.

Because of the material weakness
described above, management has
concluded that as of December 31, 2006,
the Company’s system of internal control
over financial reporting was not effective.
Notwithstanding the above-mentioned
weakness, management has concluded
that the Consolidated Financial
Statements included in this report fairly
present the Company’s consolidated
financial position and the consolidated
results of operations, as of and for the year
ending December 31st, 2006.

Remediation Plans

The Company has already started and
will continue remediation plans to
address the material weakness by
enhancing  and  implementing
additional changes to its impairment of
long-term  assets processes. The

following are steps that the Company is

taking to temedy the conditions leading

to the above stated material weakness:

* Develop and deploy a more
exhaustive checklist to identify,
capture and communicate the
required  information  and
documentation;

* Continue to implement additional
controls to identify, capture and
timely communicate financial

apply  the

Company’s policy pertaining to the

information  to

impairment of long term assets;
» Continue to improve its
forecasting systems;
* Provide finance training for
managers, process owners and

accounting personnel.

It should be noted that Management,
including the President and Chief
Executive Officer and the Executive
Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer, is responsible for establishing
and maintaining adequate internal
control over financial reporting, as
such term is defined in Rule 13a-
15(¢) under the U.S. Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 and in
52-109

Canadian Securities

Multilateral Instrument

the

Administrators Rules and Policies.

under

Quebecor World's internal controls
over financial reporting is a process
designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of
the

preparation of financial statements for

financial ~ reporting  and
external purposes in accordance with

Canadian

accepted

generally




{GAAP).

Because of its inherent limirarions,

accounting  principles

internal  control over financial
reporting may not prevent or detect

all misstatements,

7. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

7.1 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES

The Ontario Securities Commission
defines critical accounting estimates as
those requiring assumptions made
about matters that are highly uncertain
at the time the estimate is made, and
when the use of different reasonable
estimates ot changes to the accounting
estimates would have a material
impact on a company’s financial

condition or results of operations.

The preparation of financial statements
in conformity with Canadian GAAP
requires the Company to make
estimates and assumptions which affect
the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, disclosure with respect to
contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and
reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those
estimates. The critical accounting
which  affecc  the

Consolidated Income statement and

estimates

Consolidated Balance Sheet line items

are summarized below:

Goodwill

Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually for all of the Company's
reporting units, or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the asset might be
impaired. The impairment test is
carried out in two steps. In the first
step, the carrying amount of the
reporting unit is compared to its fair
value. When the fair value of a
reporting unit exceeds its carrying
amount, then the goodwill of the
reporting unit is considered not o be
impaired and the second step is not
required. The second step of the
impairment test is carried out when the
carrying amount of a reporting unit
exceeds its fair value, in which case the
implied fair value of the reporting unit’s
goodwill is compared to its carrying
amount to measure the amount of the
impairment loss, if any. When the
carrying amount of the reporting unit’s
goodwill exceeds the implied fair value
of the goodwill, an impairment loss is
recognized in an amount equal to the
excess and is presented as a separate
item in the income statement before

discontinued operations.

Based on the results of the latest
impairment test performed, no
goodwill impairment charge was
recorded in 2006 ($243.0 million
goodwill impairment charge for the
European reporting unit was recorded
in 2005). Management will continue

to remain alert for any indicators

signaling that the fair value of a
reporting unit could be below book
value and will assess goodwill for

impairment as appropriate.

Impairment of long-lived assets
The Company reviews long-lived
assets whenever events or changes in

the

carrying amount of such assets may

circumstances indicate  that
not be recoverable. An impairment loss
is recognized when the carrying
amount of a group of assets held for

the the

undiscounted cash flows expecred

use exceeds sum of
from its use and eventual disposition.
Measurement of an impairment is
based on the amount by which the
carrying amount of group of assets
exceeds its fair value. Fair value is
determined using accepted valuation
techniques such as quoted market
prices, when available, or an estimate

of discounted future cash flows.

The Company recorded a total
impairment charge of $33.0 million
in the year ended December 31, 2006
based on the results of these tests.
Although management concluded
that at December 31, 2006, no
further impairment charges were
required other than those discussed
above, the Company continues to
monitor groups of assets to identfy
any new events or changes in
circumstances that could indicate thar
their not

carrying  values are

recoverable. In the event that such a



Management's Discussion anda Analysis

situarion is identified or that actual
results differ from management’s
estimates, an additional impairment

charge could be necessary.

Pension and postretirement
benefits

The Company mainains defined benefit
plans and postretirement benefits for its

that

contributions are sustained at a level

employees and  ensures
sufficient to cover benefits. Actuarial
valuations of the Company’s various
pension plans were performed during the
last three years or more frequently where
required by law. Plan assets are measured
at fair value and consist of equity
securities, corporate and government
fixed income securities and cash or cash
equivalents. Pension and  other
postretirement costs and obligations are
based on various economic and
demographic assumptions determined
with the help of actuaries and are
reviewed each year. Key assumptions
include the discount rate, the expected

long-term rate of return on plan assets,

the rate of compensation increase (Figure
13) and the health care cost trend rate.

In 2006, the Company modified its
defined benefit plans for certain
employees in Canada and in the United

defined
Registered

States, and created a

contribution  Group
Retirement  Savings Plan ("Group
RRSP") for employees in Canada. As of
Qctober 1, 2006, affected Canadian
employees had the choice to adhere to
the Group RRSP, or to continue to
participate in the modified plan, while
furure employees automatically adhere
to the new Group RRSP. A $3.8 million
curtailment charge was recorded in
2006. For employees in the United
States, one of the defined benefit plans
was frozen on October 1, 2006, and an
improved defined contribution plan has
been offered to employees. A $5.5
million curtailment gain was recorded
in 2006.

The discount rate assumption used to
calculate the present value of the
plans’ projected benefit payments was
determined using 2 measurement date
of September 30, 2006 and based on
yields of long-term high-quality fixed

income 1nvestments.

Weighted average assumptions used in the |
measurement of the Company’s pension beneits

The expected long-term rate of return
on pension plan assets was obtained by
calculating a weighted average rate
based on targeted asset allocations of
the plans. The expected returns of each
asset class are based on a combination
of historical performance analyses and
forward-looking views of the financial
markets. The targered asser allocation
of the plans is approximately 65% for
equity and 35% for fixed income

securities and cash.

The rate of compensation increase is
used to project current plan earnings
in order to estimate pension benefits
at furure dates. This assumption was
determined based on historical pay
increases, forecast of salary budgets,
collective bargaining influence and

competitive factors.

For postretirement benefits, the
assumptions related to the health
care cost trend rate are based on
increases experienced by plan
participants in recent years and

national average cost increases.

2006 2005
Accrued benefit obligation as of December 31:
Discount rate 56 % 54 %
Rate of compensation increase 3.4 % 34 %
Benefit costs for year ended December 31:
Discount rate 54 % 6.0 %
Expected return on plan assets 7.6 % 7.6 %
Rate of compensalion increase 3.4 % 34 %
Figure 13



The Company believes that the
assumptions are reasonable based on
information currently available;
however, in the event that actual
outcome differs from management’s
estimates, the provision for pension
and postretirement benefic expenses

and obligations may be adjusted.

Health care costs

The Company provides health care
benefits to employees in North
America and covers approximately
70% to 75% of the costs under these
employee health care plans. The
Company actively manages its health
care spending with its vendors to
maximize discounts in an accempt
limit the cost escalation experienced
over the past years. Health care costs
and liabilities are estimated with the
help of actuaries. Health care costs
in 2006.
However, due to a change in the

continued to increase
workforce combined with positive
experience from changes made in
plan design in 2005, the Company’s
healthcare costs increase has been
Trend
assumption is the most important

kept to a minimum.
factor in estimating future costs. The
Company uses the most recent twelve
months of claims trended forward to
estimate the next years liability.

Allowance for doubtful accounts
The
allowance for doubtful accounts for

Company maintains an

expected losses from customers who
are unable to pay their debts. The

allowance is reviewed periodically and

is based on an analysis of specific
significant accounts ourstanding, the
age of the receivable, customer
creditworthiness  and  historical
collection experience. In addition, the
Company maintains an allowance to
cover a fixed percentage of all
accounts for customers who have filed
for bankruptcy protection under
Chapter 11

accounts. These accounts may take

and other critical
several years before a settlement is
reached. The allowance is reassessed

on a quarterly basis.

Income taxes

Management believes that it has
adequately provided for income taxes
based on all of the information that is
currently available.

The provision for income taxes is
calculated based on the expected tax
treatment of transactions recorded in the
Company’s consolidated statements. In
determining its provision for income
taxes, the Company interprets tax
legislation in a variety of jurisdictions
and makes assumptions about the
expected timing of the reversal of future
tax assets and liabilities. Income tax
assets and liabilities, both current and
future, are measured according to
enacted income tax legislation that is
expected to apply when the asset is
realized or the liability setded. The
regularly the
recognized and unrecognized future

Company reviews
income tax assets to determine if a
valuation allowance is required or needs
to be adjusted. The Company’s future

income tax assets are recognized only to
the extent that, in the Company’s
opinion, it is more likely than not that
the future income tax assets will be
realized. This opinion is based on certain
estimates, assumptions and judgments
in assessing the potential for future
recoverability, while at the same time
considering past experience. If these
estimates, assumptions or judgments
change in the future, the Company
could be required to reduce or increase
the value of the future income tax assets
or liabilities resulting in income tax
expense or recovery. | he Company’s tax
legislation interpretations could differ
from those of tax authorities and our tax
filings are subject to Government audits,
which both could marertally change the
amount of current and future income
tax assets and liabilities. Any change
would be recorded as a charge or a credit

to income tax expense.

In addition, the Company has not
recognized a future rax liability for the
undistributed  earnings  of  its
subsidiaries in the current and prior
years because the Company does not
expect those unremitted earnings to
reverse and become taxable in the

foreseeable future.

Workers’ compensation

U.S. workers’ compensation claims tend
to be relatively low in value on a case-by-
case basis, and the Company self-insures
against the majority of such claims.

The liability provision of such self-
insurance is estimated based on
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reserves for claims that are established
by an independent administrator and
the provision is adjusted annually to

the

development of the claims using

reflect estimated  future
Company specific factors provided by
its actuaries. The adjustment 1is

recorded in income or expense.

While the Company believes that the
assumptions used are appropriate, in
the event that actual outcome differs
from management’s estimates, the

UsS.

compensation costs may be adjusted.

provision  for workers’

The Company also maintains third-
party insurance coverage against U.S.
workers' compensation claims, which
could be unusually large in nature as
discussed in the “Risks and uncertainties
related to the Company’s business”
section hereafter.

7.2 CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING
POLICY - EVALUATION OF
MISSTATEMENT POLICY

The Company changed retroactively its
accounting policy relating to the
evaluation of misstatements in its
financial statements in accordance with
Section 1506, Accounting Changes of
the CICA Handbook. The Company
applied a methodology consistent with
that of the U.S. Securities and Exchange
Commission {SEC) Staff Accounting
Bulletin No. 108, Considering the
Effects of Prior Year Misstatements
when Quantifying Misstatements in
Current Year Financial Statements
(“SAB 108”). The Company will now

quantify the effect of prior-year
misstatements on the current-year
financial statements, assessing their
impact on both the financial position
and results of operations of the

the

materiality of misstatements quantified

Company and  evaluating
on the above in light of quantitative and
qualitative factors. Accordingly, the
Company adjusted its Consolidated
Balance Sheet as at December 31, 2005
and adjusted its closing retained
earnings in 2003 in the consolidated
statements of retained earnings by
$31.8 million, There was no impact on
the consolidated statements of income
and cash flows nor on the earnings per
share for the years ended December 31,
2006, 2005 and 2004. The adjustments
related to misstatements which arose
mainly in 2001 and in prior years. The
adjustments are comprised of (i) a
reduction of $8.4 million to work in
process to consistenty apply the revenue
recognition policy throughout the
platforms for work not completed at
year-end, (i) an increase of other
liabililes by $17.0
($11.0 million net of tax) resulting from

million

the assessment of the sales process by the
management, and (i) an increase of
future liability by
$12.4 million, which reflects the impact

income  tax
of an understatement in future income

tax liability.

7.3 FUTURE ACCOUNTING
DEVELOPMENTS

The CICA has issued the following
new Handbook sections:

Section 3855, Financial Instruments

— Recognition and Measurement,
which sets forth standards governing
when and in what amount a financial
instrument is to be recorded on the
balance sheet. Financial instruments
are to be recognized at fair value in
some cases, at cost-based value in
others. The section also sets forth
standards for reporting gains and
losses on financial instruments.
Section 3865, Hedges, is an optional
application that allows entities ro
apply treatments other than those
provided under Section 3855 to
cligible operations they choose to
designate, for accounting purposes, as
being part of a hedging relationship,
specifying the application of hedge
accounting and the information that
is to be reported by the entity. Section
1530, Comprehensive Income, sets
forth a new requirement that certain
gains and losses be temporarily
accumulated ourside net income and
recognized in other comprehensive
income. These standards will be
applied in the first quarter of 2007 for
the Company.

8. RISKS AND
UNCERTAINTIES RELATED
TO THE COMPANY’S
BUSINESS

The Company urges all current and

potential investors to carefully

consider the risks described below, the

other information contained in this
MD&A and other information and
documents filed by the Company

the
regulatory authorities before making

with appropriate  securities




any investment decision with respect
to any of the Company’s securities.
The risks and uncertainties described
below are not the only ones the
Company may face.

Additional risks and uncertainties
that the Company is unaware of, or
that the Company currently deems to
be immaterial may also become
important factors thac affect it. If any
of the following risks actually occurs,
the Company’s business, cash flow,
financial condition or results of
materially

operations could be

adversely affected.

The Company monitors on a regular

basis the risks described below.

8.1 RISKS RELATING TO THE
COMPANY’S BUSINESS

The Company’s revenue is subject
to cyclical and seasonal variations
and prices of, and demand for, its
printing services may fluctuate
significantly based on factors
outside of the Company’s control

The business in which the Company
operates is sensitive to general
economic cycles and may be
adversely affected by the cyclical
nature of the markets it serves, as
well as by local, regional, national
and global economic conditions.
The business operations are seasonal,
with the majority of its historical
operating income during the past
five financial years being recognized
in the third and fourth quarrers of

the financial year, primarily as a
resule of the higher number of

pages,
launches and back-to-school, retail

magazine new product
and holiday catalog promotions.
Within any year, this seasonality
could adversely affect the Company’s
cash flows and results of operations.

Quebecor World is unable to predict
market conditions and only has a
limited ability to affect changes in
market conditions for printing
services. Pricing and demand for
printing services have fluctuated
significantly in the past and each have
declined significantly in recent years.
Prices and demand for printing
services may continue to decline from
current levels. Further increases in the
supply of printing services or
decreases in demand could cause
prices to continue to decline, and
prolonged periods of low prices, weak
demand and/or excess supply could
have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s business growth, results of

operations and liquidity.

The Company operates in a highly
competitive industry

The industry in which the Company
highly
Competition is largely based on price,

operates s competitive.
quality, range of services offered,
distribution  capabilities, customer
service, availability of printing time on
appropriate equipment and state-of-
the-art technology. The Company
competes for commercial business not

only with large national printers, but

also with smaller regional printers. In
certain circumstances, due primarily to
factors such as freight rares and
customer preference for local services,
printers with better access to certain
regions of a given country may have a
competitive advantage in such regions.
Since 2001, the printing industry has
experienced a reduction in demand for
printed materials and excess capacity.
Some of the industries that the
Company services have been subject to
consolidation efforts, leading to a
of  potential
the

Companys smaller customers are

smaller  number

customers. Furthermore, if
consolidated with larger companies
utilizing other printing companies, the
Company could lose its customers to
competing  printing  companies.
Primarily as a result of this excess
capacity and customer consolidation,
there have been, and may continue to
be, downward pricing pressures and
increased competition in the printing

the

Company’s part to compete effectively

industry.  Any failure on

in the markets it serves could have a
material adverse effect on the results of
its operations, financial condition or
cash flows and could require change to
the way the Company conducts
business or

reassesses  strategic

alternatives involving its operations.

The Company will be required to
make capital expenditures to maintain
its facilities and may be required to
make significant capital expenditures
technologically
economically competitive, which may

to remain and
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significantly increase its costs or
disrupt its operations

Because production technologies
continue to evolve, the Company
must make capital expenditures to
maintain its facilities and may be
required to make significant capiral
expenditures to remain technologically
and economically competitive. The
Company may therefore be required
to invest significant capital in
improving production technologies.
If the Company cannot obtain
adequate capital or does not respond
adequately to the need to integrate
changing technologies in a timely
manner, its operating results, financial
condition or cash flows may be
adversely affected.

The installation of new technology
and equipment may also cause
temporary disruption of operations
from

and  losses operational

inefficiencies. The impact on
operational efficiency is affected by
the length of the period of

remediation.

A significant portion of the
Company’s revenues is derived
from long-term contracts with
important customers, which may
not be renewed on similar terms
and conditions or may not be
renewed at all. The failure to renew
or be awarded such contracts could
significantly adversely affect the
results,

Company’s operating

financial condition and cash flows

The Company derives a significant
portion of its revenues from long-
term contracts with important
customers. If Quebecor World is
unable to renew such contracts on
similar terms and conditions, or at all,
or if it is not awarded new long-term
contracts with important customers
in the future, its operating results,
financial condition and cash flows

may be adversely affected.

The Company may be adversely
affected by
operating costs, including the cost

increases in its

and availability of raw materials
and labor-related costs

The Company uses paper and ink as
its primary raw materials. The price
of such raw materials has been
volartile over time and may cause
significant fluctuations in its net
sales and cost of sales. Although the
Company uses its purchasing power
as one of the major buyers in the
printing industry to obrain favorable
prices, terms, quality control and
service, it may nonetheless
experience increases in the costs of its
raw materials in the future, as prices
in the overall paper and ink markets
are beyond the Company’s control.
In general, the Company has been
able to pass along increases in the
cost of paper and ink to many of its
customers. [f Quebecor World is
unable to continue to pass any price
increases on to its customers, future
increases in the price of paper and
ink would adversely affect its

margins and profits.

Due to the significance of paper in its
business, the Company is dependent
upon the availability of paper. In
periods of high demand, certain paper
grades have been in short supply,
including grades used in the
Company’s business. [n addition,
during periods of tight supply, many
paper producers allocate shipments of
paper based upon historical purchase
levels of customers. Although the
Company gencrally has  not
experienced significant difficulty in
obtaining adequate quantities of paper,
unforeseen developments in the overall
paper markets could result in a decrease
in the supply of paper and could cause
either or both of the Company’s

revenues or profits to decline.

Labor
component of the Company’s cost

represents a  significant
structure. Increases in wages, salaries
and benefits, such as medical, dental,
pension and other post-retirement
benefits, may impact the Company’s
financial performance. Changes in
interest rates, investment returns or
the regulatory environment may
impact the amounts the Company is
required to contribute to the pension
plans that it sponsors and may affect
the solvency of such pension plans.

The demand for the Company’s
products and services may be
adversely affected by technological
changes

Technological changes continue to
increase the accessibility and quality
of electronic alternatives to traditional




delivery of printed documents
through the online distribution and
hosting of media content and the
electronic distribution of documents
and data. The acceleration of

consumer acceptance of such
electronic media, as an alternative to
print marerials, may decrease the
demand for the Company’s printed
products or result in reduced pricing

for its printing services.

The Company may be adversely
affected by strikes and other labor
protests

As of today, Quebecor World has 51
collective bargaining agreements in
North America. Furthermore, 11
collective bargaining agreements are
under negotiation (10 of these
agreements expired in 2006 and 1
expired prior to 2006). Two of the

agreements  under  negotiation,
covering  approximately 500
employees, are first-time labor

agreements. In addition, 9 collective
bargaining  agreements, covering
approximately 1,400 employees, will
expire in 2007. The Company has
approximately 22,300 employees in
North  America, of  which
approximately 7,300 or approximately
33%, are unionized. Currently, 72 of
the Companys plants and related
facilities in North America are non-
unionized. The Company also has
approximately 2,200 employees in
Latin America of which the majoricy
are either governed by agreements that
apply industry wide or by a collective
The Company has

agreement.

approximately 4,300 employees in
Europe. The Company’s facility in the
United Kingdom is unionized, while
labor relations with employees in the
Company’s other European facilities
are governed by agreements that apply
industry-wide and that set minimum
terms and conditions of employment.
While relations with the Company’s
employees have been stable to date and
there has not been any material
disruption in operations resulting from
labor disputes, the Company cannot
be certain that it will be able w
maintain a productive and efficienc
labor environment. The Company
canpot predict the outcome of any
future negotiations relating to the
renewal of the collective bargaining
agreements, nor can It assure with
certainty that work stoppages, strikes
or other forms of labor protests
pending the outcome of any future
negotiations will not occur. Any strikes
or other forms of labor protests in the
future could materially disrupr the
Company’s operations and result in a
matetial adverse impact on its financial
condition, operating results and cash
flows, which could force the Company
to reassess its strategic alternatives

involving certain of its operations.

The Company may be adversely
affected by interest rates, foreign
exchange rates and commodity
prices

The Company is exposed to market
risks associated with fluctuations in
foreign currency exchange rates,
interest rates and commodity prices.

Because a portion of the Company’s
operations are outside the United
States, significant revenues and
expenses will be denominated in local
currencies. Although operating in
local currencies may limit the impact
of currency rate fluctuations on the
operating results of the Company’s
non-U.S. subsidiaries and business
units, fluctuarions in such rates may
affect the translation of these results

the

statements. The Company uses a

into Company’s financial

number of derivative financial
instruments to mitigate these risks
such as foreign exchange forward
contracts and cross currency swaps,
interest rate swap agreements and
commodity swap agreements. The
Company cannot be sure, however,
that its efforts at hedging will be
There is

possibility that artempts to hedge

successful. always a
currency, interest rate and commodity
risks will lead to higher costs than
would be the case if it were unhedged.

There are risks associated with the

Company’s operations outside the
United States and Canada

The
operations outside the United States
and Canada.
operations outside the United States
Canada
approximately 21% of the Company’s

Company has significant

Revenues from its

and accounted  for

revenues for the year ended December
31, 2006. As a result, the Company is
subject to the risks inherent in
conducting business outside the United
States and Canada, including the



Management's Discussion and Analysis

impact of economic and polirical
instability and being subject to different
legal and regulatory regimes that may
preclude or make more costly certain
initiatives or the implementation of
certain elements of the Company’s

business strategy.

Increases in fuel and other energy
costs may have a negative impact
on the Company’s financial results
Fuel and other energy costs represent

the
The

Company may not be able to pass

a significant portion  of

Company’s overall costs.
along a substantial portion of the rise
in the price of fuel and other energy
costs directly to its customers. In that
instance, increases in fuel and other
energy costs, particularly resulting
from increased natural gas prices,
could adversely affect operating costs
or customer demand and thereby
negatively impact the Company’s
operating results, financial condition

or cash flows.

The Company’s printing and other
facilities are subject to environmental
laws and regulations, which may
subject the Company to material
liability or require the Company to
incur material costs

The Company uses various materials
in its operations that contain
constituents considered hazardous or
toxic under environmental laws and

the

Company’s operations are subject to

regulations. In  addirion,

a variety of environmental laws and
regulations relating to, among other
things, air emissions, wastewater
discharges and the generation,
handling, storage, transportation
and disposal of solid waste. Further,
the Company is subject to laws and
regulations designed to reduce the
probability of spills and leaks;
however, in the event of a release, the
Company is also subject to
environmental regulation requiring
an appropriate response to such an
event. Permits are required for the

the

Company’s businesses, and these

operation of certain of
permits are subject to renewal,

modification and, in some

circumstances, revocation.

The Company’s operations generate
wastes that are disposed of off-site.
Under certain environmental laws,
the Company may be liable for
cleanup costs and damages relating to
contamination at these off-site
disposal locations, or at its existing or
former facilities, whether or not the
Company knew of, or was responsible

the

contamination,

for, presence  of  such

The

costs and other costs required to clean

remediation

up or treat contaminated sites can be
substantial. Contamination on and
from its current or former locations
may subject the Company to liabilicy
to third parties or governmental
authorities for injuries to persons,

property or natural resources and may

adversely affect its ability to sell or
rent its properties or to borrow
money using such properties as

collateral.

The Company expects to incur
ongoing capital and operating costs to
with

maintain compliance

environmental  laws,  including

faciliies  for

The

Company takes reserves on its financial

monitoring  its
environmental  conditions.

statements to cover potential

environmental  remediation  and
compliance costs as it considers
appropriate. However, there can be no
assurance that the liabilities for which
the Company has taken reserves are the
only environmental liabilities relating
to its current and former locations, that
material environmental conditions not
known to the Company do not exist,
that future laws or regulations will not
impose material environmental liabiliry
on the Company, or cause the
Company to incur significant capiral
and operating expenditures, or that the
Company’s actual environmental
liabilities will not exceed its reserves. In
addition, failure to comply with any
environmental regulations or an
increase in regulations could adversely
affect its operating results and financial

condition.



The Company could be adversely
affected by health and safety
requirements

The

requirements of Canadian, U.S. and

Company is subject to
other foreign occupational health and
safety laws and regulations ar the
federal, state, provincial and local

These

levels.

requirements  are
complex, constantly changing and
have tended to become more

stringent over rime, It is possible that
these requirements may change or
liabilities may arise in the future in a
manner that could have a material
adverse effect on the Company’s
financial condition or results of
operations. The Company cannot
assure investors thar it has been or
that it will be at all times in complete
compliance  with  all  such
requirements or thar it will not incur
material costs or liabilities in
connection with those requirements

in the future.

Acquisitions have contributed to
growth in the Company’s industry
and will continue to do so, making
the Company vulnerable to financing
risks and the challenges of integrating
new operations into its own

Due the

commercial printing industry, growth

to fragmentation in

in the Company’s industry will
continue to depend, in part, upon
acquisitions, and the Company may
consider

making  strategic or

opportunistic acquisitions in the

future. The Company cannot assure
investors that future acquisition
opportunities will exist on acceptable
terms, that any newly acquired

will be

integrated into its operations or that it

companies successfully
will fully realize the intended results
of any acquisitions. The Company
may incur additional long-term
indebtedness in order to finance all or
a portion of the consideration to be
paid in future acquisitions. The
Company cannot provide any
assurance that it will be able to obtain
any such financing upon acceptable

While  the

continuously evaluates opportunities

terms. Company

to make strategic or opportunistic
has

COMmMmitments of agreements with

acquisitions, it no present

respect to any material acquisitions.

The Company is controlled by
Quebecor Inc.

Quebecor Inc., directly and through a
wholly-owned subsidiary, currentdy
holds 84.6% of the voting interest in
the Company. As a result, Quebecor
Inc. is able to exercise significant
influence over the Company’s business
and affairs and has the power to
determine many matters requiring
shareholder approval, including the
election of direcrors and the approval
of significant corporate transactions.
The interests of Quebecor Inc. may
conflict with the interests of other
holders of the Company’s equity and

debr securities.

8.2 ADDITIONAL RISKS
RELATING TO THE
COMPANY’S

DEBT SECURITIES

The Company’s indebtedness and

significant  interest  payment
obligations could adversely affect
its financial condition and prevent
it from fulfilling its obligations
under its various outstanding
notes, debentures and other debt
securities

‘The Company’s and its consolidated
subsidiaries have indebredness and, as
a result, significant interest payment
obligations. As of December 31,
2006, the
consolidated subsidiaries have a total

debt of $2,132.4 million. The
the

indentures governing its various

Company and its

Company’s credit facilities,

notes, debentures and other debt

securities and the terms and
conditions of its other existing
indebtedness will  permit  the

Company or its consolidated
subsidiaries to incur or guarantee
additional indebtedness, including
secured indebtedness in some
circumstances. As of December 31,
2006, the

consolidated

Company and its

subsidiaries  have
approximately $957.8 million in
undrawn commitments under its
credit facilicies. To the extent the
Company incurs new indebredness,

the risks discussed above will increase.



Management's Discussion ana Analysis

The Company’s degree of leverage
could have significant consequences,
including the following:
* Make it more difficult for the
Company to  satsfy  its
obligations with respect to its

various  outstanding  debt
securities;
* Increase  the  Company’s

vulnerability to general adverse

economic and industry
conditions;

* Require the Company to dedicate
a substantial portion of its cash
flows from operations to making
interest and principal payments
on its indebtedness;

* Limit the Company’s ability to
fund
working capital and other general

capital  expenditures,
corporate purposes;

+ Limit the Company’s flexibility in
planning for, or reacting to,
changes in its businesses and the
industry in which the Company
operates, including cyclical
downturns in its industry;

* Place the Company at a

competitive disadvantage
compared to its competirors that
have less debt; and

* Limit the Company’s ability to
borrow additional funds on
commercially reasonable terms, if

at all.

Some of the Company’s financing
agreements contain financial and
other covenants that, if breached by

the Company, may require it to

repay,
refinance  its

redeem, repurchase or
existing  debt
obligations prior to their scheduled
maturity. The Company’s ability to
refinance such obligations may be
restricted due to prevailing
conditions in the capital markets,
available liquidity and other factors
The Company is party to a number
of financing agreements, including its
unsecured  credit  facility, the
indentures governing its various
senior notes, convertible notes and
senior debentures, the Company’s
accounts receivable securitization

debt

agreements,

and  other
which

indentures and instruments contain

programs,

instruments,

financial and other covenants. If the
Company were to breach such
other

financial or covenants

contained in  its  financing
agreements, the Company may be
required to redeem, repay, repurchase
or refinance its ecxisting debt
obligations prior to their scheduled
maturity and the Company’s ability
to do so may be restricted or limited
by the prevailing conditions in the
capital markets, available liquidity
and other factors. If the Company is
unable to refinance any of its debt
obligations in such circumstances, its
ability to make capital expenditures
and its financial condition and cash
flows could be significantly adversely
impacted. On December 8, 2006,

the Company obtained a temporary

accommodation from the syndicate
of lenders under its credit facilities
with respect to certain covenants
under such facilities in order to
provide the Company with greater
flexibility. A

accommodation with respect to a

financial similar
termination provision was sought
and obtained from the counterparties
under the Company’s accounts
receivable securitization programs,
There can be no assurance that, in
the event the Company requires
similar accommodations in the
future, as a result of weaker than
expected financial performance or
otherwise, that it will obtain such

be able to

renegotiate the terms and conditions

accommodations or

of irs financing agreements and
which

would in turn require the Company

securitization  programs,
to redeem, repay or repurchase such
obligations prior to their scheduled

maturity.

In addition, from time to time, new
accounting rules, pronouncements
and interpretations are enacted or
promulgated which may require the
Company, depending on the nature
of such new accounting rules,
pronouncements and interpretations,
to reclassify or restate certain
elements of its financial statements or
to calculate in a different manner
some of the financial ratios set forth

financing

debt

in the Company’s

other

agreements  and




inscruments, which may in turn
cause the Company to be in breach
of the financial or other covenants
contained in its financing agreements

and other debr instruments.

The Company’s various unsecured
notes, debentures and other debt
securities are effectively subordinated
to its secured indebtedness

The Company’s various unsecured
notes, debentures and other debt
the
Company’s unsecured credit facility,

instruments, including
and the guarantees of such notes,
debentures and other debt securities
are unsecured and will therefore be
cffectively subordinated to any
the
Company may incur to the exrent of
the

indebtedness. In the event of a

secured indebtedness that

assets  securing  such
bankruptcy or similar proceeding
with respect to the Company, the
assets which serve as collateral for
any of its secured indebtedness will
be available to satisfy the obligations
under the secured indebtedness
before any payments are made on
the Company’s unsecured notes,
debentures and other debt securities.
As of December 31, 2006, the
Company had an aggregate of
$2,132.4 debt

outstanding and no senior secured

debx.

million  of

The Company depends on the cash

flows from its subsidiaries that are

not guarantors of its various notes,
debentures and other debt securities
to meet the Company’s obligations,
and its debt holders’ right to receive
payment on their relevant debt
securities will be structurally
subordinate to the obligations of
these non-guarantor subsidiaries

Not all of the Company's subsidiaries
have guaranteed the Company’s
various notes, debentures and other
debrt securities. These non-guarantor
subsidiaries are separate and distiner
legal entities and have no obligation
to pay any amounts due pursuant to
its debt securiries or the guarantees of
such debr securities or 1o provide the
issuer or the guarantors of such debt
securities with funds for their
respective payment obligations. The
Company’s cash flows and the
Company’s ability to service its
indebtedness depend principally on
the earnings of its non-guarantor
subsidiaries and on the distribution of
earnings, loans or other payments to
the Company by these subsidiaries. In
addition, the ability of these non-
guarantor subsidiaries to make any
dividend, distribution, loan or other
payment to the issuer or a guarantor
of the Company’s debt securities
could be subject to statutory or
contractual restrictions. Payments to
the issuer or a guarantor by these
non-guarantor subsidiaries will also
be contingent upon their earnings
and their business considerations.

Because the Company depends

principally on the cash flows of these
non-guarantor subsidiaries to meet its
obligations, these types of restrictions
may impair the Company’s ability to
make scheduled interest and principal
payments on its various outstanding

debr securiries.

Furthermore, in the event of any
bankruptcy, tiquidation or
reorganization of a non-guarantor
subsidiary, holders of the Company’s
debt securities will not have any
claim as a creditor against such
subsidiary. As a result, the guarantees
of the Company’s various notes,
debentures and other debt securities
will be effectively subordinated to all
of the liabilities of its subsidiaries
other than such subsidiaries that
cither issued or guaranteed the debt
securities in question. The creditors
(including trade creditors) of those
non-guarantor subsidiaries will have
the right to be paid before payment
on the guarantees to the holders of

the

debentures and ocher debt securiries

Company’s various notes,
from any assets received or held by
those subsidiaries. In the event of
bankruprcy, liquidation or
dissolution of a subsidiary, following
payment by the subsidiary of its
liabilities, the subsidiary may not
t0 make

have sufficient assets

payments to the Company.

The Company may not be able to
finance a change of control offer
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required by the indentures governing
its various notes, debentures and
other debt securities because the
Company may not have sufficient
funds at the time of the change of
control

If the Company were to experience a
change of control (as defined under
each of the relevant indentures
governing the Company’s various
notes, debentures and other debt
securities), it would, under certain of
the indentures, be required to make
an offer to purchase all of the notes,
debentures or other debt securiries
issued thereunder then outstanding at
a specified premium to the principal
amount (often 101%) plus accrued
and unpaid interest, if any, to the date
of purchase. However, the Company
may not have sufficient funds at the
time of the change of control to make
the required repurchase of the notes,
debentures or other debt securities.
Canadian  bankruptcy  and
insolvency laws may impair the
trustee’s ability to enforce remedies
under the Company’s various
outstanding notes, debentures and
other debt securities

The rights of the trustee who
the holders of the

Company’s debt securities to enforce

represents

remedies could be delayed by the
restructuring provisions of applicable

federal

insolvency and other restructuring

Canadian bankruptcy,

legislation if the benefit of such

legislation is sought with respect to
the Company. For example, both the
Bankruptcy and  Insolvency  Act
(Canada) and the
Creditors Arrangement Act (Canada)

Companies

contain provisions enabling an
insolvent person to obtain a stay of
proceedings against its creditors and
to file a proposal to be voted on by
the various classes of its affected
creditors. A restructuring proposal, if
accepted by the requisite majorities of
each affected class of creditors, and if
approved by the relevant Canadian
court, would be binding on all
creditors within each affected class,
including those creditors thar did not
vote to accept the proposal. Moreover,
this legislation, in cerrain instances,
permits the insolvent debtor to retain
possession and administration of its
property, subject to court oversight,
even though it may be in default
under the applicable debt instrument,
during the period that the stay against

proceedings remains in place.

The powers of the court under the
Bankruptcy and  Insolvency Act
(Canada) and particularly under the
Companies’ Creditors Arrangement Act
(Canada) have been interpreted and
exercised broadly so as to protect a
restructuring entity from actions
taken by creditors and other parties.
Accordingly, the Company cannot
predict whether payments under its
various debt securities would be made
proceedings  in

during  any

bankruptcy, insolvency or other
restructuring, whether or when the
trustee could exercise its rights under

the the

Company’s various debt securities or

indenture  governing

whether and to what extent holders of
its debt

compensated for any delays in

securities would  be
payment, if any, of principal, interest
and costs, including the fees and
disbursements of the trustee.

Applicable statutes may allow
courts, under specific circumstances,
to void the guarantees of the
Company’s various notes,
debentures and other debt securities
The Company’s creditors could
challenge the guarantees of the
Company’s various notes, debentures
and other debt securities provided by
the Company or certain of its
subsidiaries as fraudulent transfers,
conveyances or preferences or on
other grounds under applicable U.S.
federal or state law or applicable
Canadian federal or provincial law.
The entering into of the guarantees
could be found to be a fraudulent
transfer, conveyance or preference and
declared void if a court were to
determine that the guarantor:

* delivered the guarantee with the
intent to hinder, delay or defraud
its existing or furure creditors or
the guarantor did not receive fair
consideration for the delivery of
the guarantee; or

* the relevant guarantor did not



receive fair consideration or

reasonably equivalent value in

exchange for the guarantee, and

* was insolvent at the time it
delivered the guarantee or was
rendered insolvent by the
giving of the guarantee; or

* was engaged in a business or
transaction for which such
guarantor's remaining assets
constituted unreasonably
small capital; or

+ intended to incur, or believed
it could incur, debts beyond
its ability to pay such debts as
they come due,

In addition, any payment by that
gUArantor pursuant to its guarantee
could be voided and required to be
returned to the guarantor, or to a

fund for the benefit of the credirors of

the guarantor.

The measures of insolvency for
purposes of these fraudulent transfer
laws will vary depending upon the
law applied in any proceeding to
determine whether a fraudulent
transfer has occurred. Generally,
however, a guarantor would be
considered insolvent if:

* the sum of its debrs, including
contingent liabilities, was greater
than the fair saleable value of all
of its assets; or

* the present fair saleable value of
its assets was less than the

amount that would be required

to pay its probable liabiliry on its
debs,

contingent liabilities, as they

existing including
became absolute and mature; or
* it could not pay its debrs as they

became due.

In general, the terms of the guarantees
of the Company’s various notes,
debentures and other debr securities
provided by the Company or certain
of its subsidiaries will limic the
liability of such guarantor(s) to the
maximum amount it (they} can pay
without the guarantee being deemed
a frauduient transfer. On the basis of
historical financial information,
recent operating history and other
factors, the Company believes that
cach guarantor of its debt securities,
after giving effect to its guarantee of
the relevant debt securities, will not
be insolvent, will not have
unreasonably small capital for the
business in which it is engaged and
will not have incurred debts beyond
its ability to pay such debts as they
The

provide any assurance, however, as to

mature. Company cannot
what standard a court would apply in
making these determinations or that a

the

Company’s conclusions with regard

court would agree with

to these issues.

To the extent a court voids 2
guarantee as a fraudulent transfer,
preference or conveyance or holds it

unenforceable for any other reason,

holders of the Company’s guaranteed
debt securities would cease to have
any direct claim against the guarantor

which delivered that guarantee.

An active trading market for the
Company’s debt securities may not
develop

The

debentures and other debt securities

Company’s various notes,

are not listed on any national
the

Company does not intend to have

securities  exchange, and
such debt securities listed on a

national securities exchange,
although some of its debt securities
have been rendered eligible for
trading in the Private Offerings,
Resale and Trading Through
Automatic Linkages, or PORTALSM,
Market. The market-makers of the
Company’s various notes, debentures
and other debt securities that are
eligible for trading on the
PORTALS™ Market may cease their
market-making at any time without
notice. Accordingly, the Company
cannot provide any assurance with
respect to the liquidity of the market
for such debt securities or the prices
at which investors may be able to sell

its debr securities.

In addition, the market for non-
debr  has

subject  to

investment

grade
historically  been
disruptions that caused volatility in
prices. It is possible that the market

for the Company’s various notes,
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debentures and other debt securities
will be subject to disruptions. Any
such disruptions may have a negative
effect on the ability of investors to
sell its debt securities regardless of
the Company’s prospects and

financial performance.

U.S. investors in the Company’s
securities may have difficulties
enforcing certain civil liabilities

The Company is governed by the
laws of Canada and a number of its
subsidiaries are governed by the laws
of a jurisdiction outside of the
United States. Moreover, the
Company’s controlling persons and
a majority of its directors and officers
are residents of Canada or other
jurisdictions outside of the United
States and all or a substantial portion
of their assers and a significant
portion of the Company’s assets are
located outside of the Unired States.
As a result, it may be difficult for the
Company’s security holders to effect
service of process upon the
Company or such persons within the
United States or to enforce, against
the Company or them in the United
States, judgments of courts of the
Unired States predicated upon the
civil liability provisions of U.S.
federal or state securities laws or
other laws of the United States.
There s

enforceability in certain jurisdictions

doubt as to the

outside the United States of

liabilities predicated solely upon

U.S. federal or state securities laws
against the Company, its controlling
persons, directors and officers who
are not residents of the United
States, in original actions or in
actions for enforcements of

judgments of U.S. courts.

Montreal, Canada

March 20, 2007




managements kesponsiblility ror
Financial Statements

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of Quebecor World Inc. and its subsidiaries are the responsibilicy

of management and are approved by the Board of Directors of Quebecor World Inc.

These financial statements have been prepared by management in conformity with Canadian generally accepted

accounting principles and include amounts thar are based on best estimates and judgments.

Management of the Company and of its subsidiaries, in furtherance of the integrity and objectivity of data in the
financial statements, have developed and maintain systems of internal accounting controls and support a program of
internal audit. Management believes that the systems of internal accounting controls provide reasonable assurance that
financial records are reliable and form a proper basis for the preparation of the financial statements and that assets are

properly accounted for and safeguarded.

The Board of Directors carries out its responsibility for the financial statements principally through its Audit Commirtee,
consisting solely of outside directors. The Audit Committee reviews the Company’s annual consolidated financial
statements and formulates the appropriate recommendations to the Board of Directors. The auditors appointed by the

shareholders have full access to the Audit Committee, with and without management being present.

These financial statements have been audited by the auditors appointed by the sharcholders, KPMG LLP, chartered

accountants, and their report is presented hereafter.

The Right Honourable Jacques Mallette Mario Savcier

Brian Mulroney Executive Vice President and Senior Vice President and
Chairman of the Board Chief Financial Officer Chief Accounting Officer
Montreal, Canada

March 20, 2007



Reporr of Independent kegisiered FubliC
Accounting Firm

To the Shareholders and to the Board of Directors of Quebecor World Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Quebecor World Inc. ("the Company”) and subsidiaries
as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 and the related consolidated statements of earnings, shareholders’ equity and cash
flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2006. These consolidated financial statements
are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated

financial statements based on cur audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. With respect to the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2006, we also conducted our audit in accordance
with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about wherher the financial statements are free of material
misstaternent. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a

reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 and the results of their operations and their
cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2006 in conformity with Canadian generally

accepted accounting principles.

Canadian generally accepted accounting principles vary in certain significant respects from US generally accepted
accounting principles. Information relating to the nature and effect of such differences is presented in Note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements. As discussed in that note the Company changed, in 2006, its method of accounting

for pensions and other postretirement benefits plans.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on
the criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission (COSO), and our report dated March 20, 2007, expressed an unqualified opinion on

management's assessment of, and an adverse opinion on the effective operation of, internal control over financial reporting.

ARANE LUFP

Chartered Accountants
Montreal, Canada
March 20, 2007




Report or Inaependent Registered FubliC
Accounting Firm

To the Shareholders and to the Board of Directors of Quebecor World Inc.

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management Discussion & Analysis, that
Quebecor World Inc. ("the Company”) did not maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2006, based on the criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the
Commirtee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company's management is
responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on management's assessment and

an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board {United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective
internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an
understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management's assessment, testing and evaluating
the design and operating cffectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we considered

necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statemnents in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,

or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate

because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

A material weakness is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that results in more than a remote

likelihood thar a material misstatemenc of the annual financial statements will not be prevented or detected. The following
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material weakness has been identified and included in management's assessment. The Company did not mainrain effective
processes and controls over the determination of the impairment of long-term assets process. Specifically, it did not
identify, communicate and document sufficiently in its analysis financial information that could impact the Impairment
of assets, restructuring and other charges account. We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated balance sheet, and the related statements of
earnings, shareholders’ cquity and cash flows of Quebecor World Inc. for the year ended December 31, 2006. This
material weakness was considered in determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the
2006 consolidated financial statements, and this report does not affect our report dated March 20, 2007, which expressed

an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, management's assessment that Quebecor World Inc. did not maintain effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the criteria established in
Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO). Also, in our opinion, because of the effect of the material weakness described above on the
achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, Quebecor World Inc. has not maintained effective internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on the criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated

Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).

AANE 4P

Chartered Accountants
Montreal, Canada
March 20, 2007



Consolidared crarements or Income

Years ended December 31
{In millions of US dollars, except per share amounts)

Note 2006 2005 |, 2004
Operating revenuves 5 6,086.3 $ 62833 $ 63395
Operating expenses:
Cost of sales 5,111.4 52010 50975
Selling, general and administrative 393.8 396.8 431.5
Securitization fees 3.0 23.8 14.5
Depreciation and amortization 308.6 304.2 3249
Impairment of assets, restructuring and other charges 2 111.3 94.2 115.6
Goodwill impairment charge 12 - 243.0 -
5,956.1 6,263.0 5,784.0
Operating income 130.2 20.3 355.5
Financial expenses 3 134.2 119.0 133.1
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes {4.0) (98.7) 222.4
Income taxes 4 {35.4) 50.4 77.0
Income (loss) from continuing operations before minority interest 31.4 (149.1) 145.4
Minority interest 0.8 {0.3) 5.5
Net income {loss) from continuing operations 30.6 (148.8) 139.9
Net income {loss} from discontinued operations {net of tax) 5 {2.3) {13.8) 3.8
Net income (loss) $ 28.3 $ [162.6) 3 143.7
Net income allocated to holders of preferred shares 34.0 39.6 37.5
Net income {loss) available to holders of equity shares $ {5.7) $ {202.2) $ 106.2
Earnings (loss} per share: 6
Basic and diluted:
Continving operations $ (0.03) $ (1.43) $ 0.77
Discontinued operations (0.01) [0.10) 0.03
] {0.04) 3 {1.53] 3 0.80
Weighted-average number of equity shares ouvistanding: 6
{in millions)
Basic 131.4 131.8 132.4
Diluted 131.4 131.8 132.6
Sea accompanying Motes to Consolidated Financial Stotemens.




Consolidared ocrarements or

Shareholders’ Equity

Years ended December 31
{In millions of US dollars)

Totai
Capital  Contributed Resgined Translation shareholders’
Note stock surplus eorrl;ings adjustment equity
Balance, December 31, 2003, as previously reported $1,693.1 $1059 $723.6 $ (19.2) $ 2,503.4
Cumulative effect of change in accounting policy ] - - {31.8) - (31.8)
Balance, December 31, 2003, revised 1 %$1,693.1 $1059 $691.8 $ (19.2) $ 24716
Net income - - 143.7 - 143.7
Reductions in net investments in selfsustaining
foreign operations 18 - - - (1.0) (1.9
Translatien adjustment 18 - - - 56.8 56.8
Equity shares issued from stock plons 17 12.2 - . - 12.2
Related party tronsactions ? . {0.5) - . (0.5)
Stock-based compensation 19 - 4.3 - - - 4.3
Dividends on equity shares - - {68.8] - (68.8)
Dividends on preferred shares - - {37.5) - {37.5)
Balance, December 31, 2004, revised 1 $1,705.3 $109.7 $ 7292 $ 366 $ 2,580.8
Net loss . - (162.6} - (162.6)
Translation adjustment 18 - - . (57.0} (57.0}
Equity shares repurchased 17,18 (33.0) - {?.8} (3.8} (46.6)
Equity shares issued from stock plans 17 16.3 - - - 16.3
Related party transactions @ . 0.2) - - 0.2}
Stock-based compensation 19 - 1.1 - . 1.1
Dividends on equity shares - - (73.4) - {73.4)
Dividends on preferred shares - - (39.6) - {39.6)
Balance, December 31, 2005, revised 1 $1,68806 $110.6 $ 4438 $ (24.2) $ 2,218.8
Net income - - 28.3 - 283
Reductions in net investments in self-sustaining
foreign operations 18 - - - 2.5 25
Translation adjustment 18 - - - 2.1 21.1
Preferred shares redempfion 17,18 (130.2) - - (45.7) (175.9)
Equity shares issued from stock plans 17 7.9 - - - 7.9
Related party transactions @ - {1.0) - - (1.0)
Stock-based compensation 19 - 4.5 - - 4.5
Dividends on equity shares - - {39.8) - (39.8)
Dividends on preferred shares - - (34.0) - {34.0)
Balance, December 31, 2006 $1,566.3 $114.1 $ 398.3 $ (46.3) $ 2,032.4

See accompanying Notes to Consolidoted Financial Statements.



Consoliaared Statements or Cash Flows

Years ended December 31
{In miflions of US dollars)

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net income (loss) 28.3 $ (162.6) 143.7
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 308.4 308.1 334.5
Impairment of assets and non<cash portion of
restructuring and other charges 2 34.9 53.9 83.3
Goodwill impairment charge 12 - 243.0 -
Future income taxes 4 2,2 {20.7) 42.8
Amortization of other assets 30.0 27.3 27.0
Loss on business disposals 3.8 1.1 -
Loss on exdinguishment of lengterm debt 3 - - 20
Other 7.9 5.1 13.8
Net changes in noncash balances related to operations:
Trade receivables (38.6) (30.9) (28.8)
Inventories 5.6 26.1 6.1}
Trade payables and accrued liabilities 18.4 (16.1} {93.5}
Other current assets and liabilities (89.9) 42.3 56.7
Other noncurrent assets and liabilities {75.0) (7.1) (87.6)
(179.5) 14.3 {159.3]
Cash flows provided by operating activities 236.0 469.5 487.8
Cash flows from financing activities:
Net change in bank indebtedness - - {1.3)
Issuance of longderm debt net of issvance costs 14 950.1 - -
Repayments of longterm debt 14 (459.3) (19.2} (218.3)
Net borrowings {repayments} under revolving bank
facility and commercial paper (239.2) (88.4} 110.0
Net proceeds from issuance of equity shares 17 7.9 16.3 12.2
Redemption of preferred shares 17 (175.9) - -
Repurchases of equity shares 17 - {46.6) -
Dividends on equity shares (39.8) {73.4) (68.8)
Dividends on preferred shares (43.1) (39.6) (38.8)
Dividends to minority shareholders - - [0.8)
Cash flows provided {used in} financing activities 0.7 {250.9) (205.8)
Cash flows fram investing activities:
Business acquisitions, net of cash ond cash equivalents 7 (0.1) 7.0} {50.5)
Proceeds from business disposals, net of cash and cash equivalents 28.5 66.9 -
Additions to property, plant and equipment {313.8) {394.0 {132.6)
Net proceeds from disposal of assets 82.5 16.4 3.0
Proceeds from disposal of derivative financial instruments 20 - 69.2 .
Restricted cash 13 {15.0) {26.1) (7.0
Cash flows used in investing activities (217.9) (274.6) (187.1)
Effect of foreign currency (19.3) 22.5 (58.2)
Net changes in cash and cash equivalents (0.5) (33.5) 367
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 21 18.3 51.8 15.1
Cash ond cash equivalents, end of year 21 17.8 $ 18.3 51.8

Supplementary cash fow information in Note 21.
See accompanying Notes fo Consolidated Financial Statements.



consoligated balance dheerts

At December 31

(In millions of US dollars)

MNote 2006 2005
{Revised, Note 1)
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 21 17.8 18.3
Trade receivables 8 445.6 4299
Receivables from related porfies 9 20.3 14.3
Inventories 10 356.7 356.0
Income taxes receivable 35.2 3.0
Future income taxes 4 40.6 34.4
Prepaid expenses 23.2 22.1
Total current assets 939.4 878.0
Property, plant and equipment H 2,287.4 2,2959
Goodwill 12 2,324.3 2,3057
Restricted cosh 13 48.1 331
Other assets 224.2 187.7
Total assets 5,823.4 5,700.4
Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity
Current liabilities:
Trade payables and accrued liabilities 942.4 876.1
Payables to related parties 9 1.5 8.4
Income and other taxes payable 39.7 84.5
Future income taxes 4 1.1 1.7
Current portion of long-term debt 14 30.7 7.7
Total current liabilities 1,015.4 G78.4
Long-term debt 14 1,984.0 1,731.9
Other liabilities 15 283.5 2763
Future income taxes 4 389.1 3789
Convertible notes 16 117.7 115.5
Minority interest 1.3 0.6
Shareholders' equity:
Capital stock 17 1,566.3 1,688.6
Contributed surplus 11441 110.6
Retained earnings 398.3 443.8
Translotion adjustment 18 (46.3) [24.2)
2,032.4 22188
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 5,823.4 5,700.4

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

On behalf of the Board:

The Right Honourable Brian Mulroney, Director

L s,

Wes William Lucas, Director



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004
{Tobular amounts are expressed in millions of US dollars, except per share and option amounts)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICY - EVALUATION OF MISSTATEMENT POLICY

The Company changed retroactively its accounting policy relating to the evaluation of misstatements in its financial
statements in accordance with Section 1506, Accounting Changes of the CICA Handbook. The Company applied
a methodology consistent with that of the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) Staff Accounting Bulletin No.
108, Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial
Statements (“SAB 108”). The Company will now quantify the effect of prior-year misstatements on the current-year
financial statements, assessing their impact on both the financial position and results of operations of the Company
and evaluating the materiality of misstatements quantified on the above in light of quantitative and qualitative factors,
Accordingly, the Company adjusted its consolidated balance sheet as at December 31, 2005 and adjusted its closing
retained earnings in 2003 in the consolidated statements of retained earnings by $31.8 million. There was no impact
on the consolidated statements of income and cash flows nor on the earnings per share for the years ended December
31, 2006, 2005 and 2004. The adjustments related to misstatements arose mainly in 2001 and in prior years. The
adjustments are comprised of (i) a reduction of $8.4 million to work in process 1o consistently apply the revenue
recognition policy throughout the platforms for work not completed at year-end, (ii) an increase of other liabilities
by $17.0 million ($11.0 million net of tax} resulting from the assessment of the sales process by the management,
and (iii) an increase of future income tax liability by $12.4 million, which reflects the impact of an understatement
in future income tax liability.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Principles of conselidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Quebecor World Inc. and all its subsidiaries {the
“Company”) and are prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

(b) Use. of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabiliries
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. Financial
results as determined by actual events could differ from those estimates.

Examples of significant estimates include: key economic assumptions used in determining the allowance for
doubtful accounts and some of the amounts accrued for restructuring and other charges; the composition of
future income tax assets; the useful life of property, plant and equipment; actuarial and economic assumptions
used in determining pension and postretirement costs, accrued pension and other postretirement benefit
obligations and pension plan assets; provisions and contingencies; and the assumptions used in impairment tests
on long-lived assets and goodwill.

(c) Foreign currency translation

The Company’s functional currency is the Canadian dollar and its reporting currency for the presentation of its
consolidated financial statements is the U.S. dollar.



(c)
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Foreign currency translation (cont'd)

Financial statements of self-sustaining foreign operations are translated using the rate in effect at the balance
sheet date for asset and liability items and the average exchange rates during the year for revenues and expenses.
Adjustments arising from this translation are deferred and recorded in translation adjustment and are included
in income only when a reduction in the investment in these forcign operations is realized.

Other foreign currency transactions are translated using the temporal method. Translation gains and losses are
included in financial expenses.

Revenue recognition

The Company provides a wide variety of print and print-related services to its customers, which usually require
that the specifics be agreed upon prior to undertaking the process. Substantially all of the Company's revenues
are derived from commercial printing and related services under the magazine, retail, catalog, book and directory
platforms.

Revenue is principally recognized when the following four revenue recognition criteria are met: persuasive
evidence of an arrangement exists, services have been rendered, the price of the transaction is fixed or
determinable, and collectibility is reasonably assured.

Services are sold either stand-alone or together as 2 multiple deliverables arrangement. Certain deliverables of
multiple service arrangements are separately accounted for, provided the delivered elements have stand-alone
value to the customer and the fair value of any undelivered elements can be objectively and reliably determined.
These identifiable deliverables include pre-media setvices, printing and related services and delivery. For
arrangements which include multiple deliverables and for which the criteria for recognition as a multiple
arrangements are met, the total contract value is allocated to each deliverable based on its relative fair value.
Where the criteria are not met, it is recognized as a single unit of accounting, according to revenue recognition
criteria stated above.

Contract revenue is recognized using the proportional performance method on the basis of output at the pro-
rata billing value of work completed. Contract revenues that do not meet the criteria for proportional performance
method are recorded when the performance of the agreed services is achieved. The Company also performs
logistics and distribution services for the delivery of products related to print services for which the revenues are
recognized once freight services are performed.

Revenue is presented in the consolidated statements of income, net of rebates, discounts, and amortization of
contract acquisition costs. Provisions for estimared losses, if any, are recognized in the period in which the loss
is determinable.

Contract acquisition costs

Contract acquisition costs consist of cash payments, free services, or accruals related 1o amounts payable or credits
owed to customers in connection with long-term agreements. Contract acquisition costs are generally amortized
as reductions of revenue ratably over the related contract term or as related sales volume are recognized. Whenever
events or changes occur that impact the related contract, including significant declines in the anticipated
profitability, the Company evaluates the carrying value of the contract acquisition costs to determine whether
impairment has occurred. These costs are included in other assets in the consolidated balance sheets.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investments purchased three months or less from maturity and
are stated at cost, which approximates market value.
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(h)

(i)

()

(k)

Sales of trade receivables )

Transfers of trade receivables under the Company’s asset securitization programs are recognized as sales when the
Company is deemed to have surrendered control over the trade receivables. Any gains or losses on the sale of trade
receivables are calculated by comparing the carrying amounr of the trade receivables sold to the sum of rotal
proceeds on the sale and the fair value of the retained interest in such receivables on the date of transfer. The fair
value of the retained interest approximates its carrying value given the short-term nature of associated cash flows.
Costs, including gains or losses on the sale of trade receivables, are recognized in income in the period incurred
and included in securitization fees in the consolidated statements of income.

Inventories

Raw materials and supplies are measured at the lower of cost, using the first-in, first-out method and market value,
being replacement cost.

Work-in-progress is measured at the pro-rara billing value for work completed as a result of print services for
which revenues have been recognized under the proportional performance method. When the criteria have not
been met to allow for recognition of revenue, related work in progress is measured as direct costs are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Cost represents acquisition or construction costs including
preparation, installation, testing costs and interest incurred with respect to property, plant and equipment until
they are ready for commercial production.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives as follows:

Estimated
Assets useful lives
Buildings 15 to 40 years
Machinery and equipment 310 18 years
Leasehold improvements Lesser of the term of the lease or usefyl life
Goodwill

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually for all of the Company’s reporting units, or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the asset might be impaired. The impairment test is carried
out in two steps. In the first step, the carrying amount of the reporting unit is compared to its fair value,
When the fair value of a reporting unit exceeds its carrying amount, the goodwill of the reporting unit is
considered not to be impaired and the second step is not required. The second step of the impairment test is
carried out when the carrying amount of a reporting unit exceeds its fair value, in which case the implied fair
value of the reporting unit’s goodwill is compared to its carrying amount to measure the amount of the
impairment, if any. When the carrying amount of the reporting unit’s goodwill exceeds the implied fair value
of the goodwill, an impairment is recognized in an amount equal to the excess and is presented as a separate
item In the consolidated statement of income.

Income taxes

The Company follows the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under this method, future
income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the estimated furure tax consequences artriburable to differences
berween the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases.
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(k) Income taxes (cont'd)

0

Future income tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted or substantively enacted tax rates in effect for
the year in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on future income
rax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment,
or substantive enactment date. A valuation allowance is established, if necessary, to reduce any furure income tax
asset to an amount that is more likely than not to be realized.

Stock-based compensation plans

The Company uses the fair value based method of accounting for all stock options granted to its employees,
whereby a compensation expense is recognized over the vesting period of the options, with a corresponding
increase to contributed surplus. The Company bases the accruals of compensation cost on the best available
estimate of the number of options that are expected to vest and revises thar estimate, if subsequent information
indicates that actual forfeitures are likely to differ from initial estimates. When stock options are exercised, capital
stock is credited by the sum of the consideration paid by the employee, together with the related portion
previously recorded to contributed surplus.

For the employee share plans, the Company's contribution on the employee’s behalf is recognized as compensation
expense. The contribution paid by the employee on the purchase of stock is recorded as an increase to capital stock.

Deferred Stock Units (“DSU”) are recognized in compensation expense and accrued liabiliies as they are awarded.
DSU are remeasured at each reporting period, until settlement, using the trading price of the Subordinated
Voting Shares.

For the Deferred Performance Share Units (‘“DPSU”), the Company’s matching contribution of 20 % is
recognized in compensation expense over the 3-year period during which it is earned, with a corresponding
increase to contributed surplus.

(m) Derivative financial and commodity instruments

The Company uses various derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to flucruations in foreign
currency exchange rates, interest rates, and commodity pricing. The Company does not hold or use any derivative
instruments for specularive purposes. The Company documents all designated hedging relationships between
derivatives and hedged items, its strategy for using hedges and its risk-management objective. The Company
assesses the effectiveness of derivatives when the hedging relationship is put in place and on an ongoing basis.

The Company enters into foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge anticipated foreign denominated sales and
related receivables, debr and equipment purchases. Foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized as an
adjustment of revenues, financial expenses and cost of equipment, respectively, when the hedging transaction is
recorded. For undesignated hedging relationships, gains or losses on the valuation of the derivarive instruments
at fair value are recognized in income as they arise and not concurrently with the transactions being hedged.

The Company entered into foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge its net investments in forcign subsidiaries.
Foreign exchange translation gains and losses were recorded under translation adjustment. Any realized or
unrealized gain or loss on such derivative instruments was also recognized in translation adjustment.

The Company enters into foreign exchange forward contracts and cross currency swaps to hedge foreign
denominated asset exposures. Foreign exchange gains and losses related to these assets and changes in the fair
values of the derivative instruments are recorded in financial expenses.

The Company enters into interest rate swaps in order to manage its interest rate exposure on its long-term debr.
These swap agreements require the periodic exchange of payments without the exchange of the notional principal
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(m) Derivative financial and commodity instruments {cont'd)

amount on which the payments are based. The Company designates its interest rate hedge agreements as hedges
of the underlying debrt interest cost. Interest expense on the debt is adjusted to include amounts payable or
receivable under the interest rate swaps.

The Company also enters into commodity swaps to manage a portion of its natural gas price exposures. The
Company designates a portion of its commaodity swap agreements as hedges of its natural gas cost, under which
the Company is committed to exchange, on a monthly basis, the difference between a fixed price and a floating
indexed natural gas price.

Realized and unrealized gains or losses associated with derivative instruments previously designared as hedges that
have been terminated or have ceased to be effective prior to maturiry are deferred on the balance sheet and
recognized in income in the period in which the underlying hedged transaction is recognized. In the event a
designared hedged item is sold, extinguished or has marured prior to the termination of the relaced derivative
instrument, any realized or unrealized gains or losses on related derivative hedging instruments are recognized in
income.

Derivative instruments that are ineffective or thar are nor designated as a hedge are reported on a mark-to-marker
basis in the consolidated financial statements. Any change in the fair value of these derivative instruments is
recorded in income.

(n) Employee future benefits
(i) Pension plans

Pension plan costs are determined using actuarial methods and are funded through contributions determined in
accordance with the projected benefit method pro rated on service, which incorporates management’s best
estimate of the future salary levels, other cost escalations, retirement ages of employees and other actuarial factors.

The initial net transition asset, prior service costs and amendments are amortized on a straight-line basis
over the expected average remaining service lives of the active employees covered by the plans, which ranges
from approximately 10 to 15 years. Cumulative unrecognized ner actuarial gains and losses in excess of 10%
of the greater of the benefit obligation or fair value of plan assets are amortized over the expected average
remaining service life of active employees covered by the plans.

For the purpose of calculating the expected return on plan assets, those assets are valued at market-related
value, based on a combination of rigorous historical performance analysis and the forward-looking views of
the financial markets as revealed through the yield on long-term bonds and the price-to-earnings ratios of
the major stock marker indices.

When an event gives rise to both a curtailment and a serdement, the curtailment is accounted for prior to the settlement.

The Company also participates in a number of multiemployer defined benefit pension plans covering
approximately 3,000 employees. These multiemployer plans are accounted for following the standards on defined
contribution plans as the Company has insufficient information to apply defined benefit plan accounting.

(ii) Other postretirement benefits

The Company determines the cost of other postretirement benefits using the accrued benefit method. These
benefits, which are funded by the Company as they become due, include life insurance programs and medical
benefits. The Company amortizes the cumulative unrecognized net actuarial gains and losses in excess of
10% of the projected benefit obligation over the expected average remaining service lives of active employees
covered by the plans, which ranges from approximately 7 to 15 years.
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(0) Environmental expenditures
Environmental expenditures that relate to current operations are expensed or capiralized as appropriate.
Expenditures that relate to an existing condition caused by past operations and which are not expected to
contribute to current or future operations are expensed. Liabilities are recorded when environmental assessments
and/or remedial efforts are likely, and when the costs, based on a specific plan of action in terms of the technology
to be used and the extent of the corrective action required, can be reasonably estimated.

(p) Impairment of long-lived assets
The Company reviews long-lived assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of such assets may not be recoverable. An impairment is recognized when the carrying amount of a
group of assets held for use exceeds the sum of the undiscounted cash flows expected from its use and eventual
disposition. Measurement of an impairment is based on the amount by which the carrying amount of a group
of assets exceeds its fair value. Fair value is determined using accepted valuation techniques, such as quoted
market prices, when available, or an estimare of discounted future cash flows.

(q) Asset retirement obligations

Legal obligations associated with site restorarion costs on the retirement of property are recognized in the period
in which they are incurred. The obligations are initially measured at fair value and an equal amount is recorded
to other long-term assets. Over time, the discounted asset retirement obligations accrete due to the increase in
the fair value resulting from the passage of time. This accretion amount is charged to income. The initial costs
are depreciated over the useful life of the related property or the remaining leasehold engagement when applicable.

(r) Comparative figures

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.

2. IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS, RESTRUCTURING AND OTHER CHARGES

The following table details the charge for impairment of assets, restructuring and other charges and pension
sertlements and curtailments:

Note 2006 . 2005 2004

Impairment of assets $ 33.0 $ 537 $ 70.1
Restructuring and other charges 76.4 40.3 36.6
Pension setflements and curigilments 23 1.9 ] 0.2 8.9
$ 1113 ! $ 94.2 $ 1156

(a) Impairment of assets

Following impairment tests on specific units, the Company concluded that some assets were impaired.
Accordingly, for cach respective year, the Company has recorded impairment and accelerated depreciation, mainly
on machinery and equipment related to facilities included in the restructuring initiatives.
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(b) Restructuring and other charges

The following table details the Company’s restructuring and other charges and the change in the reserve for
restructuring and other charges:

o
2006 2005 . 2004

2006 Prior Year 2005 Prior Year
Initiatives  Initiatives  Total Initiatives Inifiatives \I , Total
Expenses
Workforce reduction S 50.7 5 75 § 582 $ 2v.7 $ 48 $ 265 $ 401
Leases and carrying costs for closed facilities 12.9 7.0 19.9 5.4 12.3 17.7 4.5
63.6 14.5 78.1 27.1 17.1 44.2 44.6
Underspending
Workforce reduction - (1.3) (1.3) - (2.9) (2.9 (8.0}
Leases and carrying costs for closed facilities - {0.4) {0.4) - (1.0) 1.0 -
1 - 0.7 (L7 - (3.9) 3.9) .0
Payments
Workforce reduction {21.1) {12.5) (33.8) (14.9) (14.6) (29.5) (47.7)
Leases and carrying costs for closed facilities {11.6) {12.9) (24.5) (2.3} {15.1) (17.4) -
(32.7) (25.4)  (58.1) 07.2) 29.7) (469 a7 .7}
Net change 30.9 (12.6} 18.3 9.9 {16.5) {6.6) (111}
Foreign currency changes 0.2 1.4 1.6 0.1 (1.7} {1.4] 1.2
Balance, beginning of year - 21.0 27.0 - 35.2 35.2 45.1
Balance, end of year $ 31.1 $15.8 5 46.9 $ 10.0 $ 170 § 270 $ 352

(i) 2006 restructuring initiatives

In 2006, restructuring initiatives were related to the closure or downsizing of various facilities, mainly in the
North American and European segments. The Company approved the closure of a facility in Quebec; the
closure of printing and binding facilities in Illinois, both in the Catalog group; the closure of the Kingsport,
Tennessee facility in the Book group; the closure of the Red Bank, Ohio, and the Brookfield, Wisconsin
facilities in the Magazine group; the closure of the Strasbourg facility and employee terminations at the Lille,
France facility. There were also various headcount reductions across the Company. The total expected cost
amounted to $75.3 million of which $55.1 million was related to workforce reduction, and $20.2 million
for leases and carrying costs of closed facilities ($37.3 million in North America, $37.2 million in Europe
and $0.8 million in Latin America). The completion of these initiatives is expected by the end of 2007 for
a total of $4.4 million in workforce reduction and $7.3 million in leases and carrying costs for closed facilities.

(ii) Prior years restructuring initiatives
2005 restructuring initiatives

In 2005, the restructuring initiatives were related to the downsizing of operations in Helio Corbeil, France;
the two phases of the downsizing operations in Corby, United Kingdom; the closure of a Canadian facility
and other workforce reductions across the Company. Management expects those initiatives to be completed
by the end of 2007 and supplemental costs of $3.8 million to be incurred in 2007 for leases and closed
facilities, mainly in Europe.

2004 restructuring initiatives

The 2004 restructuring initiatives were related to the closure of the Stockholm, Sweden facility; the closure
of the Effingham, Illinois facility in the Magazine group; an impertant downsizing at the Kingsport,
Tennessec facility in the Book group; the consolidation of vatious smaller facilities in North America and in
Europe as well as other workforce reductions across the Company. No other charge is expected for these
initiatives.
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interest on long-term debt and convertible notes $ 1516 $§ 1194 $ 1235
Bank and other charges 6.0 3.1 3.9
Amortization of deferred financing costs 2.9 19 2.9
{Gain} loss on foreign exchange and derivative financial instruments (a} (12.2) 2.2 33
Exchange loss (gain} from reductions of net investments in
self-sustaining foreign operations 18 2.5 (1.0}
Loss on extinguishment of long-term debt - - 2.0
150.8 126.6 134.6
Inferest capitalized to the cost of equipment (16.6) (7.6} {1.5)
l 5 134.2 $ 1190 $ 133.1

(a) During the year ended December 31, 2006, the Company has recorded a loss of $32.6 million on derivative financial
instruments for which hedge accounting was not used (gain of $50.7 million in 2005 and loss of $28.7 million in 2004).

INCOME TAXES

The domestic and foreign components of income (loss) from continuing operations, before income taxes, are as follows:

2006 ‘ 2005 2004
Domestic ‘ $ (48.3) $ 297 $ 0.4
Foreign 44.3 (128.4) 222.0
1 $ (4.0) $ (98.7) $ 2224
Tortal income tax was allocated as follows:
Note 2006 | 2005 2004
Continuing operations $ (354 $ 504 $ 770
Discontinued operations 5 {1.2) 14.3 1.9
Shareholders' equity:
Translation adjustment (1.3} [0.9) 6.7
Dividends on preferred shares 3.0 4.0 3.8
$ (349 $ 67.8 $ 894
Income tax expense {recovery) attributable to income consists of:
MNote 2006 2005 2004
Current:
Domestic $ 21 $ 23.4 $ 1.9
Foreign {40.9) 62.0 34.2
{38.8) 854 36.1
Portion included in discontinued operations 5 {1.1) 17.1 0.8
{37.7) 68.3 35.3
Future:
Domestic (25.3) (5.1} 5.9
Foreign 27.5 {15.6) 36.9
2.2 {20.7] 42.8
Portion included in discontinued operations 5 {0.1) 2.8 1.1
2.3 n79 7
Tota! from conlinying operations $ (35.4) $ 50.4 $ 77.0
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The following table reconciles the difference between the domestic statutory tax rate and the effective tax rate used
by the Company in the determination of net income (loss) from continuing operations:

2006 2005 2004
Domestic siatutory tax rate 33.1 % 342 % 337 %
Increase {reduction) resulting from:
Change in valuation allowance (969.2) 42.0) 1.9
Effect of foreign tax rate differences 1,525.8 34.2 (15.3)
Permanent differences 28.6 (3.9} 3.1
Changes in enacted and average tax rates on cumulative temporary differences a9.7 0.1 (0.8)
Large corporation tax, minimum tax and ather taxes {14.4) {1.2} Q.2
Goodwill impairment - {63.5) -
Other 238.0 (5.0) 1.8
Effective tax rate 891.6 % (51.1} % 34.6 %

"The tax effects of significant items comprising the Company’s net future tax liability are as follows:

2006 ] j 2005

(Revised, Note 1)
Future income tax assefs:
Operating loss carryfarwards S 315.7 $ 2870
Tax credit carryforwards 19.0 17.3
Trade receivables 4.3 7.8
Restructuring reserves 16.6 8.7
Pension, postretirement and workers compensation benefits - 35.8
Not deductible provisions 53.6 51.6
Other 6.6 20.4
415.8 428.6
Future income tox liobilities:
Property, plant and equipment (388.1) (404.9)
Inventories (27.9) {31.0}
Goodwill and other assets (68.2) (59.3)
Pension, postretirement and workers compension benefits {1.3} -
Other (1.5 {15.0
(487.0 BT0.
Valuation allowance (278.4) (264.6}
Net future income tax liabilifies (349.6) (346.2)
Less current portion of:
Future income tax assets 40.6 34.4
Future income tax liabilities {1.1) (.7}
Future income tax liabilifies, net $ (389.1) $ (378.9)

The 2006 and 2005 amounts above included a valuation allowance of $278.4 million and $264.6 million respectively,
relating to loss carryforwards and other tax benefits available since their realization was not more likely than not. The
increase in total valuation allowance for the year ended December 31, 2006 was mainly explained by $38.5 million
allocated to income from operations, partly offset by a decrease of $28.3 million due to a reorganization of the
corporate structure. The net change in the total valuarion allowance for the year ended December 31, 2005 was
explained by $41.5 million allocated to income from operations.

Subsequent recognition of the tax benefits relating to the valuation allowance for future tax assets as of December 31,
2006 will be allocated as follows:

2006 | |2005

Income tax benefit that will be reported:
Reduction of income tax expenses $ 2544 $ 2414
Reduction of goadwill 24.3 23.2
i $ 2734 } $ 2646

(D
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At December 31, 2006, the Company had net operating loss carryforwards for income tax purposes of $878.5 million,
of which $766.5 million can be carried forward indefinitely, and $112.0 million expire between 2007 and 2026. An
amount of $281.3 million, included in the net operating loss carryforwards, is subject to recapture should a
reevaluation occur on the investment in Europe.

In the United States, the Company had no Federal net operating loss carryforwards. The amount of US Federal
alternative minimum tax credit and general business tax credit available was $4.3 million, for which a full valuation
aliowance has been taken. The Company also had State net operating loss and State tax credit carryforwards valued
net of federal tax benefit of approximately $39.6 million and $13.3 million, respectively. These loss and tax credit
carryforwards expire berween 2007 and 2026. Limitations on the utilization of these tax assets may apply and the
Company has accordingly recorded a valuation allowance in the amount of $33.7 million.

The Company has not recognized a future tax liability for the undistributed earnings of its subsidiaries in the current
and prior years, because the Company currently does not expect those unremitred earnings to reverse and become
taxable to the Company in the foreseeable future. Future income taxes will be recognized when the Company expects
chat it will recover those undistributed earnings in a taxable manner, such as through receipt of dividends or sale of
the investments. Such liability is not reasonably determinable at the present time.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

In 2005, the Company completed the disposal of its North American non-core Commercial Printing Group (the
“non-core Group”), one of the largest providers of general, financial, packaging and commercial specialty printing
services throughout the United States, Canada, and Mexico. Consequently, the operating results and associated gain
or loss on disposal of assets related to these activities have been presented separately in the Company’s consolidated
statement of income as discontinued operations, The following transactions relating to the non-core Group have
been concluded in 2005:

(i) In December 2005, the Company sold its interest in a subsidiary in Canada, for a total consideration of
$17.4 million, which was received in full in January 2006. The Company realized a gain amounting to
$2.6 million ($1.2 million net of income tax). A reduction of $6.3 million relating to goodwill of the North
American segment was recorded within discontinued operations.

(i) In November 2005, the operating assets of some units in the United States were sold for a total consideration
of $61.3 million comprised of $32.8 million of cash, $20.0 million of preferred units of Matlet Group, LLC
(purchaser) and $8.5 million in a promissory note receivable, which was received in full in March 2006. In
2005, the Company realized a gain amounting to $11.2 million (a loss of $1.9 million net of income tax). A
reduction of $23.1 million relating to goodwill of the North American scgment was recorded within
discontinued operations. Following an adjustment of the selling price based on the November 2005 closing
working capital, the Company paid $1.2 million and realized a loss of $1.6 million ($1.0 million net of
income tax) in the first quarter of 2006.

(iii) In November 2005, the Company sold the operating assets of some of its subsidiaries in Canada for a total
consideration of $34.6 million and realized a loss of $3.5 million ($6.4 million net of income tax). A reduction
of $12.2 million relating to goodwill of the North American segment was recorded within discontinued
operations. Following an adjustment to the selling price based on the November 2005 closing working capital,
the Company paid $2.5 million in March 2006. No gain or loss resulted from these adjustments.




e REWWRINVIINWEaRE WET vwaliwl N “vl‘l w’

{(iv) In August 2005, certain assets related to the Westwood, Massachusetts facility, in the United States, were sold

for a cash consideration of $2.6 million resulting in a loss on disposal of $0.8 million ($0.8 million net of

income tax). A reduction of $0.9 million relating 1o goodwill of the North American segment was recorded

within discontinued operations.

(v) In June and July 2005, certain assets related to the Los Angeles, California facility, in the United States, have
been sold for a total cash consideration of $1.3 million, which resulted in a loss on disposal of $6.3 million
($4.1 million, ner of income tax recovery). A reduction of $0.4 million relating to goodwill of the North
American segment was recorded within discontinued operations. Under the terms of the agreement, the

Company assumed obligations for termination benefits relating to this facility, which was fully paid in 2006,

and has retained certain operating leases expiring until November 2007.

Operations summary of discontinued operations

Note 2006 2005 \] 2004
Revenues - 2127 $ 282.6
Cost of soles and selling, general and administrative expenses 1.7 207.1 259.9
Depreciation and amortization - 4.2 10.4
Restructuring and other charges - 39 6.5
Loss {gain] on disposal of business units 1.6 (3.2 -
Operating income {loss {3.3) 0.7 5.8
Financial expenses 0.2 0.2 0.1
income (loss} betore income taxes (3.5) 0.5 5.7
Income foxes {recovery) 4 (1.2) 14.3 1.9
Net income {loss} from discontinued operations (2.3) {13.8) $ 3.8

Summary of assets and liabilities sold

Discontinued

Operations
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 0.8 39 $ 47
Non-cash operating working capital 213 1.3 22,6
Property, plant and equipment 47.2 0.3 47.5
Goodwill 12 429 - 42.9
Other assets 0.3 0.3
Liabilities:
Long-term deht - 0.2 0.2
Other liabilities 0.7 0.7 1.4
Net assets sold $ 111.8 4.6 $ 1164
Proceeds:
Cash $ 1.3 0.3 $ 76
Preferred units 20.0 - 20.0
Balance of sales receivable 25.8 25.8
Sales price adjustment payable {2.1) (2.1}
$ 1150 0.3 $ 1153
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The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share for continuing operations:

2006 7 2005 2004

Net income {loss) from continuing operations $ 306 $(148.8) $139.9
Net income allocated to holders of preferred shares 34.0 39.6 37.5
Net income {loss) from continuing operations available
to holders of equity shares 5 (3.4) $(188.4} $102.4
{In millions)
Weighted-average number of equity shares outstanding: 131.4 131.8 132.4
EHect of dilutive stock options - - 0.2
Weighted-average number of diluted equity shares outstondina_ 131.4 131.8 132.6
Earnings {less) per share:

Basic and diluted $ (0.03) $ (1.43) $ 077

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings (loss) per share, the effects of the convertible notes were excluded, since
their inclusion was anti-dilutive. For 2005 and 2006, the effects of all stock options have also been excluded, since
their inclusion was anti-dilurive. For 2004, the effects of 2,684,309 options expiring between 2006 and 2014 were
excluded, since their exercise price was greater than the average market price of shares of the same category.

Earnings (loss) per share for discontinued operations were calculated by dividing the net income (loss) from
discontinued operations (net of tax) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS

During the years ended December 31, the Company acquired the following businesses, which have been accounted for
by the purchase method, and earnings are included in the consolidated statements of income since the date of acquisition.

2005
In August 2005, the Company acquired minority interests in its French operations for a cash consideration of
$0.6 million, of which $0.2 million been recorded in goodwill.

In March 2005, the Company acquired minority interests in its Norch American operations for a cash consideration

of $6.4 million.

2004
Tn November 2004, the Company purchased the remaining 50% of the issued and outstanding shares of Helio
Charleroi in Belgium, for a cash consideration of $45.8 million, of which $17.0 million has been recorded in goodwill.

In September 2004, the Company acquired a minority interest in its North American operations for a cash
consideration of $2.4 million, of which $1.8 million has been recorded in goodwill.

In April 2004, the Company acquired a minority interest in its Spanish operations for a cash consideration of
$1.7 million, of which $1.5 million has been recorded in goodwill,

In March 2004, the Company acquired a minority interest in its North American operations for a cash consideration
of $0.6 million, of which $0.4 million has been recorded in goodwill.
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Net assets acquired at fair value:

Note 2005 || 2004
Assets acquired:
Non-cash operating working capital $ - $ {0.8)
Property, plant and equipment (0.5) 11.8
Goodwill 12 0.2 20.7
Other assets - 0.2
Minority interest 7.1 22,6
Liabilities assumed:
Future income taxes 0.2) 4.0
Net assefs acquired $ 7.0 $ 50.5
Consideration:
Cash $ 7.0 $ 50.5

8. SALES OF TRADE RECEIVABLES

In 2006, the Company amended its 1999 U.S. securitization program (the “U.S. Program”) agreement, which reduced
the program limit and extended the availability of the program for a 3-year period through to August 28, 2009. This
agreement has allowed the Company to sell, with limited recourse, a portion of its U.S. trade receivables on a revolving
basis. The U.S. Program limit is $408.0 million ($459.0 million during peak season). As at December 31, 2006, the
amount outstanding under the U.S. Program was $374.0 million ($467.0 million as at December 31, 2005).
Consistent with its U.S. securitization agreement, the Company sells all of its U.S. receivables to a wholly-owned
subsidiary, Quebecor World Finance Inc., through a true-sale transaction.

In 2006, the Company sold, with limited recourse, a portion of its Canadian trade receivables on a revolving basis
(the “Canadian Program”). The Canadian Program limit is CA$135.0 million. As at December 31, 2000, the amount
outstanding under the Canadian Program was CA$89.0 million ($76.4 million) (CA$100.0 million ($86.0 million)
as at December 31, 2005).

In 2006, the Company amended its 2001 European secutitization program (the “European Program”) and extended the
availability of the program undl May 29, 2009. The European Program has allowed the Company to sell, with limired
recourse, a portion of its trade receivables from its Spanish and French facilities on a revolving basis. The European
Program limit is EUR 153.0 million. As at December 31, 2006, the amount outstanding under the European Program
was EUR97.9 million ($129.1 million) (EUR118.0 miilion ($139.8 million) as at December 31, 2005).

The Company has retained the responsibility for servicing, administering and collecting trade receivables sold. No
servicing asset or liability has been recognized, since the fees the Company receives for servicing the receivables
approximate the related costs.

At December 31, 2006, an aggregate amount of $802.5 million ($825.7 million as at December 31, 2005) of trade
receivables has been sold under the three programs, of which $223.0 million ($132.9 million as ac December 31,
2005) were kept by the Company as a retained interest, resulting in a net aggregate consideration of $579.5 million
($692.8 million as at December 31, 2005) on the sale. The retained interest is recorded in the Company’s trade
receivables, and its fair value approximates its cost, given the short-term nature of the collection period of the trade
receivables sold. The rights of the Company on the retained interest are subordinated to the rights of the investors
under the programs. There is no recourse under the programs on the Company’s other assets for failure of debtors to
pay when due, other than the retained interest of the Company.

aD
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Securitization fees varied based on commercial paper rates in Canada, the United States and Europe and, generally,
has provided a lower effective funding cost than available under the Company’s bank facilities.

Proceeds from revolving sales between the securitization trusts and the Company in 2006 totalled $4.3 billion
($4.9 billion in 2005).

9. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company entered into the following transactions, which were concluded and accounted for at the exchange
amount with the parent company and its subsidiaries:

2006 } 2005 2004

Companies under common control:
Revenues $ 663 $ 649 $ 521
Selling, general and administrative expenses 13.6 17.6 9.1
Management fees billed by Guebecor Inc. 4.8 4.5 4.2

In 2006 and 2004, the Company transferred the benefit of a deduction for Part VLI tax to a company under common
control for a consideration of CA$6.4 million ($5.5 million) (CA$12.4 million ($10.3 million) in 2004), recorded
in receivables from related parties. This reduced the Company's available future income tax assets by CA$7.6 million
($6.5 million) (CA$13.0 million ($10.8 million) in 2004), and decreased the contributed surplus by CA$1.2 million
($1.0 million) (CA$0.6 million ($0.5 million) in 2004). The transaction was recorded at the carrying amount. The
2004 transaction has been adjusted in 2005, resulting in a decrease of CA$0.2 million (80.2 million) recorded in
receivables from related parties and in the contributed surplus.

In March 2005, the Company sold certain operating assets to Quebecor Media Inc., a company under common
control, for a cash consideration of CA$3.3 million ($2.7 million). The transaction was realized at the carrying
amount and no gain or loss was recorded.

In 2004, the Company reached an agreement with Videotron Ltd., a company under common control, te outsource
its information technology (IT) infrastructure in North America for a duration of 7 years. As part of this agreement,
Videotron Ltd. purchased some of the Company’s IT infrastructure equipment at a cost of $2.4 million. The
outsourcing of services to Videotron Ltd. has been estimated to cost the Company approximately $15 million
annually. The transfer of the equipment was completed in October 2004 and was recorded at the carrying amount
and no gain or loss was realized.

In 2000, the Company entered into a strategic agteement with Nurun Inc. (“Nurun”). The agreement included 2
commitment from the Company to use Nurun services (information technology and E-Commerce services) for a
minimum of $40 million over a five-year period. In 2004, an addendum was made to the agreement, extending the
term for another five years from the dae of the addendum. In addition, the minimum service revenues of $40 million
committed to Nurun were modified to include services directly requested by the Company and its parent company
and subsidiaries, as well as business referred, under certain conditions, to Nurun by the Company and its affiliares.
Finally, if the aggregate amount of the service revenues for the term of the agreement is lower than the minimum of
$40 million, the Company has agreed to pay an amount to Nurun equal to 30% of the difference between the
minimum guaranteed revenues and the aggregate amount of revenues. As of December 31, 2006, the cumulative
services registered by Nurun under this agreement amounted to $18.3 million.
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2006 I 2005
(Revised, Note 1)

Raw moterials and supplies $ 2340 3 2394
Work in process 122.7 116.6
$ 356.7 $ 356.0

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Accumulated Ne:l! book
Cost depreciation ' ‘vuiue
December 31, 2006
Land H 88.2 ] - 5 88.2
Buildings and leasehold impravements 814.5 2768 537.7
Machinery and equipment 3,873.1 2,477.7 1,395.4
Projects under development 266.1 - 266.1
5 5.041.¢ $ 27545 S 22874
December 31, 2005
Lond $ 90.5 3 . 3 20.5
Buildings and leasehold improvements 801.8 252.3 5495
Machinery and equipment 3,670.4 2,261.1 1,409.3
Projects under development 246.6 - 246.6
$ 4,809.3 $ 25134 $ 22959

As at December 31, 20006, the cost of property, plant and equipment and the corresponding accumulated
depreciation balance included amounts of $60.9 million ($152.2 million as at December 31, 2005) and $33.2
million ($70.1 million as at December 31, 2005) respectively, for assets held under capital leases mainly for
machinery and equipment. Depreciation of property, plant and equipment held under capital leases amounted 1o
$3.4 million in 2006 ($5.6 million in 2005, and $7.0 million in 2004).

On December 19, 2006, the Company concluded an agreement with various financial institutions for the sale and
leaseback of machinery and equipment currently being installed in several facilities in North America. The
transaction is considered to be a sale of assets with proceeds of $49.6 million and fees of $1.5 million. The
subsequent transaction consists of operating leases over lease terms up to 7 years. The disposal of these assets
generated a negligible loss.
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13.

14.

The changes in the carrying amount of goedwill for the years ended December 31 are as follows:

MNorth | Latin

Note Americo Europe | America Jotal
Balance, December 31, 2003 $  2,192.2 $ 3911 $ 7.7 $ 2,591.0
Goodwill acquired 7 2.2 18.5 - 207
Foreign currency changes 3.9 358 0.5 40.2
Balance, December 31, 2004 $  2,198.3 $ 4454 $ 8.2 $ 2,651.9
Goodwill acquired 7 - 0.2 0.2
Business disposals 5 42.9) - 42.9)
Goodwill impairment [a) - (243.0} - (243.0)
Foreign currency changes 1.3 (61.7} [0.1) {60.5)
Balance, December 31, 2005 $ 2,1567 $ 1409 $ 8.1 $ 23057
Business disposals {0.4) {0.6) - (1.0)
Foreign currency changes - 19.1 0.5 19.6
Balance, December 31, 2006 $ 21563 $ 1594 $ 8.6 $ 2,324.3

(@) In 2005, the European reporting unit has suffered from poor market conditions, namely continued price
erosion and decreased volumes, as well as several production inefficiencies and the loss of an important
client. As a result, the Company concluded that the carrying amount of goodwill for the European reporting
unit was not fully recoverable and an impairment charge of $243.0 million was taken at December 31, 2005.

RESTRICTED CASH

At December 31, 2006, the Company’s wholly-owned captive insurance company had pledged $48.1 million ($33.1
million at December 31, 2005) of cash as collateral for a standby letter of credit issued in favour of a third parcy
insurer for future estimated claims relating to the U.S. Workers' Compensation. The standby letter of credit is
renewable annually and accordingly, the pledge agreement is also renewed annually. Therefore, the cash is intended
for future use and is presented as a long-term asset in the Company’s consolidated balance sheet.

LONG-TERM DEBT

Maturity 2006 2005
Revolving bank facility and other short-term lines {a) 2009 $ 97 $ 334.2
Senior Notes 7.20% (b} 2006 - 2500
Senior Debentures 7.25% {c) 2007 - 150.0
Senior Notes 4.875% ond 6.125% (d) 2008, 2013 597.9 597.5
Senior Notes 8.42% and 8.52% (e 2010, 2012 231.5 250.0

Senior Notes 9.75% {f) 2015 400.0 -

Equipment financing credit facility {g) 2015 101.3 -
Senior Notes 8.54% and 8.69% (h) 2015, 2020 85.0 121.0

Senior Notes 8.75% (i) 2016 450.0 -
Senior Debentures 6.50% (j) 2027 3.2 3.2
Other debts and capital leases (k) 20072016 48.7 337
2,014.7 T735.6
Less current maturities l 30.7 7.7
$ 1,984.0 3 17319

(a) The $1.0 B revolving bank facility is made of three tranches ecach maturing in January 2009. All three tranches
can be extended on a yearly basis. The facility can be used for general corporate purposes and contains certain
restrictive covenants, including the obligation to maintain certain financial ratios.

The revolving bank facility bears interest at variable rates based on Bankers” Acceptances, LIBOR or prime
rates. At December 31, 2006, the $23.6 million ($221.6 million in 2005) drawing on the facility was
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(c)
(d)

(e}

(g

(h)

(i)

()

denominated in Canadian dollars and bearing interest at 6.8%. The Company paid fees for the unused portion
of $2.6 million in 2006 ($1.8 million in 2005).

The Company also has access to various credir facilities up to $144.8 million. These facilities are used in United
Stares, Latin America and Europe, and are labelled in multiple currencies. At December 31, 2006, $73.5 million
($112.6 million in 2005) was drawn on these facilities. There were no restrictive covenants on these various
credit facilities.

In March 2006, the Company repaid the $250.0 million Senior Notes.
In December 2006, the $150.0 million Senior Debentures maturing in January 2007 were fully repaid.

On November 2003, the Company issued, at a discount, unsecured Senior Notes for a principal amount of
$600.0 million comprised of two tranches. The first tranche of $200.0 million matures on November 15, 2008
and the second tranche of $400.0 million matures on November 15, 2013. These Notes contain certain
restrictive covenants, such as maintaining its propertics in good condition and payment of taxes and claims.

In July 2000, the Company issued unsecured Senior Notes for a principal amount of $250.0 million comprised
of two tranches. The first tranche of $175.0 million matures on July 15, 2010, while the second tranche of $75.0
million matures on July 15, 2012. On December 29, 2006, $3.5 million were repurchased on the first tranche
and $15.0 million on the second tranche ar par value. These Notes contain certain restrictive covenants,
including maintaining certain financial ratios.

In December 2006, the Company issued unsecured Senior Notes for a principal amount of $400.0 million
maturing on January 15, 2015. Issuance costs of $7.6 million were paid on this transaction. The Notes contain
certain restrictive covenants, such as maintaining its properties in good condition and the payment of taxes
and claims.

In January 2006, the Company concluded an agreement for Canadian dollar equivalent of EUR136.2 million
long-term commitred credit facility. The unsecured facility will be drawn over 2 years, repaid over 10 years and
will bear interest at a variable rate. At December 31, 2006, the drawings under this facility amounted 0
CA$118.0 miilion ($101.3 million) and bearing interest at 4.6%. Issuance costs of $4.6 million were paid on
this transaction. This credit facility contains certain restrictive covenants, including the obligation to maintain
certain financial ratios.

In September 2000, the Company issued unsecured Senior Notes for a principal amount of $121.0 million
comprised of two tranches. The first tranche of $91.0 million marures on September 15, 2015 and the second
tranche of $30.0 million matures on Seprember 15, 2020. On December 29, 2006, $36.0 million was
repurchased on the first tranche at par value. The Notes contain certain restrictive covenants, including
maintaining certain financial ratios.

In March 20006, the Company issued unsecured Senior Notes for a principal amount of $450.0 million maturing
in March 2016. Issuance costs of $7.3 million were paid on this transaction. The Notes contain certain restrictive
covenants, such as maintaining its properties in good condition and the payment of taxes and claims.

The Senior Debentures due on August 1, 2027 were redeemable at the option of the holder ar cheir par value
on August 1, 2004. Our of a principal amount of $150.0 million, $146.8 million Senior Debentures were
tendered and repurchased at par value.
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16.

(k) Other debts and capital leases are partially secured by assets. At December 31, 2006, these debts and capital leases
were bearing interest at rates ranging from 0.0% to 8.4%.

On December 19, 2006, the Company received $69.7 million in funding for a lease financing of printing presses
and related equipment that are currently being installed in various facilities in North America. Of this amount,
$20.1 million is included in Other debts and capital leases. The remaining balance is treated as operating leases
(Note 11). The Company expects that the $20.1 million will be rolled into operating leases in 2007.

The Company was in compliance with all significant debt covenants at December 31, 2006.

Principal repayments on long-term debr are as follows:

2007 s 307
2008 217.8
2009 117.0
2010 184.8
2001 14.0
2012 and thereakter 1,450.4
OTHER LIABILITIES
Note \ 2006 2005
{Revised, Notel)
Pension liability 23 $ 79.9 $ 82.8
Postretirement benefits 23 71.0 70.8
Workers' compensation accrual 45.9 408
Derivative financial instruments 20.1 58
Asset refirement obligations 12.2 9.9
Reserve for environmental matters 1.2 13.2
Cther 43.2 53.0
S 283.5 $ 2763
CONVERTIBLE NOTES
Malurity | 2006 2005

Convertible senior subordinated notes 6.00% 2007 l 5 117.7 | $ 1155

The convertible senior subordinated notes mature on October 1, 2007. The notes were issued by World Color
Press Inc. (“WCP”) and revalued at the time WCP was acquired by the Company in order to reflect their fair
value based on the Company's borrowing rate for similar financial instruments. The equity component of the
notes, which corresponds to the option of the holder to convert the notes into equity shares of the Company, was
valued at the date of acquisition and classified as contributed surplus. Since the acquisition of WCP by the
Company, each $1,000 tranche is convertible into 30.5884 Subordinate Voting Shares of the Company, which
corresponds to a price of $26.24 per share and $197.25 in cash. The notes are convertible at the option of the
holder at any time, and redeemable at the option of the Company at a decreasing premium from October 2002
to the final maturity. The aggregate principal amount of the notes, as at December 31, 2006, was $119.5 million
($119.5 million as at December 31, 2005). The number of equity shares to be issued upon conversion of the
convertible notes would be 3,656,201.
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As at December 31, 2006, the convertible senior subordinated notes were classified as long-term, since the Company
has the ability and the intent to refinance such debt on a long-term basis and has a committed revolving bank
capability to replace such debr, if necessary.

17. CAPITAL STOCK

(a) Authorized

Equity shares:
Multiple Voting Shares, authorized in an unlimited number, without par value, carrying ten votes per share,
convertible at any time into Subordinate Voting Shares on a one-to-one basis.

Subordinate Voting Shares, authorized in an unlimited number, without par value, carrying one vote per
share.

Preferred shares:
Preferred shares, authorized in an unlimited number, without par value, issuable in series; the number of
preferred shares in each series and the related characteristics, rights and privileges are to be determined by the
Board of Directors prior to each issue. Each series of Preferred Shares ranks pari passu with every other series
of Preferred Shares.

The Series 2 Cumulative Redeemable First Preferred Shares may be converted ar every fifth anniversary into
Series 3 Cumulative Redeemable First Preferred Shares under certain conditions.

The Series 3 Cumulative Redeemable First Preferred Shares are entitled to a fixed cumulative preferential cash
dividend of CA$1.5380 per share per annum, payable quarterly from December 1, 2002 to November 30,
2007, if declared. Thereafter, a new fixed cumulative preferential cash dividend will be set by the Company
for another five-year period. On December 1, 2007, and at every 5th anniversary thereafter, these preferred
shares may be converted into Series 2 Cumulative Redeemable First Preferred Shares under certain conditions.

The Series 4 Cumulative Redeemable First Preferred Shares were entitled to a fixed cumulative preferential
cash dividend of CA$1.6875 per share per annum.

The Series 5 Cumulative Redeemable First Preferred Shares are entitled to a fixed cumulative preferential cash
dividend of CA$1.725 per share per annum, payable quarterly, if declared. On and after December 1, 2007,
these preferred shares are redeemable at the option of the Company at CA$25.00, or with regulatory approval,
the preferred shares may be converted into subordinate voting shares by the Company. On and after
March 1, 2008, these preferred shares may be converted at the option of the holder into subordinare voting
shares, subject to the right of the Company prior to the conversion date to redeem for cash or find substitute
purchasers for such preferred shares.
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(b) Issued and outstanding

December 31, 2006 December 31, 2005 | December 31, 2004
Number Amount Number Amolunl Number Amount
(Thousands of shares)
Multiple Voting Shares 46,987 S 93.5 46,987 $ 93.5 456,987 $ 93.5
Subordinate Voting Shares 84,722 1,146.4 83,981 1,138.5 85,604 1,155.2
Redeemable First Preferred Shares:
Series 3 12,000 212.5 12,000 212.5 12,000 212.5
Series 4 - - 8,000 130.2 8,000 130.2
Series 5 7.000 113.9 7,000 113.9 7,000 113.9
19.000 326.4 27,000 456.6 27,000 456.6
Total capital stock $ 15663 $ 1,688.6 $ 11,7053

During 2006, no Subordinate Voting Shares were issued under the Company'’s stock option plan (315,065 in
2005 and 55,363 in 2004) and 741,057 Subordinate Voting Shares were issued under the Company’s employee
stock purchase plans (487,832 in 2005 and 584,474 in 2004) for a toral cash consideration of $7.9 million
($16.3 million in 2005 and $12.2 million in 2004). Pursuant to the acquisition of WCP in 1999, the Company
issued 11,371 Subordinate Voting Shares in 2005.

(c) Share repurchases

On April 18, 2006, the Company redeemed all of its cumulative redeemable 6.75% First Preferred Shares,
Series 4 at a redemption price of CA$25.00 per share plus accrued dividends. Of the total consideration of
$175.9 million (CA$200.0 million) an amount of $130.2 million was recorded in capital stock and
$45.7 million in translation adjustment.

In 2005, the Company repurchased for cancellation a total of 2,438,500 Subordinare Voting Shares following
a Normal Course Issuer Bid Program for a net cash consideration of CA$58.2 million ($46.6 million}. Of the
total consideration, $3.8 million was charged to translation adjustment, $33.0 million to capital stock and the
excess of the price paid over the book value of the shares repurchased amounting to CA$12.3 million ($9.8
million) was charged to retained earnings.

18. TRANSLATION ADJUSTMENT

The change in the carrying amount of the translation adjustment included in shareholders’ equity was the result of
the exchange rates fluctuation, on translation of net assets of self-sustaining foreign operations, exchange gains or
losses on intercompany account balances that form part of the net investments, and foreign exchange gains or losses
related to derivative financial instruments used to hedge the net investments, net of income raxes.

Note 2006 2005 2004
Balance, beginning of year $ (24.2) $ 36.6 $ (19.2}

Effect of exchange rate variofion on translation of net assets of
selk-sustaining foreign operations and exchange guains or losses
on intercompany account balances that form part of the net

investments 211 (51.6)
Change in the fair value of foreign-exchange forward contracts to

hedge net investment in o foreign subsidiary inet of income taxes) - 5.4
Redemption of First Preferred Shares Series 4 17 (45.7} .
Subordinate Voting Shares repurchased 17 - (3.8}
Portion included in income as o result of reductions in net

investments in self-sustaining foreign operations 3 2.5
Balance, end of year $ (46.3) $  (24.2)
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(a) Employee share purchase plans

The Employee Stock Purchase Plan gives eligible employees in the United States the opportunity to acquire
shares of the Company’s capital stock for up to 4% of their gross salaries and to have the Company
contribute, on the employees’ behalf, a further amount equal to 17.5% of the total amount invested by the
employee. The number of shares that may be issued and sold under the plan is limited to 4,000,000
Subordinate Voting Shares, subject to adjustments in the event of stock dividends, stock splits and similar
events. The total number of plan shares issued for employees was 566,913 in 2006 (333,646 in 2003, and
417,769 in 2004), which represented compensation expenses amounting to $0.8 million in 2006
($1.0 million in 2005 and $1.1 million in 2004).

The Employee Share Investment Plan gives eligible employees in Canada the opportunity to subscribe for
up to 4% of their gross salaries to purchase shares of the Company’s capital stock and to have the Company
invest, on the employees’ behalf, a further amount equal to 20% of the amount invested by the employee.
The number of shares that may be issued and sold under this plan is limited to 3,000,000 Subordinate
Voting Shares, subject to adjustments in the event of stock dividends, stock splits and similar events. The total
number of shares issued for employees was 174,144 in 2006, (154,186 in 2005, and 166,705 in 2004),
which represented compensation expenses amounting to CA$0.4 million ($0.4 million) in 2006
(CA$0.6 million ($0.5 million) in both 2005 and 2004).

(b) Stock option plan

Under the stock option plan, 7,204,734 Subordinate Voting Shares out of a total of 9,000,000 remained
reserved for plan participants at December 31, 2006. Furthermore, 1,015,000 options have been granted to date
outside of the shares reserved under the Plan as Inducement Options. At December 31, 2006, a total of
7,772,300 options to purchase Subordinare Voting Shares were outstanding. The subscriprion price of the
options was equal to the arithmetical average of the closing prices of the Subordinate Voting Shares on the
Toronto Stock Exchange for options priced in Canadian dollars, and on the New York Stock Exchange for
options priced in U.S. dollars, for the five days immediately preceding the grant of the option.

For grants issued since 2005, half of the options is vesting over four years and the other half is vesting upon
attainment of specific performance targets based on earnings per share (“EPS”) and share price growth. The
options may be exercised during a period not exceeding six years from the date they have been granted.

For options granted up to December 31, 2004, vesting is over four or five years and options may be exercised
during a period not exceeding 10 years from the date they have been granted.

In 2004, the Board of Directors approved a special option grant of 1,000,000 Subordinate Voting Shares of the
Company. The exercise price was equal to the share market price at the grant date and half of the options is
vesting over time and the other half upon attainment of specific performance targets based on EPS and share
price growth and vesting over 4 years.

The weighted average fair value of options granted during the year was $2.58 ($4.32 in 2005 and $6.66 in
2004), and was estimated using binomial and trinomial option pricing models. The following weighted average
assumptions were used:

2006 2005 || 2004

Risk-free interest rate 4.45% 3.59% 4.54%
Dividend yield 3.75% 2.93% 2.40%
Expected volatility 33.44% 33.67% 29.99%

Expected life | 4.25 years 4.25 years 7 years
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(b) Stock option plan (contd)

(c}

During the year, a compensation expense of $4.5 million ($1.1 million in 2005 and $4.3 million in 2004) was
recognized with a corresponding increase in contributed surplus.

The number of stock options outstanding fluctuated as follows:

2006 2005 | 2004
Weighted Weighted Weighted
average average average
exercise exercise exercise
Options price Options price Qptions price
Balance, beginning of year 5,947,970 $ 2345 4,542,045 $ 23.81 3,699,061 $ 22.52
lssved 2,314,500 10.45 1,930,120 20.57 1,181,023 23.83
Exercised - - (315,065} 20.52 (55,363) 14.38
Concelled (490,170) 21.12 (209,130} 22.24 (282,676} 24.40
Bolance, end of year 7,772,300 $ 19.70 5,947,970 $ 23.45 4,542,045 $ 23.81
Options exercisable, end of year | 3,041,159 $ 24.67 2,709,003 $ 2492 2,306,882 $ 23.81

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding and exercisable ar
December 31, 2006:

Options outsianding Options exercisable

Weighted

average
reamaining Weighted Weighted
Mumber  contractual life average Number average
Range of exercise prices Qutstanding {in years} exercise price exercisable exercise price

$998-$1499 2,299,500 5.42 $ 1045 - -

$1500-$21.99 2,201,328 4.33 20.30 699,204 19.88
$22.00-%31.90 3,271,472 4.63 2579 2,341,955 2610
7,772,300 4,78 $ 1970 3,041,159 $ 24.67

Deferred stock unit plan

The Deferred Stock Unit plan (“DSU plan”) is for the benefit of the Company’s directors. Under the DSU plan,
a portion of each director’s compensation package is received in the form of units. The value of a unit is based
on the weighted average trading price of the Subordinate Voting Shares. Subject to certain limitations, the units
will be redeemed by the Company when the director ceases to be a DSU participant. For the purpose of
redeeming units, the value of a unir shall correspond to the fair value of a Subordinate Voting Share on the date
of redemption.

As of December 31, 2006, the number of units outstanding under this plan was 256,923 (215,447 in 2005 and
153,948 in 2004), which represented a compensation expense negligible in 2006 and 2005 and $1.6 million
in 2004. The weighted average grant date fair value for units granted during the year was $10.55 ($17.91 in
2005 and $20.69 in 2004).
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{(d) Deferred performance share unit plan

In January 2006, the Company put in place a new Deferred Performance Share Unit plan (*DPSU plan”). The
DPSU plan is for the benefit of the Company’s senior management, and key managers. Under the DPSU plan,
for a portion of these employees it is mandarory to defer, others have the choice to defer, a portion of their
annual bonus for a 3-year period, during which the amount will be indexed with the fair value of the
Subordinate Voting Shares and with dividends. The Company also contributes, on the employees’ behalf, a
further amount equal to 20% of the bonus originally deferred, which will be earned over the 3-year period.

The application of the DPSU plan has been suspended for the financial year 2006, given that a special
compensation arrangement was implemented for the year 2006. Under the special compensation arrangement,
a portion of the annual bonus of eligible employees will be paid in cash and determined based upon the
achievement of earnings before interest and taxes targets, and the other portion will be provided in the form of
shares at the end of a 3-year period, as long as these eligible employees remain employed by the Company.

As of December 31, 2006, 9,452 units were outstanding under the DPSU plan, which represented a
negligible compensation expense in 2006. The weighted average grant date fair value for units granted during
the year was $10.20.

20. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

(a) Fair value of financial instruments

The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, receivables (payables) from related parties,
restricted cash and trade payables and accrued liabilities approximate their fair values because of the short-term
nature of these items.

The following table summarizes the book value and fair value at December 31, 2006 and 2005 of those financial
instruments having a fair value different from their book value as at December 31. The fair values of the financial
liabilities are estimated based on discounted cash flows using year-end market yields of similar instruments
having the same marurity. The fair values of the derivative financial instruments are estimated using year-end
market rates, and reflect the amount that the Company would otherwise receive or pay if the instruments were
closed our at these dates.

2006 2005

Book Value Fair Value Book Value Faliera!ue

Financial liabilities

Long-ferm debt " $ (2,0014.7) $ (1,957.2) $ 1,739.9) $ (1,704.8)

Cenvertible notes {117.7) {119.1) (115.5) {120.8)
Derivative financial instruments

Interest rate swop agreements - (7.5) - (10.4)

Foreign exchange forward contracts 12.7) (15.5) 4.7 15.5

Cross currency inferest rate swaps - - 3.6 3.6

Commodity swaps {1.4) {13.7) {0.1} {0.5)

DHincluding current portion

In February 2005, the Company sold foreign exchange forward contracts that were used to hedge its net
investment in a foreign subsidiary for a cash consideration of $69.2 million. These foreign exchange forward
contracts were already recorded at the fair value and all resulting gains were previously recorded in cumulative
translation adjustment.
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(b) Foreign exchange risk management

The Company entered into foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge the settlement of foreign denominated

sales, related receivables, equipment purchases and foreign denominated debt, and foreign denominated assets.

The amount of outstanding contracts at year-end, presented by currency, are included in the table below:

Currencies Notional
(sold / bought) amounts 0}
$ / CAD
less than 1 year ] 77.7 0.8611
Between 1 and 3 years 73.0 0.8925
Over 3 years 5.1 0.9254
CAD/ $
Less than 1 year 47.1 1.1623
Between 1 and 3 years 265.0 1.1412
Over 3 years 100.0 1.1280
EUR/ $
Less than 1 year 506.5 0.7760
SEK / $
Less than 1 year 45.3 6.8656
GBP / EUR
Less than 1 yeor 9.2 0.6917
Between 1 and 3 years 1.2 0.7061
Other
. Less than 1 year 40.6 -
Between 1 and 3 years 0.3 -
s 1,171.0

1" Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into dollars using the closing exchange rate as at December 31, 2006.
7 Rates were expressed as the number of units of the currency sold for the currency bought.

(c) Interest rate risk management

The Company entered into interest rate swaps to manage its interest rate exposure. The Company is committed
to exchange, at specific intervals, the difference between the fixed and floating interest rate calculated by

reference to the notional amounts.

The amounts of outstanding contracts at December 31, 2006 are included in the table below:

Maturity Notional amount Pay/Receive Fixed Rale
Y .

November 2008 $ 2000 Company pays floating/ 4.875%
receives fixed

Floating Rate

Libor 3 months/
plus 1.53% - 1.58%

(d) Commodity risk

The Company entered into commaodity swap agreements to manage a portion of its North American natural

gas exposure. The Company is committed ro exchange, on a monthly basis, the difference between a fixed price

and a floating natural gas price index calculated by reference to the notional amounts.
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{(d) Commodity risk (cont'd)

The amounts of outstanding contracts at year-end are included in the table below:

Countries / Unil Notienal Average
quantity price

Canada / millions of Gigajoules

Less than 1 year 0.7 $ 737

Between 1 and 3 years 0.8 $ 7.08
U.S. / millions of MMBTU

Less than 1 year 3.9 S 9.33

Between | and 3 years 4.1 $ 9.07

U} Transactions in foraign currencies are translated into dollars using the closing exchange rate as at December 31, 2006.

Credit risk

The Company is exposed to credit losses resulting from defaults by counterparties when using financial
instruments. When the Company enters into derivative financial instruments, the counterparties (either foreign
or Canadian) must have at least a rating of A or its equivalent on long-term unsecured term debt from at least
two rating agencies (Standard & Poor’s, Moody’s or DBRS) and are subject to concentration limits. The
Company does not foresee any failure by the counterparties in meeting their obligations and the risk is
considered immaterial.

The Company, in the normal course of business, continuously monitors the financial condition of its customers
and reviews the credit history of each new customer. At December 31, 2006, no customer balance represents
a significant portion of the Company’s consolidated trade receivables. The Company establishes an allowance
for doubtful accounts that corresponds to the specific credit risk of its customers, historical trends and other
information on the state of the economy.

The Company believes that the product and geographic diversity of its customer base is instrumental in reducing
its credit risk, as well as the impact on the Company of fluctuations in local market or product-line demand.
The Company has long-term contracts with most of its largest customers. These contracts usually include price
adjustment clauses based on the cost of paper, ink and labour. The Company does not believe that it is exposed
to an unusual level of customer credit risk.

21. SUPPLEMENTARY CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

2006 2005 I 2004

Cash $ 13.2 $ 1.7 $ 339
Cash equivalents 4.6 6.6 17.9
$ 17.8 $ 18.3 $ 518

2006 2005 | 2004

Interest payments $ 1400 £ 129 $ 1308
Income tax paid [net of refund) 32.0 3%.3 &67.0
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{a) Leases

The Company rents premises and machinery and equipment under operating leases, which expire at various
dates up to 2018 and for which minimum lease payments total $397.7 million.

Annual minimum payments under these leases are as follows:

7007 $ 155.3
2008 6.7
2009 48.4
2010 30.1
2001 20.7
2012 and thereafier 78.5

Rental expenscs for operating leases were $71.4 million, $84.5 million and $88.1 million for the years 2000,
2005 and 2004 respectively.

(b) Machinery and equipment

As at December 31, 2006, the Company had commitments to purchase 21 new presses for its North American
and European segments for a total amount of $273.3 million, of which $213.4 million was already disbursed
and the remaining amount of $59.9 million will be paid in 2007. The Company also concluded agreements
related to building and equipment expenditures for its European and North American segments. Future
payments related to these commitments will amount to approximately $26.6 million.

Environment

The Company is subject to various laws, regulations and government policies principally in North America and
Europe, relating to health and safety, to the generation, storage, transportation, disposal and environmental
emissions of various substances, and to environment protection in general. The Company believes it is in
compliance with such taws, regulations and government policies, in all marerial respects. Furthermore, the
Company does not anticipate that maintaining compliance with such environmental statutes will have a material
adverse effect upon the Company’s competirive or consolidared financial position.

(d) Guarantees

Significant guarantees the Company has provided to third parties include che following;

Operating leases

The Company has guaranteed a portion of the residual values of certain of its assets under operating leases
with expiry dates between 2007 and 2009, for the benefit of the lessor. If the fair value of the assets, at the end
of their respective lease term, is less than the residual value guaranteed, then the Company must, under certain
conditions, compensate the lessor for a portion of the shortfall. The maximum exposure in respect of these
guarantees was $60.1 million. Of this amount, $55.0 million will expire in 2007. As at December 31, 2006,
the Company recorded a liability of $7.9 million associated with these guarantees.

Sub-lease agreements
The Company has, for some of its assets under operating leases, entered into sub-lcase agreements with expiry
dates between 2007 and 2008. If the sub-lessee defaults under the agreement, the Company must, under certain
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(d) Guarantees (cont'd)

conditions, compensate the lessor for the defaults. The maximum exposure in respect of these guarantces was
$2.6 miliion. As at December 31, 2006, the Company did not recorded a liability associated with these
guarantees, other than thar provided for unfavourable leases of $1.2 million, since it is not likely at this time
that the sub-lessee would default under the agreement and that the Company would thus be required to honour
the initial obligation. Recourse against the sub-lessee was also available, up to the total amount due.

Business and real estate disposals

In connection with certain disposals of businesses or real estate, the Company has provided customary
representations and warranties whose terms range in duration and may not be explicitly defined. The Company
has also retained certain liabilities for events that have occurred prior to the sale, relating to tax, environmental,
litigation and other matters. Generally, the Company has indemnified the purchasers in the event that a third
party asserts a claim against the purchaser thar relates to a liability retained by the Company.

These types of indemnification guarantees typically extend for a number of years, The nature of these
indemnification agreements prevents the Company from estimating the maximum potential liability thar it
could be required to pay to guaranteed parties. These amounts are dependent upon the outcome of furure
contingent events, the nature and likelihood of which cannot be determined ar this time.

Historically, the Company has not made any significant indemnification payments under such agreements and
no amount has been accrued in the consolidated balance sheet with respect to these indemnification guarantees
as at December 31, 2006. The Company continues to menitor the conditions that are subject to guarantees
and indemnifications to identify whether it is probable that a loss has occurred, and would recognize any such
losses under any guarancees or indemnifications when those losses are probable and estimable.

Debt agreements

Under the terms of certain debt agreements, the Company has guaranteed the obligation of some of its U.S.
subsidiaries. In this context, the Company would have to indemnify the other parties against changes in
regulation relative to withholding taxes, which would occur only if the Company was to make the payments
on behalf of some of its U.S. subsidiaries. These indemnifications extend for the term of the related financings
and do not provide any limit on the maximum potential liabilities. The nature of the indemnification
agreements prevents the Company from estimating the maximum potential liability it could be required to
pay. However, the majority of the obligations to which such guarantees apply, contain make-whole provisions
which effectively limit the exposure associated with such an occurrence. Moreover, within the current structure
of the transactions, the Company is not exposed to such liabilities. As such, the Company has not accrued any
amount in the consolidated balance sheer with respect to this item.

Irrevocable standby letters of credit

The Company and certain of its subsidiaries have granted irrevocable standby letters of credit, issued by highly
rated financial institutions, to third parties to indemnify them in the event the Company does not perform its
contractual obligations. As of December 31, 2006, the letters of credit amounted to $89.2 million. The
Company has not recorded any liability with respect to these letters of credit, as the Company does not expect
to make any payments in excess of what is recorded in the Company’s financial statements. The letters of credic

mature at various dates in 2007,
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The Company maintains defined benefit and contribution pension plans for its employees. The effective dates of
the most recent actuarial valuations for funding purposes were between April 2005 and January 2006, and the date

of the next required actuarial valuation ranges berween December 2006 and 2008.

The Company provides postretirement benefits to eligible employees. The costs of these benefis are accounted for
during the employees’ active service period.

The following table is based on a September 30 measurement date. The table provides a reconciliation of the

changes in the plan’s benefit obligations and fair value of plan assets for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2006
and December 31, 2003, and a statement of the funded status as at December 31, 2006 and 2005:

Pension Posiretirement
Benefits Benefits
2005
Changes in benefit obligations
Benefit obligation, beginning of year 1,119 $ 1,020 69.4 $ 661
Service cost 34.2 352 1.3 i1
Interest cost 58.7 59.9 7 3.9
Plan participants' contributions 5.0 5.1 2.1 1.9
Plan amendements 3.0 - - {3.5)
Divestitures - (3.8} - -
Curtailment gain (64.6) {(5.6) - 0.7
Actuarial {gain) loss {29.8) 80.4 (5.2} 8.8
Benefits paid (90.0) 76.7) (6.5) (8.5)
Foreign currency changes 13.5 [2.7] - 0.3
Benefit obligation, end of year 1,041.9 $ 11119 64.8 $ 694
Changes in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets, beginning of year 667.0 $ 6192 . $
Actual return on plan assets 43.6 64.8 - -
Employer contributions 87.9 53.4 4.4 6.6
Plan participants' contributions 5.0 51 21 1.9
Benefits paid (90.0) (76.7) (6.5) (8.5)
Foreign currency changes 7.2 1.2 - -
Fair value of plan assets, end of year 720.7 $ 667.0 - 3
Reconciliation of funded status
Funded status {321.2) $  (4449) (64.8) $  (69.4)
Unrecognized net transition asset 3.1) 3.4 - -
Unrecognized past service cost {benefit] 16.2 13.9 {14.1) (16.7}
Unrecognized actuarial loss 312.4 414.7 6.9 13.0
Adjustment for fourth quarter contributions 5.4 5.0 1.0 1.7
Net amount recogﬂzed 9.7 $ {14.9} (71.0) $ (70.8)
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Included in the above benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets at year-end are the following amounts in

respect of plans that are not fully funded:

Pension Postretirement
Benefits Benefits
2005 . 2005
Benefit obligation 5 (1,041.9) $ N9 $ (64.8) $ [69.4)
Fair value of plan assels 720.7 667.0 - -
Funded status - plan deficit $  (321.2) $  [444.9) 5 (64.8) $ [69.4)

The following table provides the amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets:

Pension POshetirerr:lent
Benefits Benelits
20035 . 2005
Accrued benefit liability 15 $ (79.9) $ {82.8) $ (7.0 $ {70.8)
Accrued benefit asset 1! 89.6 67.9 - -
Net amount recognized 5 9.7 $ [14.9) $ (71.0) $ (70.8)

Mincluded in other assets.

The plan assets held in trust at the measurement date and their weighted average allocations were as follows:

Asset calegory

Equily securities 65% 64 %
Debt securities 33 33
Others 2 3

In 2006, at the measurement date, the plan assets included equity securities of the Company and related parties for
a total amount of $0.3 million.
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The following table provides the components of net periodic benefit cost:

Pension Postretirement
Benefits Benefits

2006 2005 2004 2005 2004

Defined benefit plans

1

Service cost $ 34.2 | $ 352 $ 378 $ 1.3 $ 10 $ 1.5
Interest cost 58.7 590.9 58.0 3.7 3.9 58
Actual return on plan assets (43.6) (64.8) {57.3) - . .
Actuarial {gain) loss (26.4) 76.9 (16.4) (5.2} 8.8 (16.1)
Plan amendmenis 3.0 - (1.5) - (3.5) {13.0)
Curtailment {gain) loss (2.7) 37 1.9 - {0.3) -
Settlement loss 3.3 3.4 1.8 - -
Benelfit cost before adjustments to

recognize the long-term nature of the plans 26.5 114.3 24.3 (0.2} 10.0 (21.8)
Difference between expected return and

actual return on plan assets {7.2) 14.1 6.7 -

Difference between actuarial {gain) loss
recognized for the year and actual
actyarial {gain) loss on acerued benefit
obligation for the year 44.9 (62.2) 28.8 6.1 {8.1} 18.1

Difference between amortization of past
service cost [benefit) for the year and

actual plan amendments for the year (t.9) 07 3.0 (2.0} 1.6 12.9
Amortization of transitional asset {0.9) {0.8) (0.8} - - -
Net periodic cost 61.4 66.1 62.0 3.9 3.5 ©.2

Defined contribution plans 17.6 11.4 12.7 -
Total periodic benefit cost .,5_7.9.0J $ 77.5 $ 747 $ 3.9 $ 35 $ 92

In 2006, the Company modified its defined benefit plans for certain employees in Canada and in the United Stares,
and created a defined contribution Group Registered Retirement Savings Plan ("Group RRSP") for employees in
Canada. As of October 1, 2006, affected employees in Canada had the choice to adhere to the Group RRSP, or to
continue to participate in the modified plan, while future employees automarically adhere to the new Group RRSP.
As a result, 2 $3.8 million curtailment charge was recorded in 2006. For employees in the United States, one of the
defined benefit plans was frozen on October 1, 2006, and an improved defined contribution plan has been offered
to employees. As a result, a $5.5 million curtailment gain was recorded in 2006. Other settlements and curtailments
were also recorded during the year.

The 2006 pension benefit costs included a total settlement loss of $1.9 millien (sertlements and curtailments due
to downsizing of $0.2 million in 2005 and $8.9 million in 2004), as described in Note 2.

The defined contribution pension plan benefit cost included contributions to multiemployer plans of $7.1 million
for the year ended December 31, 2006 ($6.8 million in 2005 and $7.3 million in 2004), and a charge of
$1.0 million for multiemployer plans due to a plant closure ($2.7 million in 2004).

The total cash amount paid or payable for employee future benefits for all plans, consisting of cash contributed by
the Company to its funded pension plans, cash payment directly to beneficiaries for its unfunded other benefir plans
and cash contributed to its defined conrribution plans, was $110.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2006
($72.7 million in 2005 and $96.5 million in 2004).
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The weighted average assumptions used in the measurement of the Company’s benefit obligation and cost
are as follows:

Pension Postretirement
Benefits Benefits

2005 2005 | 2004

Accrued benefit obligation as of December 31:
Discount rate 5.6 % 5.4% 6.0% 58% 56% 6.1%
Rate of compensation increase 3.4% 3.4% 34% - - -

Benefit costs for years ended December 31:

Discount rate 5.4 % 6.0% 60% 5.6 % 6.1 % 60%
Expected return on plan assets 7.6% 76% 78% - - -
Rote of compensation increase 3.4 % 3.4% 3.5% - - -

The assumed health care cost trend rate used in measuring the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation was
8.5% at the end of 2006 (8.2% ar the end of 2005) and is expected to decrease gradually to 4.9% in 2009 and
remain at that level thereafter. A one percentage point change in assumed health care cost trend would have the
following effects:

Postretirement Benefits

Sensitivity analysis 1% increase 1% Ir:||ecrec15e
Effect on service and inferest costs $ 05 $ 0.4
Effect on benefit obligation 4.7 i4.1)

24, SEGMENTED INFORMATION

The Company operates in the printing industry. Its business groups are located in three main segments: North
America, Europe and Latin America. These segments are managed separately, since they all require specific market
strategies. The Company assesses the performance of each segment based on operating income before impairment
of assets, restructuring and other charges and goodwill impairment charge (“Adjusted EBIT”).

Accounting policies relating to each segment are identical to those used for the purposes of the consolidated financial
statements and intersegment sales are made at fair market values. Management of financial expenses and income
tax expense is centralized and, consequently, these expenses are not allocated among the segments. Revenues by
geographic area are based on where the selling organization is located.
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The following is a summary of the segmented information for the Company’s continuing operations:

MNorth Europe Latin lier-
America M Ametica Segment

Revenues

[ 2006 $_4.821.7 $.1,025.4 $ 239.3 $_07 $_(08)_5 60863 |
2005 4,881.1 1,162.¢ 241.7 0.5 (2.9} 6,283.3
2004 4,850.3 1,297.4 192.4 0.5 {1.1} 4,339.5

Depreciation and amortization

{2006 242.8 54.4 10.8 0.6 - 308.6_ |
2005 2358 56.9 10.5 1.0 - 304.2
2004 243.1 69.9 0.7 1.2 3249

Impairment of assets

[ 2006 30.5 2.0 0.5 - - as.o |
2005 8.9 44.5 0.3 - - 53.7
2004 36.6 29.2 39 0.4 - 70.1

Restructuring and other charges

( 2006 34.5 43.1 0.7 - - 78.3 |
2005 13.7 26.4 0.4 - - 40.5
2004 3.7 11.4 1.8 0.6 - 455

Goodwill impairment charge

2008 - - - " " -]
2005 . 243.0 243.0
2004 . ; .

Adjusted EBIT

[ 2006 257.8 (17.5) 10.0 (8.8) - 2.5 |
2005 353.5 {3.6) 13.0 {5.4) - 357.5
2004 421.4 50. 1.3 1.7) . 471.1

Operating income {loss)

[ 2006 192.8 (62.6) 8.8 (8.8) - 130.2 ]
2005 3309 1317.5) 12.3 (5.4) - 20.3
2004 353.1 9.5 {4.4) (2.7) . 355.5

Additions to property, plant

and equipment @

[ 2006 207.9 75,5 291 1.3 - 313.8 |
2005 286.4 103.3 4.1 0.2 - 394.0
2004 104.5 222 3.8 0.1 132.6

Property, plant and equipmenst

[ 2006 1,625.3 544.7 111.5 5.9 - 2,287.4 |
2005 1,758.6 451.5 83.5 23 - 2,2959

Goodwill

[ 2006 2.156.3 159.4 8.6 - - 2,324.3 |
2005 2,156.7 140.9 8.1 - - 2,305.7

Total assets (03

[ 2005 4,551.9 910.6 263.5 97.4 - 5.823.4 1
2005 4,597.0 790.6 231.3 B1.5 - 5,700.4

1 Includes Revenues amounting to $893.3 million ($912.2 million in 2005 and $851.5 million in 2004) ond,
Property, plant and equipment amounting to $233.2 million ($238.0 million in 2005) for Canada.

1 Including both confinued and discontinued operations.

13 As restated, sea Note 1
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25.

The Company carries out international commercial printing operations, and offers to its customers a broad range
of print and related communication services, such as retail inserts, magazines, catalogs, books, directories, logistics,
direct mail, pre-media and other value-added services.

Revenues by print service are as follows:

2006 2005 2004

Retail inserts $ 1,730.6 28.5 % $ 1.7217.5 27.3% $ 11,6872 26,6 %
Magazine 1,581.2 26.0 1,671.2 26.6 1,776.6 28.0
Catalogs 1,012.9 16.6 1,027.6 16.4 1,026.1 16.2
Books 628.3 10.3 691.4 11.0 697.2 11.0
Directories 390.8 6.4 390.6 6.2 384.5 6.1
Logistics 263.0 4.3 248.5 4.0 230.2 3.6
Direct mail 222.4 3.7 206.8 3.3 212.2 3.4
Pre-media and other value-added services 2571 4.2 329.7 5.2 325.5 5.1

$ 60863 1000 % $ 6,2833 1000% $ 46,3395 1000 %

SIGNIFICANT DIFFERENCES BETWEEN GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES
IN CANADA AND THE UNITED STATES

The Company’s consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles (‘GAAP”), which differ in some respects from those applicable in the United
States. The following are the significant differences in accounting principles as they pertain to the consolidated
financial statements.

(a) Reconciliation of net income (loss) and earnings (loss) per share and presentation of financial statements

The application of GAAP in the United States would have the following effects on net income (loss) as reported:

2006 2005 || 2004

Net income (loss), as reported in the consolideted

statements of income per GAAP in Canada $ 283 $ (162.6) $143.7
Adijustments:

Convertible senior subordinated notes (a) (i) 2.2 35 2.6

Hedge accounting {a] {ii} (5.1} (15.5) {7.6}

Reduction of a net investment in o foreign operation {a) (iii) 2.5 - (1.0

Asset refirement obligations (o) (iv} - - 2.0

Stock-based compensation {a} {v) - . {0.1)

Income taxes (a} [vi] 1.9 3.1 1.9
Net income (loss), as adjusted per GAAP in the United States $ 29.8 $ {169.5) $141.5
Net income allocated to holders of preferred shares 34.0 39.6 37.5
Net income {loss) per GAAP in the United States available 1o

holders of equity shares $ (4.2) $ (209.1) $104.0
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding [in millions):

Basic 1314 131.8 132.4

Diluted 131.4 131.8 132.6
Earnings {loss) per share as odjusted per GAAP in the United Stotes:

Basic $ (0.03) $ (1.59) $ 079

Diluted (0.03) (1.59) 0.78




danfs oIWININIWrasile)] Il afiihiST e HFB I FTFRRITS ikl S2ivUMAhisl S Wi 1 FR9 'y Wi STIIINEY | SRIfF Y WEY =& w

IN CANADA AND THE UNITED STATES (CONT’D)
(a) Reconciliation of net income {loss) and eamnings (loss) per share and presentation of financial statements {contd)
(i) Convertible senior subordinated notes

Under GAAP in Canada, the equity component of the convertible notes is recorded under shareholders’
equity as contributed surplus. The difference between the carrying amount of the debt component and its
face value is amortized as impured interest to income over the life of the convertible senior subordinared
note. Regarding the repurchase of convertible notes, the Company is required to allocate the consideration
paid on extinguishment to the liability and equity components of the convertible notes based on their fair
values at the date of the transaction. The amount of gain (loss) relating to the liability element is recorded
to income and the difference between the carrying amount and the amount considered to be settled relating
to the conversion option element is treated as an equity transaction. Under GAAP in the Unired States, the
allocation to equity is not permitted, no imputed interest is needed in relation to the equity component

and the gain (loss) on repurchase is recorded through income in the period of extinguishment.
(ii) Accounting for derivative instruments and hedging activities

Under GAAP in United States, Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.133, “Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” (SFAS 133) establishes accounting and reporting standards
for derivative instruments and hedging activities and requires that all derivatives be recorded as either assets
or liabilities in the balance sheet at fair value. In accordance with SFAS 133, for derivative instruments
designated as fair value hedges by the Company, such as certain interest rate swaps and forward exchange
contracts, changes in the fair values of these derivative instruments are substantially offset in the statement

of income by changes in the fair values of the hedged items.

For derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges by the Company, such as certain forward exchange
contracts and natural gas swap contracts, the effective portions of these hedges are reported in other
comprehensive income (loss) until it is recognized in income during the same period in which the hedged
item affects income, while the current ineffective portions of these hedges are recognized in the statement

of income each period.

Under GAAP in Canada, derivative financial instruments are accounted for on an accrual basis. Realizedand
unrealized gains and losses are deferred and recognized in income in the same period and in the same financial

statement category as the income or expense arising from the corresponding hedged positions
(iii) Reduction of a net investment in a foreign operation

Under GAAP in Canada, a gain or loss equivalent to a proportionate amount of the exchange gain or
loss accumulated in the translation adjustment has to be recognized in income when there has been a
reduction of a net investment in a foreign operation. Under GAAP in the United States, a gain or loss
should only be recognized in income in the case of a substantial or complete liquidation of a net

investment in a foreign operation.
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(a) Reconciliation of net income (loss) and earings (loss) per share and presentation of financial statements (contd)
(iv) Asset retirement obligations

Effective January 1, 2003, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 143,
“Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations”, (SFAS 143), which addresses financial accounting for legal
obligations associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets and the associated asset retirement
costs. SFAS 143 requires the recognition of the fair value of a liability for an asset retirement obligation in
the period in which it is incurred. When a liability is initially recorded, the cost is capitalized by increasing
the carrying amount of the related long-lived asset. Over time, the liability is increased at each period to
reflect an interest element considered in its initial measurement at fair value, and the capitalized cost is
amortized over the useful life of the related asset. Under GAAP in Canada, accounting for asset retirement
obligations was adopted in 2004,

(v) Stock-based compensation

Effective January 1, 2003, the Company began accounting for its stock-based compensation expense using
the fair value based method by adopting the requirements of CICA Handbook Section 3870, “Stock-
based compensation and other stock-based payments” under GAAP in Canada and the Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” under
GAAP in the United States. As a result, there is no difference in stock-based compensation accounting
since January 1, 2003, except for the accounting of stock option granted prior to 2003 or stock-based
compensation accounting rules applied prior to fiscal year 2003. Furthermore, the adoption by the
Company of the new SFAS No. 123 (revised) on January 1, 2006 did not result in any additional difference
between GAAP in Canada and in the United States.

(vi) Income taxes

This adjustment represents the tax impact of United States GAAP differences.
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IN CANADA AND THE UNITED STATES (CONT'D)

(b) Effect on consolidated balance sheets

The application of GAAP in the United States would have the following effects on the consolidated balance

sheets, as reported:

2006 2005
Canada United States ‘ Canada Unied States
Assets
Current future income taxes (a] [vi) 40.6 S 50.7 34.3 $ 63.8
Other current assets {a) (i) - - - 6.6
Other assets {a) (i} (b} {i} 224.2 134.6 187.7 140.6
Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity
Trade payables and accrued
liabilities (a) (ii) (b} (i 942.4 971.1 876.1 966.6
Current future income taxes {a} {vi) 1.1 0.4 1.7 10.4
Long-term debt (a} {ii} 1,984.0 1,981.7 1,731.9 1,722.1
Other liabilities (o) i} (i) {b) {i 283.5 512.1 276.3 417.0
Long-term future income taxes (o} [vi] 389.1 297.8 3789 315.6
Convertible notes {a) (i} 117.7 120.5 115.5 120.6
Capital stock {b) (i 1,566.3 1,538.0 1,688.6 1,658.3
Coniributed surplus {a) (i) {v) 114.1 98.1 110.6 94.6
Retained earnings (a} (b (i 398.3 a37.4 443.8 483.4
Translation adjustment |c) (46.3) - (24.2) -
- . 3.6 3.4
Accumulated other comprehensive
income {loss) (c) - {286.4) {200.3)

(i) Pension and post-retirement plans

Under GAAP in the United States, Statement No. 158, Employers' Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension
and Other Postretitement Plans (“SFAS 158”) was issued in 2006 and requires the recognition in the
balance sheet of the over- or unfunded positions of defined benefit pension and other post-retirement
plans, along with a corresponding non-cash adjustment, which is recorded in the accumulated other
comptehensive loss. SFAS 158 was effective prospectively for fiscal years ended after December 15, 2006

and did not have an impact on the Company’s consolidated statement of income.

Under GAAP in the United States, for 2006 and prior years, if the accumulated benefit obligation exceeded
the fair value of a pension plan's assets, the Company was required to recognize a minimum accrued liability
equal to the unfunded accumulated benefit obligation, which was recorded in accumulated other
comprehensive loss. The additional minimum liability concept from SFAS 87 has been eliminated with the
adoption of SFAS 158 as at December 31, 2006.

On the adoption of SFAS 158, an adjustment of $42.1 million (net of income tax of $15.4 million) was
recorded as a component of the ending balance of accumulated other comprehensive loss as at December
31, 2006 to reflect the underfunded status of the Company’s defined benefit pension and post-retirement
plans and the reversal of the minimum pension liability that was recognized in accordance with SFAS 87.

Under GAAP in Canada, a company is not required to recognize the over- or unfunded positions or to

recognize an additional minimum liability.
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IN CANADA AND THE UNITED STATES (CONT'D)

{b) Effect on consolidated balance sheets (cont'd)

(c)

(ii) Share issue costs

Under GAAP in the United States, share issue costs are deducted from the value proceeds of the capital

stock issued. Under GAAP in Canada, share issue costs are included in the Retained Earnings in the

year when incurred.

Comprehensive income

The application of GAAP in the United States requires the disclosure of comprehensive income (loss) in a

separate financial statement, which includes net income as well as revenues, charges, gains and losses recorded

directly o equity.

2006 2005 | | 2004

Net income (loss), as adjusted per GAAP in the United States $ 2938 $ 169.5) $141.5
Gain (ioss} on hedging activities {o] [ii} (21.4) {24.3) 328
Pension and other postretirement benefits (b} (i) 1.3 {23.8) 5¢.2
Currency translation adjustment [} {iii) (24.6) {60.8) 56.8
Income taxes {a) {vi} 0.7 4.0 {38.2)
Comprehensive income (loss) as per GAAP in the United States 5 (14.2) $ {274.4) $ 252.1

Statement of cash flow

The adjustments to comply with GAAP in the United States, with respect to the consolidated statements of cash
flows for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 would have no effect on net cash and cash
equivalents provided by operating activities, cash provided by (used in) financing activities and cash used in

investing activities.
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Years ended December 31
{in millions of US dollars, except per share data & other statistics)

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

Consolidated Results from Continuing Operations
Revenues $ 6,086.3 $6,283.3 $ 6,339.5 $ 60481 § 59260
Adjusted EBITDA 579.9 688.7 §22.2 654.8 852.3
Adjusted EBIT 241.5 357.5 471.1 306.4 527.0
IAROC 111.3 94.2 115.6 94.5 19.1
Goodwill impairment charge - 243.0 - . -
Operating income 130.2 20.3 355.5 211.9 507.9
Net income {loss) from continuing operaticns 30.6 (148.8) 139.9 (32.7) 268.1
Adjusted EBITDA margin * 9.5% 11.0% 13.0% 10.8% 14.4%
Adijusted EBIT margin * 4.0% 57% 7.4% 5.1% 8.9%
Cperating margin * 2.1% 0.3% 5.6% 3.5% 8.6%
Financial Position
Cash provided by operating activities $ 2360 $ 4695 $ 4878 $ 4613 § 5134
Free cash flow ** (9.9) 119.2 3i90.4 183.3 319.8
Capital expenditures 313.8 394.0 132.6 243.1 184.5
Working capital *** (76.0) (100.4) {50.8) (180.9} {222.2)
Property, plant and equipment 2,287.4 2,295.9 2,373.6 2,581.0 2,610.6
Total assets *** 5,823.4 5,700.4 46,2653 6,272.4 6,205.7
Longterm debt fincluding converfible notes) 2,132.4 1,855.1 1,850.1 2,009.0 1,822.1
First Preferred Shares 326.4 456.6 456.6 456.6 456.6
Equity Multiple and Subordinate Voting Shares 1,239.9 1,232.0 1,248.7 1,236.5 1,357.3
Debt-tocapitalization *** 51:49 46:54 43:57 45:55 40:60
Debtto-Adjusted EBITDA ratio {fimes) **** 3.7 27 2.4 3.1 2.1
Interest coverage rafio [times) **** 4.3 5.8 6.3 3.8 5.6
Per Share Data
Earnings [loss) from continuing operations

Diluted $  (0.03) $  (1.43) $ 077 $ [051) $ 168

Adjusted diluted $ 064 $ 098 $ 145 $ - $ 184
Dividends on equity shares 5 030 $ 056 $ 052 $ 052 § 049
Market price - TSE close in CA $ $ 13.50 $ 1572 $ 25.80 $ 2675 $ 3500
Market price - NYSE close $ 11.56 $ 13.59 $ 21.54 $ 2059 § 2232

EBITDA: Operating income before depreciation and amortization.

IAROC: impairment of assets, restructuring and other charges.

Adjusted: Defined as before IAROC and before goodwill impairment charge.
Debtto-Ajustad EBITDA rafio: Total debt divided by Adjusted EBITDA.

Interest coverage ratio: Adjusted EBITDA divided by financial expenses - Lost 12 months,

*

Margins calevlated on revenues.

i Cash provided by operating activities, less capital expenditures and prefarred shore dividends,
nel of proceeds from disposals of assets and proceeds from business disposals.
e Prior periods amounts have been revised. See Note 1 to Consolidated financial statements.

sew

For continuing operations.
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AVERAGE DAILY
TRADING VOLUME

2004
2005
2006
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NEW YORK STOCK EXCHANGE (in US dollars)

High! Low' Close
2004 $23.52 $16.93 $21.54
2005 $24.30 $13.25 $13.59
2006 $13.48 $ 9.48 $11.56

TORONTO STOCK EXCHANGE (in CA dollars)

High’ Low! Close
2004 $29.80 $23.22 $25.80
2005 $29.99 $15.39 $i5.72
2006 $15.66 $10.85 $13.50
IClesing Prices

Stock Listing

Quebecor World Inc. Subordinate Voting
Shares are listed on the New York Stock
Exchange and on the Toronto Stock
Exchange under the

symbol [QW.

Annual and Special Meeting
The Annual and Special General
Meeting will be held at 11:00 am
on May 9, 2007 at:

Palais des Congrés de Montréal
Room 511 - Level 5

301 StAntoine Street West
Montreal, Guebec, H2Z 1H5

Parking:
249 St-Antoine Street West

Pour obtenir la version francaise de ce rapport annuel, s'adresser & :
Quebecor World Inc., 612, rue SaintJacques, Montréal [Québec), H3C 4M8

Annual Information Form
The Annual Information Form
may be obtained by writing to:
Corporate Secretary
Guebecor World inc.

612 St. Jacques Street
Montreal, Quebec

H3C 4M8

Or threugh SEDAR at
www.sedar.com

Version électronique : www.quebecorworld.com

Transfer Agent and Registrar
Computershare Trust

Company of Canoda

1500 University Street, Svite 700
Montreal, Quebec

H3A 358

Co-Transfer Agents
Computershare

Trust Company, Inc.
Denver, Colorado

Avuditors
KPMG up
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